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Introduction

The love of history in our family is clearly longstanding. John Milne
understood the value of his contribution to the building of our
nation. His stories are interesting, informative and are filled with
humanity. Reading the autobiography gives us a very real repre-
sentation of what life was like in his time when our country was
young and virtually anything was possible.

There is much that we can take pride in when reviewing John
Milne’s contribution, but perhaps the lesson we can learn from this
man’s life is that we all have the ability to contribute to the building
of Canada. John Milne’s energy and accomplishments have
become part of the very fabric of Canada.

John Milne’s energy and spirit also became a part of his grand-
daughter, Barbara Katherine Wilhelmina Helen Luete Winterton,
the child he essentially raised. Through reading about John Milne,
we can understand where she got her entrepreneurial spirit and
how she must have found compatibility with our grandfather,
William Edward Winterton, another entrepreneur. Their children,
William (Bill) Milne Winterton (father of Bill, Brock, Barbara,
Susan and Sharon) and Douglas Karl Winterton (father of Tracy)
have their own stories to tell and we, their children, will be a

part of those stories.

| believe John Milne’s story is one we should all be familiar with
because it is a story about where we come from. It grounds us

in the history of this country. | thought it important for us to retain
the original character of the autobiography and so have had it
published as it was typed, corrected and added to by his own hand.
It is an unabridged copy of his original.

Enjoy the stories.
Brock Edward Winterton
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AN AUTOBIOGRAPHY
OF THE LIFE OF
JOHN MILNE
CONDENSED, COMPILED, AND TYPED BY
HIMSELF IN HIS 9lst YEAR
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He agkes his readers to excuse hls many
errors Iin typing ,by striking the wrong
letters ,and sometimes ommmiting a word.

He does not claim to be en expertlypwritter.
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On the top of a bage of one volumn of ny Fa-
therss“Hawe Bible I found the following en-
try: iy son John was born in the village
of Zllon,Aberdeenshire, Scotland on the 8th
day of October A.D 1838 at 4.40 A.M,."

My father had a shoeshop in Ellon. I was toz
-eld that I was about 3 years old when he
brought me to Canada with him.My Mother as

I understood died,and my father had decided
to migrate to Canada.l was told that I had a

sister ,but she had died when very young.of
scarlet fever.. My father told me that we
came out in a salling vessel,and was about
12 weeks on the sea. He came direct to a Mr
Logie,s place., whom he had known in Scotl-
and,Mr Logie had a farm in the Townshlp of
Woolwich in the Province of Ontario.

My father built a small house near Mr Logie,s
house and made that his home.At times he
worked for Mr kogie,and at other times he
worked at his trade.as a shoemaker.In those
days it was a common thing for & shoemaker
to travel through the country,and nake shoes
for the different famillies,and frequently
they go to the villages,and get a slt ,as

th call it,making shoes by the plece or
e%ywages by the diy,from the resident shoe

Baker.they carried thelr own tools with them

this way my father would be awa from
%gme fgr w%ek% at a time.bDuring thle time

T was left under the_charge_ of My and Mrs
Logie who had no children..l would be &

General errand boy doing what I could. The
country at this tdme was infested byWol-
ves.We could hear them howling at night as
we stood in the door of the house. lir Logle
Ladto get his oxen,cows,and sheep housed at |
night to propect them. 1 remember one night
he could not find his oxen,they had wandered
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into the woods. Next morning he found then,
one was dead,and the other was so torn and

injured that he had to kill it. The first
one was almost disembowelyd by the wolves.

They had evidently fought hard,for there
were three were Jor 8 dead wolves lying

there. Mrs Logle took me out to see then,
and I will never forget the scene.

Another instance -~ I went out with them to
boil down sap in their sugar bush one night.
The sapis in large kettles hung over a big
fire,between two logs,He then built another
fire about 10 ft away. This was to protect
us from the wolves.We could hear them in the
woods around us,and they would come near -
enough so we could see them.and Mr Logie
would occaslonally throw a fire brand at
them to scare them away. I was very nuch
afraid of them,and so was Mrs logie.
Another circumstance I well remember -=-
My father was at home.dr and lirs Logie we-
nt out to a pasture field to milk the co-
ws.I was playing outside,and thought I wou-
1d walk down the lane to meet them coning
home,but when I came to & plece of woods,

I was afraid to go through it ,and at a gap
In the fence where the palls were turned
around,there was a nice cosy corner,and I
laid down to wait for them.I fell asleep,
'The{ went ho?e ,and my father asked about
me thinking 1 was with them. They had not
seen me. Then as 1t was fetting dark the
anxiety was about where 4 could be. My fat-
ther thinking + might have gone to the next
neighbour,s ,went there but they had not
‘geen me. Mr and Mrs Logie walked back to the
the pasture calling and looking all around
for me. Yow it was quite dark.It was about

10 0_Clock when Mr and Mrs Logie were com-
ing back the second time,wondering where I
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could be.They could hear .the wolves 1in
the woods around. They happened to stop in
the gap talking to themselves about me. The
nurmer of thelr volces awakén,ed me and I
was crying. They were delighted and asked
ne whx I crawled in there. I half crying
said I crawled in here for fear of the
Wolvies". The place was no protection.They
told me all about thelr search for me.and
ny father when I got home gave me a good
Thrashing,which made a strong impression

on my nmind.. St

About 1845 when I wasg about 7 years old my
Father was away from home most of the time
and I staid with the kogie,s. Thelr house
was a one room log house,wlth a large fire
pPlace in one end,in which was burned regu-
lar 4ft cordwood.I have seen him haul on a
Jhand sleigh a large 4 ft log ,and roll it
to the back ofl the fireplace,it would last
a week.All the cooking and baking was done
on this foreplace. At the other end of the
room was their bed. I slept in the attic
which was reached by a ladder at the side o
the fire place. Mr Logle would chpp down
trees in the woods,haul thenm up to the wood
yard near phe house,cut them into 4 ft len-
gths ,and split them into cordwood for the
fire place. I would generally go down with
nimwhen he went for logs with his oxen. He
would sometines let me have the gad ,and I
drive the oxen up. 1 thought I was doing
something.One day at nmy request he let ne
alone take the oxen to get a esmall log that
he thought I could put the chadn around. h ¢
did so and brought the log up to the house.
That dag I was a proud bo¥. When my father
was at home he diligently taught me to read,
and when he was away lMrs Logie gave me lessond



on reading,Mr Logie and my father were st;ﬂ
ict Presbiterians,and in my father,s absence

went to church nearly ®#-miles away.Mrs Logie
did not very often go, for ass she worked
every day worked with her husband on the fa-
rm ,she rneeded the sabbath to rest.Yne day

~Mr bogie and I went to the church ,+t was a
hot day in summer.He carried his coat.on his
arm ,and I trotted beside him bare footed ..
We arrived at church an hour before time for
service like all the others..There were no
newapapers in the community. The people were
all'in groups in the grave yard getting all
t-he news of the country. When the minister
came we all went into the church. The sger-
in those days was very long. They first sang
a ¥galm,and then the minister prayed the con-
gregation standing.He would pray at least a
half an hour . ‘hen he gave his text which
he divided into 5 or 4 heads and each head
into 3 or 4 particulars. He would elaborate
on each particular so that his sermon would
be over an hour . I would get sleepy and wo-
-uld get a dig in the ribs . ¥ t would be late
before we would get home for a cold dinner.
There was no cooking ofi the Sabbath duy,not
even & cup of tea.After I could not go out
to play for that was thought to be sinful.
We were all reading . 4pr fogie was reading a
book called Baxter,s saint,s rest. Mrs Logie
was reading her Bible,and Iwas reading Bun-
van,s Yilgrim,s progress, the next book to
the Bible. Everything was perfectly quiet.
not a word was sald , WNo idle conversation.
But all at once there was a great bellowing
in the barn yard, Some cow had hooked anoth-
er.The old gentleman looked over his glasses
to me ,and said " Johnny gang awa dot angd

see whalt is the matter we theyv coos for t
are naking owes nmuckle noise %or the Dabbﬁiﬁ
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I of course went out but didnot come back
soon for 1 was glad to stay among the calv-
- ,and lanbs for a time. You will see by this
the religious restrictions I was brought up
on. During this time I was given to night
walking or Somnambolism.,walking in my sl-
eep. I would gften get up in ny sleep at
nlght ,come down the ladder and go out and
do what I was dreaming about. Mr Logile kn-

-2 thig and would hear me coming down the lad-
der. He would get up and follow me ,and

finally wake me up by calling my name. this
would cause me to fall down. he would watch
when he could do this safely. When I was in
thlis condition ,no matter how dark 1t was
I apparently could®&very step I took and
was safer in the dark than 1 would be if
it was day light so long as they dld not
¢all my name. I could tell if I had beenup
and got back to bed before 1 was wakened.
because when * went bagk to bed I did not
take off my clothes.I cannot account for
these walks ,but as I grew older they dis-
~appeared . I did once after 1 was married.
A1l these nocturnal walks when I was a boy
was told me by the Logles.
About 1846 myfether decided that I must get
an education.There were no schools near
there ,so he took me to the village of Elo-
ra in Wellington county.and placed me with
a tailor nanmed ROY,to board and go to school
They had no children. He was a very hot tem-
pered man. He had a wooden leg,and 1f he
zot angry he would twist off his woodenleg
and whack me over the back with it, IfI did
anytning wrong elther at home or at school
I would get & thrashing and sent 1o bed - -
without my next meal. I was always getling
into some trouble and was sent to bed with-
out ny supper. He was very stingy. l



There was a shoemaker in the village naned
Gerry who was a friend of my fathers.He found
out how I wasg treated.One day he called me in-
to the shop,and said to his wife " Give Johnny
a sliice of bread™ She brought me a slice of
buttered bread with Jam on it.I théught she was
almost an Angel.After this it seemed that Mp
Gerry had written to my father about how I was

UEEdw 88 BEng EROw AR nt 98  BRe LT suER 22°, 6B
it is for a Young boy to miss a4 mother. O how I
envied the boys with whom I played,when I would
gee thelr mothers caress them and give them nice
things.I was anong strangers,and never had those
loving attentions,Many a time when I was alone
did i1 sit down and cry,till my heart seemed to
break.because I had no mother like the other
boys. I think it was acbout the year 1847

that my father went to Woodstock,and gota pos-
itilon to maky shoes for' a good firm. He dig
his work by the piece,and had his bench in the
roomn we lived in, and I went to school. At that
time woodstock wasdivided inti two parts,that
is there was 2 track of land in the mifidle of
the Town.The teacher,s name was $omerville.
The principal school was at one end of the TO-
WN and was taught by & man named Btraghan.
iy father was a great reader ,and I think he
was studying to prepare himself as a school
teacher 1848
This yedr my father got a position as teacher
in the township of liona.and we moved there,
and hoarded at a farm house near the school.
The ‘resbiterian church was was algo near the
school,and nmy father took an active interest
in 1t.I have known him to officiate in the
absence of the minister,I was very fond of
school,and think for my age I was progressing
rapidly.In fact my father would drive me out
to play,when I would be, studying after school
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hours,I still had the habit of walkong in
my sleep,and I remember an incildentinthst
connection that was the means of nmy' brea-
king the habit.There was a steep precipi=.~«|
tice bank ran through the “ownship about
50 feet high. Our school was an a plateau
near the edge of this ridge. On the edge of J
of this ridge grew a large tree with bran-
ches hanging over the precipice.and on: the
outer part of one branch was & crow,s nest,
Boys 1llke we were all anxious to get that
ctows nedt. We had all tried it several ti-
mes ,but as we wpuld crawl out towards the
nest the limb would bend downgothat we wou-
1d back up.I wae so anxious to beat the ot-
her boys,that I evidently had dreamed about -
1t ,for I rose in my sleep,and walked .to the |
tree about 20 rods,climbed up the tree,and e
got the nest,brought it home and placed it |
under & tin dish in the kitchen and went to
bed. In the morning 1 knew that I had been
up for my clojhes were on,but I could not
penember my dream,and did not know what I
nad done t1ll the woman of the house found
the nest under the tin dish.I then realised
what & risk I had run.Il decided to try and
break off the habit.

1849
My father did not like that part of the cou-
ntry,and came back to Toronro,where we 1liv-
ed in a small house on Shutter street, He
engaged in shoemaking and I went to school. |
The teacher st@#rted me in #lgebra.l was ve- )
ry fond of mathematics and when I started in
algebra,l was so delighted with 1t that ny
father would take the book out of my hand
and send me out to play We staid in Toronto
for two years,and i was making good progr-
ess in ny studles .
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1851 9 |
- My father secureg a sgchool in the Lownship
of Pcarboro about 1& miles from Toronto. |
The only place we could get to live in was
an-old log houdeabout half a nile from any
nelghbour, and 1t' was about the same dista-
nce from the school.l was farther in my st
udies than any in the school,so I did not
© go into any of the classes, but kept at ny
spudies alone. I was studting algebra ,Zu-
clid and Mensuration,and ny father was not U
conversant with these subjects. &n inport-
ant event happened this summer. It was very
dry and a fire broke out among the stumps
in the field where our house was.Il staid at
home for several days to watch and put out
new fires that would break out and run in ©.
the grass. One day as I was fighting the
fire in the grass,it ran into a hollow dead
tree,and roared up the inside of the old
stump,and threw fire pleces on to the roof
of our house.The shingles being so dry cau-
~ght at once and the first thing I saw was |
the roof on fire. I ran into the house and
up SQairsand saw the whole roof was on fire
I commencéd to pull the furniture and things
outthat * could.Some of the things were
neavy for a boy,but I seemed to tet them out,
I could not get them far fron the house but
I carried out the blankets off the bed and
threw them on the furniture. the heat was
intense.The upper floor fell down a few mi-
nutes after I came out the last time. Lvery
thing was out before any of the neighbours
came running down. They foungl me laying on
the gbound completely exhausted . My father
secured anothe shantyin another part of the
section .During this Fall my eyesight gave
out,and I was taked to the Hosnital in To-
ronto. iy case seemed to puzzel the doctors
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Wy eye appeared clear,but the trouble was
at the back of the gight.Nearly all the
medical students were called to see me I
could just distinguish night from day. I
could hear their consultations. They dec-
ided tomake an experdment by cupping me on
the back of the neck with 12 lances and
then with burned liquor in the glassgses th-
ey drew by suction those glasses full sev
eral times . At the same time they put 6
leeches on each temple ,and as fast as they
were filled they put another batch on.

In this way they kept me bleeding till ab-
out 5 P.M.s0 that when 1 got out of bed
to change my clothes I could not stand al-
one. Whilst this was going on I remember
Dr Burng the ninister of 5t Andrew,s chu-
rc¢h who was a friend of my father,s come
to sec me and staid about an hour.The next
day I could see the shadow of a man pass-
ing before me,and nmy sight gradually inm-
proved . You mey immagine how overjoyed I
was . I was I think about 2 months in the
hospltaland went hone.lt wag severalrnmon-
ths before my sight was as good as before.
I did no studying the balance of the year

1852 :
Being now in my l4th _ear,after consulting
ny father ,I decided that I would strike
out and do something to earn money for my-
gelf.I packed all my clothes in a colored
pocket handerchief ,put a stick thpough it
and threw it over my shoulder walked to
Toronto about 14 miles. I got a position
in a grocery store on longe street kept by
a Mr Smith. e did a large business. My
wages was $3.00 a month and my board.
It was at this time that the great Cholera
epidemic struck Toronto.Every day you could



gee dray loads of cofflns pass the storé1
golng to the cemetry. They were burled a
few Asurs after @eath. I belleve thore wee
. nany buried before they were dead. There
was a general demand for Hennesy Brandy as
a quick remedy to check the Cholera.We sold
~a great nany bottleddInthe fall Mr Smith dld
a lot of pork packing in the cellar,fe pla-
ced me there to help the packer. Mr Jaffary
I think a brother -in law became assoclated
with Mr Smith. Pe was after connected with
the Globe.The work in the cellar handllng the
neavy pork sides was too heavy for ne. I was
then set to delivering goods with a hand cart
on the sidewalk,and many a time I would be
delivering goods untill lMédnight, having to
wake up people ,and often encountering sav-
age dogs,of which I was very much afraid. I
decided to find another situation.
1853
I left Smith,s employ and got a position
with Magnas Shewan who kept a hook store in
the S5t Lawrence Arcade.l got the same pay as
at Smiths . It was my duty at first to take
e stall in the arcade, where I would bhe
selling papers,magizines ,novels &cc
I would go first thing in the morning to tihe
printing officesViz The Banner( now the Globe)
The Leader ( now the Mail and Empire )and
- finslly to a Yathlic paper. In each of these
offices I would go direct to the old Washia,
ngton press and count the number of papers
as they come off the press at each of thenm
for my store and carry them on my arm to the
store,fold them up ready for sale. I was wi-
-th Mr Shewanall winter. le associated with
him a relatiVe ,who was a very donmineering
nan,and I did not like him.So I decided in

the spring tof wewld try to get a position
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on a farm. I walked out about 10 niles
on the Kingston road and hired with a far-
mer by the name David Farrell for a year

for $40.00 .and my board.He had a 200 acx. |

~-re farm running down to Lake Ontario. He
had an old man who did all the chore work
and also a young man who did teaming. I to
took hold and practically did a man,s work
I wag strong and active. Mr Farrell was tle

thefirst man in that setilement that bought

a reaper. He went to Toronto on saturday
and brought 1t home. He had contracted wlith
with the farmers in the community to cut
their grain for do much an acre. So on the
Sunday after he had brought it home there
were a lot of the farmers came to see the
machine. It simply cut the graln and by a
reel threw the grain on the table of the
nmachine, While a man standing in a place oh
the end. of themachine in a box made with
scantling so that he would not fall off if
the machine was Jostlxd .Then with a long
three tined wooden fork he threw off the
grain in a sheaf . I was quite-interested
in it when Mr Farrell said to me John do
you think you could throw the sheaves of %
I sais I would like to try it . “e said you

ullget a chance . As soon as the harvest opened

ho started in his own fields I was put in
the box to throw off sheaves,l soon got in-
" tothe way of doing it good. ée would change
his horses every two hours,and kept right
on steadily. When he was cutting for others
' he never stopped till he finished a field.
even if it was after dark.I have known hinm
to keep cutting till after 10 O clock at
night. We would hear the binders hollowing
to each obther as they followed the reaper.

He cut a good many hundreds of acres of graln
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Mr Farrell had a good sized orchard ,and 1ni
the fall he started 2 teams drawing Apples
in bar®ls into Toronto to sell them. I drev
one team. After the fruit geason he sent my
gelf amd the young man to the woods to cut |
cordwood for sale next winters—sate in the |
City.I eould cut down the trees ,cut then iﬁm
to Rft logs ,split and pile & cords of wood|
in Ja day.fhat wood would be hauled up to |
fhe barn to dry during thr surmer. After the
new year he started 3 teams to haul the dry
~wood into the cityfor sale.%e sold a load of
wood $5.00 We drove into St Lawrence narket)
put our horees in a hotel stable,and waitedg
t111 we cot a customer. As fast as we sold |
the deamster got his horses and delivered |
the wood. We would get up in the morning ab=
out 4 o clock,feed our horses,load our slelg:
ghswith wood,The other men helped me to load
nine, Get our breakfast,and would be in Tore -
~ontobefore daylight.It was a cold ride sitt-
ing on the top of a load of wood,and also a
cold jobstanding in the market. If it was a'v
very cold‘When soing in we would stop at a |
hotel about halfwayand there would find a big
fire of cordwood. The men with me were addi-
cted to drinking Biquor, I wpuld take a .|
glass of glnger ale,and sonetimes they wougd
get the bartender to put some liquor in ny |
glass ,but when I tasted it + would tell the
man that is not nmy ginger ale and make ne |
¢ another.It was sonmetimes difficult to get |
my companions to start for home,They liked to |
hang about the hotel drinking. I have knowr
us to start late to drive hone,my tean ahead
the other twofollowing with the men in the |

- 8leighs laying drunk.In such cases I Would;

put out all of the teans in the stable ang
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say nothing.Mrs Farrell generally staid up
till we got home.The boss knowing the fau-
1lts of. the other men told them that when 1 -
they s0ld their load of wood they were to
glve me the nmoney, So when we got home I
always gave the money to Mrs Farrell
FOREIGN NzWS ITEMS -
The Crimean war between Russia and Burkey L, 4
Turkey was helped by Zngland and -France. |

1854 :

During this winter after we quit hauling wo=d
od ,I and one of the men thrashed a lot of
peaswith the Fhail. In the spring my year w.
wag up and we had a settlement. Mrs Farrell
taxed me $4.00 for washing. I did not think
ghe should have done so ,but sald nothing.
I had now and then got a little money from
lMr Farrell,bulhe still owed me 22 dollards.
‘He paid me and I walked into Toronpo and
bought a sult of clothes and a palr of boots
and walked back the next day.

. FOREIGN ITEMS
The great hattles of Balaklava and Inkerman
of the Crimean war took place.In one theBri-
tish brigade was nearly annihllliated.
Lord Elgin negotiated a reprosity treaty with
ithe United States.

1855

lMr Farrell aske me if I would work for him
for % montha through the summer,and offered
me $7.00 a momth.l agreed to do so I worked
on the farm alls surmer . During this time
ny father was teaching school in Markham vil-
age. Me had rented one half of a house Dboth

ories.and after settling up with Mr Farrell

t
i went to my father, intending to go to school
in the wintér.We had our bedroom In the front

roori and our kitchen in the rear.
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' William PEBRY the arctic explorer died.

I staid a1l wiR€€rwith my fathér and went %o
school.I was studying alone on the subjects
upon which I would be examined for a teacher

In the spring we were wakened by the cry of

fire .When I looked up I could see the flumes
coming through the kitchen window.We both .-~

Jumped up.My father gob excited and could
'not find his clothes. I kept qaite cool,
B0l nmy clothes on and went out at the back

“doorto see yhe situation. I told my father

that the house was doomed and we began to
gave what we could .I went upstairs and so=i

-on had everthing hauvled to the top of the

stairs and slid down. The neighbours were
carrying everthing out. There was no fire
protection in the village..We got another

mar and were settled in a few days. In the spr-

ing I decided I would %try and get work on

- a farm to make some money.Il walked ep the

8th concession and enf@azed with a Mr Koch
a German farmer for the summer for #15.00
a month. He and his wife were very fine pe-
ople . They had no children One day in the

Oat,s harvest { asked him if I could have a
_ %ouple of days off.he aftenthinking said

Johnny you know we are very busy" I said
I know and did not like to ask you,but I woil
Would like to get two days. He asked me why
1 wanted“and where was I goinﬁ. I did not
like to tell him,but finally told hinm I
wanted to go and stand for examination for
& s8chool teacher. He looked at me and said
what you & school teacher. Do you think
Jou can stand the examination. I said I
would like to try. He asked where I wag
going. I told him I was going to New Warket

cand was going to walkthe 16 miles. ke thought



16
awhile and then sald . Well if that 1is

what you want to get off #or,you can take
ny horse and buggy and drive to New Market
and come back when you can.I thought that
wag very kind of him and I thanked him very
nuch.I stood my examination and got a 2nd
class certificate good for 2 years. Mr Koch
was Just as much pleased as I waswhen I told
him. Next fall I heard that there was to be
a vacancy in the district. I applied for the
position. It was the small brick school ab-
out a mile northof Markham village. It app-
eared that the presentfﬁﬁﬁia not keep the
gchool in proper discipline. In those days
the young men on the farms went to school to
study principally Reading Writing and Arith-
matic.and as a rule were hard to manage.
They had got the upper hand of the present
teacher. When the people of the district he-
ard that I was appointed to teachthe next
year,and they knew me as I was working in
the district. They objected on account of
ny age,and said I could not manage that sch~
ool. I wag very boyish looking.However the

trustees stood by the agreement,and 1t was
gettled thatl was to take charge of the sc-

hoolthe first day of January next. My sal-

ary was to he $300.00 for the year. .

I was now 18 years of age.Before ny year.
begen I will state That my father was acguu.
ainted with the Urquhart fanily who had

sons ans 2 daughters.They had known my fats

her in $cotland.They had come from Scotland

several years bhefore.Mr Urquhart had a wagg-

-on shop in Markhsm village but before I be-

gan to teach they had noved to Stouffville

and followed the same business there, Mrs
Urquhart was a fine christlan wonan,and was
really a4 mother to me in many ways. one day
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she told me that my mother had not dled
as I had supposed,but that for some reason
ny father and mother had mutually agreedto
part.My father was to take me with hip,and
ny mother was tolteep my sister. This was
wonderful news to me.She did not know 1if my
nother was alive or not.I had oftenasked
ny father to tell me something about his
family history,but he always put me off by
saying that some day he would tell me all
a bout 1it,The above informatiom Mrs Urquh-
art gave me was no doubt the reason he put
me off.I knew he kept up coprespondence
with friends in the old country,and thought
that if my mother was still living he would
let me know -
. FORIEGN ITEM
The Crimean war ended this year.

1857
After the new year I entered into my respo-
neibilities of teaching schbol.The 1little
brick school house one nile north of Mark-
ham villagewas an old fashlioned bullding.
Inside it had two rows offi desks,one on each
side of the room with the ends agalnst the
wall.each deak would accommodate 3Fupils,
The girls on one side and the boys on the
otherside. In the miffle of the room was &
large box stove for burning wood.There were
two benches about 8 ft long ,one on each
side of the stove,for the children to get
warmed before school opened. I would go to
the schoolabout 8 oclock,put a good fire
in the stove and sweep out the floor.The
school would hold about 40 pupils. Some of
the children would come about 2 miles,and

the small chlildren would bhe pretty cold.
Often I would take off their mittens and rub



18
thelr fingers to get the blood in circul-
. ation.On the first morning I counted amonq
Jurspupils 16 all older and larger than ny self
- and there were some strong sturdy young men
from the farms.I atronce let them know that
I must have order,and strict discipline.
I soon got the school in good working order
and the scholars seemed to be doing well.
bout the middle of the winter Mr Koch a
. dand a Mr Hiesy whom I knew well’came to the
school Just as I was dismissing it for the
day,and asked.me if I could arrange it that
they could come to learn arithmatic, That
they would like very much to dosso. I arr-
| anged to give them a deskin front of mine
which was at one of the room. So they came
and I gave them lessons ofi arithnatic.
I had one pupil named Steward ,who was not
e bad boy but mischieveous,and interfering
with some of the smaller boys. I had warned
- him if he did not behave himself he would
have to leave the school.Ope day early in
~the springlir Hiesysaid he wanted to see nme
after school. When I had dismissed the schol
ars he told me thatthere was trouble brew-
ing amongst a few of the larger pupils,But
sald Just keep a stiff lip,and if it conmes
to a head you Just glve a wink and I will
knock the heads of any two pf these boys
together. he was A man that would weigh
over 200 1bs:boon after this the same boy
was agaln naking trouble for,one of the yo-
-unger boys in his desk.Il walked sown to hinm
and told him distinetly that I f I saw any
more of that he would have to pack his bo-
ks and go home.The next day the game thing
thing occurred .I walked down,;ﬁﬁ? 1 had

glven him warning and pulling out my watch
sald I will give you Just 5 ninutes topack
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his books and leave the school. ®e looked |
obstinate.I looked him square in the face
1T you refluse I will take youby the collar
and put you out.I mean what I sayThg time 1s
nearly up. He commenced to pack hisY8Ad rose
up to go. I stopped himand talked ve€ry kindly
ly that I was very svwy to deprive him of
an education,but we must have dlscipline |
in the school,and that if he would give a
positive promise that he would behave him-
self and let the qﬁper scholars alone I will
give you another.” He made me a promise that
he would behave himself in the future, He.
kept his promise and was one of my bestbe-
haved scholars in school.Il had no nore ‘
trouble about discipline. When the superin
tendent the rev Mr ‘Hill came in the fall
to examine the school,he complimented ne
on the proficiency of my scholars. During
the year I was studying in my spare time
for advamcement and again went to the tea-
chers exanination and zot a first class B
certificate good for X years F
1858 |
I taught the same school this year. I again
went to the teachers examinatiom and got a
18t class’certificate for 1ife. The super-
intendent told my fagher thatl was the you-
ngest teacher in the county that had a life
certificate. This year I also took two le-
ssons a week in Latin and Greek from Dr
Crowel wib was the principal of the Grammer
school. {e charged me §1.00 a lesson |
The Atlantic' oAbla wis Yaid

Instead of teaching this' I had intended to
go to the Grammer school for a year.
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My father went to Toronto to teach a priva-
te school. I engaged board at Mrs whites..
Mr Crowel put me in the Latin and Greek cl-
asses wnere the students Jjad been for two
years ,and I had only my private lessons.l
wa.g away behind and*fé study very hard on
these subjects. I rdrely took over 4 hours
sleep and often less.With the other subjects
thad no trouble. In fact Mr Crowelfrequent’
ly gave me the Algrbra and other mathematil
cal clasges to teach. He _was an excellent
teacher in the -languages,but I pften thought
I was his superior in Mathematics. When any
of the students went to him for explanation
on any of these subjects,He would geberally

gend them down to me . My over sLud¥(ruring
this ¥ear was running ne downso that some of

ny friends thought I was going into consu-
mption. however at the end of the % months
term I got a certificate that I was at the
head of ny classes. Just then the teacher
of the school on the 9th concession was dis-
nissed .I do not remember the cause,but one
of the trustees came and offered me the sch-
oolfor the balance of the year at the salary
of $400.00 per year. I had intended continu
ing at the Grammer school for the whole yeapr
bt in duty to my health I thought it best
_to bake the offer. So I took charge of that
school. My ola 8cholar Frank Wootten was
teaching on the lﬁth concesslon and we boara:
ded at the sane plaue Mrg Burks, and I had
about one and a half miles to walklto nmy
sxhool. I had a very pleasant year half year
In U.5. John ng§§E§geIg%giishinist was hung
Lord Macaulley the English historian dled
The Victoria bridge near montreal was bullt
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1860

I -engaged to teach the same school for th-
is year ,at a salary of $400.00.I had a
pPleasant year,and regaiined my former hea-
1th.Diring the last two years I had become
very intimately acquainted with the David
Wismer family.2 of their boys and 4 of their
glrls went to school to me when I taught in
the 1little brick schoolhouse.l was made very
Welcome to thir home whenever I went.and
the result was that I became engaged to
thelr daughter Barbara,who had been one of
my pupils.On the 29th day of November we
were married. Before the end of the year
I had made an agreement to teach the school
in the village of $touffville at a salary
of §400,00 .I had rented a house from a
Mr Leany,During the Christmas holidays we
noved into our house there and began the
married life.
o CURRENT ITEMS
“he Prince of Wales visited Canada.
Abraham Lincoln was elected President Of U.S.

1861
The school in Stouffville was a large one,
60 pupils and no assistant.I was getting
the largest salary of any teacher in the
district. I made a little extra by giving
private lessong in batin to some outsiders,
There lived/my"Wik,ssister who was married
to Mr Augustus von Buseck a harness maker
and a proninent man in the village. And he had
Partner Eli Wismer a brotherof nmy wife. All
thies made it very pleasant for us. Also Mr
and Mrs Urquhart who nmoved from Markham were
here. Before the end of the year I had the
offer of my former 9th cornicessionschool,and
?n account of the size of my present school

S W LR T
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and that the trustees dld not work harm-
oniously I decided to accept the offer.
While here I organised a large ficnic to
Misselman,s lake. 10 other surrounding sch-
ools Joined ,and we had a grand procession
of over @ miles in length.This plcnlic was ru
remembered for many years.

This year my father came for a visit from
Toronfo,and showed me & letter from afriend
in Scotland telling him that his wife (my
mother) had died. This was & surprise to me
and I felt a little annoyed that he had not
told me before that my mother was allve and
had not died when I was young as I was led
to believe.lle did not make any explanation
but told me he wished to marry a schoolmanm
in Toronto,and wished me %o be present. I
went to Loronto and was present at my father
er,s wedding. I acted as Groom,s -man.tere
is a peculiar statement®The first wedding

I ever attended was my own,and the second
was my father,s™ On the 27th day of Novem-
ber my damghter Florence was born in Stou-

fiville
CURRENT ITEMS
The American civil war began.
William Lyor:Madkenzieé died
Prince Albert husband of Queen Victoria died

1862

I was now beaching the smae school 1 had
taught a year ago.The scholars were qulte
familiar and I had a pleasant year, Mr Hebry
Hand who was teaching the 10th concession
school,and frequently visited us.He becane
acqualinted with my wif,s sister Lydia Wismer
The result was that about the end of the
year he and she got marrled. Also another
sister Albertina was married todJames Logle
a schoolteacher in the towmship of Osprey.

boryay
fefhe
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During this year Mr Hand and I played
chess,and beczme pretty good playeps. My |
health seemed Talling ,and the Dr advieed
me to take a year off,and get somethlng |
that would give me more outdoor work,I
took his advice and notified my trustees
of mﬂ intention.I advised my brbdther -=in
law My Handto apply for the position so
thathe could take the same house I was in
My wife declded to go to her mothers while
I was trying the insurance business.l en-
aged for a Mr Willis of the village of
ﬁarkham.l was to go down to the county of
Hastings,and write insursnce for him.It
was fire insurance.l had been in the hab-
-1t of writing Life Insurance for an agent
in Markham ,and grtting %15 of the Pre-
-nium. Beflore the end of the year I went
up several times to Stouffville and won
the champlonshlp on severaly games of chess
During the Christmas holidays Mr Hand mo-
ved intomy house,and I moved some of ny
affects to my Father=in Laws place,leaving
considerable of themwyith Mr Hand.
CURRENT ITEMS
Bismark became Prime Minister of Pruasia
Lincoln issued his Negro emancipation act

1863

Directly after New Yearl left my wife at
Psn mother,s and rode my horse to Whitby,and
and put him in a car for Belleville ,and
arrived there at midnight the next day,and
put up at a farmer,s hotel. Next morning |
I was off for insurance,but it was bitter
cold riding on horseback. I worked hard
for a couple of days and only got two
applications.The trouble was that about

two years b e g
_y efore an 1nsuranee,of A Angpta..
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Company wrote up & lot of business in that
district,and only a short time ago & houw::
8e of one of the leading men of the con-
nunity was burned down and on account of
sone technicality he did not get hid in-
gurances Ewéry farmer condemned all ins-
urance agents as frauds.So one evening I
drove into thls farmer,s place and asked
if he could give lodging for myself and
horse and I would pay him.He very kindly
told his man to take my horse and look afa:
ter him. We spent a very pleasant evening.
finally I introduced the insurance,but his
wife was dead opposed to 1t. Next morning
I tried againbut no use.The next day I
found the same'difficulty amongst the far-
mers. S0 I decided that I must conquer
this opposition or give up the job.One
forenoon I drove into this mans place,and
found him splitting wood in the shed.Il
sald to him,I want your nanme on an appli-
cation for insurance on your house,and I
will pay the first year,s premium out of
my own pocket. I showed my reason for this
and we talked the matter a little whille
He consented and we went into the house.
I really had his applicatlon written up.
It only reqiired only his signature and
answers to afew questions . The wife cane !
inand asked what we were déding. I told
I was going to insure her house and would
pay myself the first year,s premium. She
pitched right into mecalll _Insurance
agents every thing that Wag%g§°d-1 shoved
the application over to the “husband ,he
signed I grabbed it and ran for the door
the woman storming at me.The next two we-
eks I did a good business.for I would show
the man,s signature to an application,that
seemed to be enough to satisfly them.
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but it was bitter cold riding on horse-
back,and my horse in smee way became lane,
and I decided to give up the Job. I sold my
horse ,and went into Torontoand engaged
with va small candy manufacturer by the
name of Davie.Il was to sell his candles to
stores in the towns on the Grand Trunk . 1
started and canvassed all the stores as far
east as Kingston,and did very well,but Mr
Bevis would not send me my commlssion.Toweks
ny money pan outl walked between many of
the stations ,and onli took 2 meals a day.
When I got as far as Kingston I Just had
enough money to take me home. So I took the
next train and came to Toronto. MrDavis
gaid he would not pay any commission till he
is money for the goods . We had some words.
came to the conclusion thathe was a shar.
~per. and also came to the concluslon that
séhool tea¢herb.dé not know nuch ahout bus-
iness in the business world,and that I w as
paying dear for my experience. I then struck
‘out and wrote fire insurance for my former
employer Mr Willis in the several towns
and villages in the county and amongst the
farmer,s,and did real well.Of course dr
Willis readily paid me my cormission.
My wif,s brother Fhilemon was goilng for a
trip to Osprey where my wife had 2 married
slasters. I thought I would go up with hinm.
My wif,s brother Enos drove us to Richmond
Hillwhere we took train to Nottawasago
and we walked to John,Burks20 milesand got
there in the evening.His wife was a sister
of my wife.FThere was also in the village
of Fevershamnear by another sister married
to to James Logle. We stopped with then
about 2 weeks,and then walked back to the Ry
for home.When we got home I found that ny
wife had the black throatand was quite 111
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for some days.When well I told her that
Jomn Burke had made a propositionfor he |
and L to start a store in Feversham vill-
age,and as he had a farm he was to be the
gsecurity to the wholesale house for the
goods bought. My wife thought we mighttiry
it. So I s0ld a lot of my things,and left
my bookcasewlith my brother<in law Henry
Hand.We went up to Osprey in April.John
Burk met us at Stayner and took our things
into Osprey in a waggon. We arrived at Mr
Hogle,s about Midnight.For a couple of
weeks we discussed the stope business.l
gecured a bullding in preparing for the
event.ln the meantime I was helping Mr
burk on the farm,abd bullt a fence around
4y Logle,s place.All this did me good ph-
ysically. Mr Burk falled to satisfy the
wholegale house to furnish the store on
his security,and the whole scheme fell th-
rough,and I had a house on my hands,ow-
ever I afterwards took Mr Fry a tailor in
Markham up to Osprey and sold him the houee
~se. My wife and I were stopping with Mr
Logie.I told her I would go down to Toronto
and try to get something to do,and I would
send foe her.l packed my grip and walked
the <0 miles to the train,and went to my
father,s in Toronto. This was about the
middle of June.l tramped the streets for
several days,but could get nothingthat
would give me sufficient to keep me and
ny wife.lMy Father bought a small grocery
store.l finally got a settlement with Mr
Davis by taking what he owed me out 1n
Candy for the store. We had just got sta-
rted keeping storein about two weeka,when
who should come inbut Enos my wif,s bro-
ther and my brother <in law Henry Hand.
Hetold me that there was to be a vacancy
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in the school at Ringwood a few miles fron
Stouffville,and if I applied I would likely
get 1t.50 I went back with them and made &
an application for the Ringqood schooland |
got it at $200.00 for the balance of the |
year. I then sent money to my wife to come
to Stouffville,where I was stopping with her
‘sister Mrs Buseck.l drove to New Market to

meet her Which I did, and we boarded with
Mrs Buseck jusli3 miles from my school.
Mr Buseck also had a store ,and I posted
his books at night.There were two weeks
vacation in July,and I went out among the
farmers and worked in the harvest flelds.
I took a couple of days and drove up to
Mariposa to serve some sunmons on witnesses
for my father“ih lawon a suite he had with
his brother who claimed he owmed the farm
he had been 1living”since his father died.
I bought the wood on an acre of landin a
woods between 8touffville and Rengwood.
and hired a man to cut it into logs, I wo-
-uld get up in the mornihg and after bre-
akfast go to the woods and chop till near
school time .then again after school till
quitting time.When I had all the wood cut
into logs.Thenl hired a sawing machine and
ha4 the logs cut Iinto Stove lengthe and split
and then hired a man to haul the stove wood
into the villages and sell it.I cleared
$50.00 after paying all expences. Of course
it was hard work.. This fall I engaged to
teach the school in Markham vbllage.
CURRENT ITEMS
Lincoln emancipated the negro slaves in U.S
Albert Edward Prince of wales married Al-
exandra daughter of Christian IV Denmark
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1864

The school in Markham was a large one about
60 in nimberand no assistant,but I got al-
ong wellwith the help ofnonitora In Feb nmy
son Arther was born.During the winter a man_
by the name ofA.J.Brown who had run away
from the U.S.to escape being drafted into
the war.ily brother -inlaw brought himdown.
he had been working among the farmers.I fo-
und he was a graduate of Victoria college
in Ontartio,He wae good in Mathematics.I th
ought Imight help him.I gave hin the curric-
ulum necesgsary for being & teacher here and
‘sent him to stand his examinatlon and he
got a second class BI then gave him a letter
to the trusrees of the Ringwood school,and |
he made an agreement to teach that school |
nexy year. This year I again boughy¥ the 5
wood on an acre oﬁ bush and hied a manto ‘
cut it into logs. I also as before went out |
¢liopped before and after school.then had it
- cutup and split into stove wood, and my {
brother =un law Enos hauled it into the f
village and sold it I cleared on this about”
 $70.00 In the sult my Father-inlaw had with |
his brother Henry Who claimed he had a deedf
for the farm My Father-in law was now liv- |
ing on .lt was necessary to serve fenry wi-
smer with a summons to appear at court but;
" he could not be found .He was evading ser- |
~vice.buring the holidays at Easter Itold m _
ny Fathertinlaw I would try and findhim. |
I heard he nad been seen 1n a place called |
Jordan where there were a number of Wismer |
fanmilies. I bought a disguise in Toronto
"a nustauch and long beard because he knew
me and if he saw me he would dodge me I |
took train for Jdordan,and atogped at a Wiem)
ymer place whom I heard would be friendly i

|:
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They treabted me very kindly.l made a conz
fident of them,and told them ny nlsslon.
I was told that Henry Wismer was a few |
days before treating sogpe slck horses ab-
out 10 miles out. ?e professed to be a
veternary surgedn.l stabtrd on foot and a
askegfl for the horse doctor at every farm
t111 I got on his track a nd reached the
house he was in. I enquired of the lady
if the horse doctor was in,and she, gent,|
me into the room where he was.I had the.
done up an envelope like a letter. I toldm=
that there was a man down 1ln the village
had a sick horse and wanted him to cone
down.l then handedthe summons and also
$10 for expenses. he looked surprised.He
did not know Te,hupi heard that he suspear
.cted 1t was 4. He appeared at court ,and
was asked to show his deed.When he did it
was shown thatthe paper mark ilmpringed on
sheet the deed was writen on 6 was not made
111 agter the death of his father.The wi-
tnesses were both dead. The court ruled
that the deed was a forgery..My father-in
law won his case bulhe didnot prosecute his
brother. During the summer holidays I made
a trip to Erie Pennsylvanlia to see some of
Buseck,s relatives.l stopped all night in
Buffalinwghanging ny noney into American.
money,l was astonished that I got for my
$25.00 I-get $2.50 for each dollar of nine.
When I came back I traded my horse to Mr
Von Buseck for an organ and a sewing mach-
ine. COricket was the maln outdoor game at
this time.,and I took a great Interest in
it. In the fall of this year I had some ;
difficulty with Dr Dohertyone of the trus-

tees .I threatened to enter a suit againét
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him. My friends advised an arbitration.

I however realised he being a trustee my
Position as teacher would not be very plem
asent. So I notified my trustees that at
the end of the year 1 would resign.
This year My father had a son born to him
whom he called Thomas. |
FOREIGN ITEMS !

Prugsia made war with Denmark and annexed
Scgwick flolstein giving the Keil canal %o
FPrugsia. , -
A swlss gentleman formed red cross societies

Sherman,s march to the sea.

The sinking of the Alabama.

The American war ended.

1865
Last year I had engaged to teach the Cali-
fornia school on the 10th concession. My
brother=-in law Henry Hand was teaching the
@¥h concesionput was living in the vill-
age .1 had a difficult in getting & house
I had to take ap old log house on an un-
occupied farm. 4t was a cold hoyse ,and
was Infected by rats,so nmuch so thatoften
1 had to drive them off the bed,and one
time one of them nibbled at my toes.The
rent was only $5.pp ,and the living was
cheap. I bought a quarter of beel 110 1bs
for $6.o» .I hung 1t out in the shed,and
A frozego hard that 1 had to take the axe to
8lice the meat off . Eggs in the summer v~
was 10 centsa dozen,butter 12 cts per Lb ,
sugawas high 8 1bs for a $1.00 ,Tea §1.25
a 1b. I attended the annual meeting of the
ligrkham school to defend myself on the ac-
cusations of Dr Doherty.A motion was passed
. unaninously clearing me in every case. the
‘arbitrators met during the month and gave

]

%
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thelr verdict in my favour. As in previous
years I bought an acre of wood and hired a :
pan to cut it into logs.l chopped myself |
in the mornings and after school.l mad ab-
-out §75.00 and that helped a lot.In the
spring I bought a cow 80 as to have some
m,ilk and butter.During the vacation in July
and august I worked amomf the farmers,and
. in this way saved a littlemoney.In the sum-
mer the trustees of the Glasgow schoolin
the township of Uxbridge wanted to engage
ne for the next year,but it was too early
in the season.Pesides my certificate was
only good forthe county of *ork. The exah-
~ination for teachers for the county of Ux-
bridge was soon to be held ,and I decided
to take 1¥. I took Brown with me and we b=
oth wrote. My average was 92.6% and Brown,s
72.5%.1 got a first class certificate.

Next winter instead of remaining in the old
cold house,Il rented a house in Stouffville
5 miles away ,and walked back and forth
every day to the school. Next year my bro-
ther “in law Mr Buseck,bought the Henry wis-
ner farm,which had to be sold on account of
his losing his sult with his brothewny Fat-
her-in law. We got the 50 acres cheap.
About this time the Pennsylvania oilexcite-
ment had reached Canada,and several people
were going there. I was feeling thatschool
teaching was too slow for a man to make
-much advancement in life.and concluded that
1f a man continued many yearsat.school te-
aching he would be fit for nothing else.
S0 I made up my mind thatl would make an
effort 1in the budiness world,and notified
ny trustees thatl would not teach next Yesr.

They secured my old student Frank Wootte
n
to take 1t.I go1g Oy cow horse ang buggyto
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ralse what noney I could.l posted Mr Bus-
eck, s books,and arranged for my wife and
children to stay at her father,s when I
would be away. My brother-in law Enos Wis-
mer got married to Jamima Young,and decis
-ided to go with me to the oll country.
FOREIGN ITEMS
Abraham fiincola re-elected president ofU.S,
General Lee of .the southern states surren
dered . .
Lincoln assasinated by J.W.Booth
The Fenian insurection in Ireland.

1866 :
This was a year of speculation.As Enos Wis
smer was going with me,his father ralsed
some money for him. And on Jan .10th we
took train for Pithole in Pennsylvanla and
arrived there in due time. This place grew
up like a mushroom. and I thought that all
the rough element in the country had seti-
led there. There -were free and easy saloons
in every corner ,with dancing girls and ga-
mblibg rooms running all the night. and
every man carried a reévolver in his boot-
leg.. Housessprang up in the night.Direct-
1y opposite ‘the house I was boarding in I
gsaw & covered waggon stop on the other slde
of the street. There were 2 men 2 women
and some children together with boxes bed-
ding and other house hold goods. They ca-
mped a little before dark,and soon after
there were several loads of lumber delivesw
red.They worked all night and when I looked
out in the morning there was &a house bullt
and all moved into it. Of course it was onl
ly a shack of a houselike many others.When
1t ralned the streets were regular bogs of
mud.on several instances horses drawing
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heavy loadssank deep in their strugglesjtq

- getout,had to be knocked in the head and |

left till they were tramped out of sight.

' Wages were high ,Ateam would not haul a lo-

.~ ad a block for less than $5.00. We met a |
number of Canadians there.A&ter a few days
we went to West Hickorya feWw nmiles awaygjg
prospect for oil.Enos got work at something

 andl was lookinh for sméthing to do.We to-
-0k a contract from a mill manto put a lo
of cordwood from the top of a mountain to
the valley below near the mill.We constr-|
ucted a shutewlth some timbers to slide |
the wood thethe brink of the precipiceso |
that 1t would land at the bottom near the

- mill,But the wood had to be carried on the

- shoulders to the shute,and some of it gu-|

1%& a distance.which was heavy tiresome wo-
k. In about two weeks we finished the Yob
putting over 100 cords of wood.We did fairly

- well.®e had some difficulty in getting our
soney,but we finally got a settlement. We
took a few days rest. Enos got other work
and I thought I would try and speculate in
oll. I had 1little cash,but I put on a bold
face. I went down in the valley where there
dozens of flowing wells. The United States
well flowed 2000 barrels of oil a day, I |
called at every oil well and asked the pre-
ice of o0il. They would ask me how nuch I |
wanted.l would boldly reply 1000 barrels |
The usual price quoted me was $3.75 but the’

Homedon well quoted $3.50 I did not know |

the cause of the difference. I asked for|
an option for 1000 Brls till tomorrow noon
the conditions were to pay for the oil as |
it was taken away. The option was granted |

Next morning I got up earlyand walked over

the mountain 7 milesto the nearest RY denot
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- where an oil man named Yost had an office
I agsked him the price of oll.He asked me
from what well I answered +the Homedon.

he replied Light. I then knew the xause of

' the difference in price. I sold him the _

1000 brlshe to furnish the bris.I was to |
be paid for the oil as it was deliveredl

 He told me of two menwho had just finished

- a contract.I found thé menand we made a »
bargain at 60 cts a brl..they carry 6 brls

and make two trips a day I was making a

a clear 60 cts a brl.I told them to be at

Homedon well tomorroy morning and I would

load them.I had in money a little more than
would load the two teams.l rushed the oil

over as fast as I could. When my moneygal-

-ned I put on another team,so tha¥ befdre I

finished the contract I was running 8 teams

For the first few days I walked back and

and forth to collect my money as the oll was

delibered, but I hired a tesm driven Dby a

Canadian from FPickerin ont. I knew his pe-

ople and I thought I could trust him. So [l

he collected the money every day and brought

it to mel found him quite rellable.

One night when He called he told me he did
not get any money that the remittance from
Hew Yorkdid not arrive. This was a serlous
matter for me,for my teams wlll be at the
well next morning to be loaded and I had no
not the money to load them ,and I was not
sure if the man at the well would trust me.

In theeveing I was walking up and down the

hotelretunda thinking what I would do.
aboul a week before this I became acquawn-

~ted with an old grey headedgentleman.He
did not seem to have any business nut we
| had many chats together. ®e notice mewalk-
' ing back and forth in the rotunda and called
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me and sald Mr Milne "I can see that there
is something troubling you. "I went over
" to him and decided I would tell him whatl
was troubled.about . I told himall about
| it .Well he s8id you will get your money
| I said yes but That will not load my teams
| in the morning.Il have all my money in the
| business. Then he asked me how much it wo-
| uld take to load your teams.Il thought a few
mihatés andnsald about $700 . With out any
hesitation he wroté out a chequefor the $700
and simply took My I.0.U.He was' a friebd
' in need I could never forget the invident.
' I completed my contract and paid Mr steel
. the $TO00 and then bought anothev8p9 brls
on which 1 only made a profit of 50 cts a
Brl In all on the two deals I realised
'~ about $1100.00. Mr steel and Inbacame very
- intimate, and he suggested that we go to-
gether and ship Uil downto Pittsburg. We «. 1
.- would buy a barge and make our headquarters
.~ in O11 City. jje said he ccould get a barge
- for §700 . Would buy the oll on the creek
- -and I could take it down the river to, Pit-
. sburgh and sell it. The boat would 1000
~ brls in bulk and we would not have to carry
. the brls. This plan seemed $p me good and se
. entered into partnership. Untill the boat
¢ was readyl thought I would like to take a
trip homeand see my family ,and Enos would
like to See his wife.We found our folke .
all right . We made & short stay and were
- back in Pithole on March 22. Mr Steel told
me that Mr Yost had failed and I might
have difficulty in getting the balance of
| my money.I got $700 . Mr steel and I went
| to Oleopolis to -see our boat. We ordered it
shipped down to 01l City. Enos and I got

|
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sone tar pitch and caulked the boatgood,
We also buillt a small cabinpn her wlith bunks
for sleeping on fow ourselves..We bought
provisions to take with us. Itiwas cold and
rather hard sleeping . on hard boards which
made us stiff in the morning. We had to wals
-it a few daysbefore we got the ollto load
with. Enos and I worked kard rolldng the -
brls and empying the oil into the boat.

We contracted to be towed down to Pitsbu
rg for $50 We started with our flrst load
only586 brls on April 4th and reached Pite-
burg the next day. I sold and unloaded nak-
<ing a fair profit. Mr Steel wired ne he
had a full load for us when we got back.
at a certain prise and before I 1rft I so0ld
it. The next trip we floated down the stre-

~eam. in 2 days. We had always to be towed
up, On the down trip I hired a Pilot and Enos
and I managed to handle the rudder which
was in the rear with a long heavy handle.
I+ would need us &ll on going round a bend
in the river to keep the boat from golngon
rocks on the shore.We were going along ma-
king good time. After one of the trips wh-
-1le being towed backby a tug which generally
took a number of bargesat a time. On the
second daywe saw & manln a I'OW boat pulling
hard for the tug,and wlen he reached us he
went direct to the captaln.Il was called and
the man sald his boat hafl sprung a leakand
ne was losing his oil,and he wanted an &#l
boat to tke his oil on. I made a bargain
with him¥hat I would take his oil,bo. Pits-
burg for $100 he to settle with tffey for
bringing us here,and when the oll is unloagd~
dedhe was to pay for for towing my boat
froh Pitsburg to 0il City. We were soon
along his boat,and a steam pump was pouring
the oil into our boat which was bullt 1in
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four apartments,so that if a leak ocurr-
ed it would not affect the rest of the
boat.In the hurry we dorgot to open the
slides,and the boat was not fllling eve -
nly. I hurriedly opened the hatchways an
went downto open the sledes. They were
hard to open and in my breathi-ng + in-
haled & lot of hot oil steam.l managed to
get them open.ed,but I became unconscio-
us,and they had to pull me up,Sick as I |
was + managed to get the boat dischar- |
. ged,got my money and the price of belng |
towed up.l had to lay down on the bunk.

I told Enos he would have to get me out

of here that . needed medisal help. fte |
got me up to aboarding house on the hill
The lady gave me some toast and coffee
and kept me all night,but would not keep
me longer for she said she did not what
ny trouble was and she had boarders..

Enos got a cab and took me to the super-
inten@ent of the Mercy hospital.l told hinm
I want the best attention he can give me.
It was a catholic hoapital. the first ni-
ght I was terribly sick and suffered sev-
ere pains in my bowels.They thought I was
going to die.Thay gave me emetlics and I -
vonited almost clear crude oill.My stomach
was poisoned with the oil vapour.In a sh-
ort time as I was getting better I got |
the Typhoid fever and was unconscious for
a week.I did not get out of that hospital
for 6 weeks,but I must say I had good nur-
8ing .Enos stald in the city and visited.
me every day.As soon as I was able to get
out Enos took the boat up the rivrr ,and
I took train for 0il City. Mr Steel said
that oil had dropped and PThere was no pro-
fit in shipping it.®e sald he would run

t
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up home and if I wished I could shipoil
on ny own account.iEnos my brother-inlaw
got discoubaged and went home.&bout-a week
after this I thought ¥ would try and ship
some dil.from the priée at Fitsburg I th-
ought I could make something.Il bought a
load of oil and hired a river pilot and
another man and we loaded and started do-
wn the river.On the second day rounding
a bend in the river the pilot made a mis-
calculationand ran my boat over a hldden
rock which tore some planks out of the bo-
ttomof the boat,and the water forced the
oil through the hatches.Be tried to stop
it but the force of the water was toogre-
at . e were now standing in oil 2 inches
deep ,and no hope of saving the oil or
the boat.Il hahled a steamer ghing downthe
piverand we got on her .At the next bend
in the river I saw my boat dashed to ple-
- ces and the oil floating on the water.
That represented to me a loss of $5000.00
which meant all a®dl the money I had earned
in the country,and left only a few dollars
of what I brought into it.It was very dis
couraging.But I told my men It was no use
in crying after spilt milk.What cannot be
curdd must be endured. I took them to the
theatre in Pitsburg to take mij mind from
the loss.This was about the last of June
I took the men with me by train toOil City
I took a job from an oil manby the name of
DOANI was to look after his tank carsof oll
and' to measure the capacity of each as 1t
comes in,and report them by numbers, He
was to glve me $3.00 a day.But he sold
out in Julyl9thso my Jjob ceased.l decided
to go and try to get from Yost what he
owed me. He was at Titusville.I met hin and
had a good talk with himbut could not get
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get any satisfaction as to when he could,
pay me.I then decided to go hame,but I |
stopped off at Erie where I saw Clemens |
Buseck and Lawyer Camphausen all relatives
by marriage to my wife.Ffhese men were both
well off and I thought they mightput me
in the way ofgetting something to do.fhey
gave me some encouragement ifIl were liwbing
here.I did not want to go back teaching

in Canada.l started for home and reached
ny father =-in laws and found all the fam-
11y well.I visited my friends and finslly
made an arrangement with Mr Buseck to buy
the half interest I had in the Henry Wis-
mer farm which we had bought.Il then declaed

~-ded that I would go to Erie and make ano-

ther start in life at the bottom of the
ladder.lMy wife with I and the children

started by train from Toronto for krie .
When we arrived we met Mr Buseck at thw

refinery.he took us all to his home till

we would get settled.I rented two rooms
in a house for $21.00 a monthand hot what

i'rurnit.uxf_e wasractually needed‘.Every thing

{

was at War prices .Coal $82pp per ton.and
every thing in proportion.Shortly after
this ny daughter Ariadne was born.The firs.

i_st was bulding a fencewhich took,me about

|
f

22 weeks.l voluntry offered the ladies Aid
to build a chimney top in an old house in
which they had placed an old man.As I was
finishing it a mandrove up and asked if
i could run stills.I told him I could.He
‘saldl want a man to run stills at night
and I will pay him $2.00 per night,- and
wanted me right away to night .4t was now
about 6 0 clock .I went home to get some-
thing to eat,and my wife put up a lunch |

for midnight ,the refinery was about 1/12



40

t
miles away.Wheni}g;re the refliner was
there bte walting to give me all the info-
~rmation necessary about the stills and
the kngine.Il did not know anything ablut
machinery,and dared not tell them 8o or
$ would not get the job..FThe stills were
run off and inthe after noon they had to
be cleaned out. I threw some bricks to
stand on among the hot tar.I would dip up
the tar and hand it up to & man_on the top
When the tar was all taken out I with an
eron spudcut the caked tar from the Dbot-
tom of the stills and hand 1t out. Then
while the sweat was running down my back
come out in the cold winter wind. It was
hard on the constitution.l had three st-
-111s of 5p brls eachto clean out and ref-
111 .These stills were runoff 3 times a
week .l worked egery day and ran atills
at night.I got $2.00 for each day and $2.50
each night.l worked 2 days and a night on
a stretch.Mr Thayer the owner told me I
would k11l myself ,but I was anxious %o
earn noney and thought I could stand it.
When I got nome I wiuld almost fall as-
leep at my supper,and turnat once into
bed.I bought a frame house on a dlvision
of the DREXELS for 1200.00 .I was 1o pay
for it in wuarterly payments of $50.00
and no interest.The lot was not fenced nor
the upstairs plastered. We got acqualined
with a fanily by the name of Bull.who
had been here for several years. Thus
ayear of mournful experlen-ce was ended.
Foreign ITBMS 3
The Atlantig cable was completed.
War between Prussia and Austria . Prussia
won .
Andrew Jolmson was elected Preident of U.S

{
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1867 ; ~
I continued at Mr Thayer,s refinery till
about the middle of January,when I got a

"pituation with the Boyer and Fuess hard-
ware whole sale and retall business at
$50000 a month. It was not as much as I

was earning at the refinery,but 1t was a
much more pleasant business. I was the on

-1y one they ever had that was not a Germ-
an clerk.s was at firsta 1little bothered
about the 1anauage for thelr customers
were nearly all Yermangwho did not under-
stand English.I took some lessons 1ln the
language and soon was familiar with the

names and prices of all the goods in @ermsu

an.l was nearly all the time on the road
selling to blacksmiths and others in the

villages and Towns on the different rall-
waysfor a distance of abouy 150 miles.

In the latter part of July my Father-in-

law and my wif,s sister Lydla came for a

visit,I asked Mr Feuss if I could get off
for a few days totake my visitors aeound

and show them the city,which he granted.

' The old @entlemanhelped me to Lath theup-
stairs ready for plastering. They went ho-
me in August.and just then Mr Thayer came
and asked me to come andhelp him as hls
refiner had left him.f#e needed help till
he could get &a new refiner.l saw Mr Fuess
and explained the matter to hom andhe con-
sented that I could go for a time. This
time I did all the treating of the olland
had nothing to do with the fillihg and
cleaning of stills. In september My bro-
ther-inlawlHenry Hand made me a visit for
a few days. As soon as Mr Thayer got a re-
finer I came back to the hard ware firm
and travelled for them. In November I had
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to runover to Canada about some business
with Abder Udell from whom I had bought a
mortgage. I got it fixed and visited some
of my friendsand got back to Erie 1ln Bec.
18t . Iengaged to manage the refinery of
Buseck and Kenedy as thelr refiner had left
them. I had to do almost double the work
because we were short of help.l generly we-
nt to the refinery about K in the morning
to see that the stills were running all ri-
ght,and I would often run the stliils at nl-.i
‘ght t111 Midnight when John Buseck a son of
‘Clepens Buseck would relieve me this was nmy
'position at the close of the year
L CURRENT ITEMS T
‘Alaska purchased by the U.S. for §7.200.000 :
The confederation of the Canadian Provinces
. adopted ,and the British N .American act
- pagsed. ‘

1868 :

- In Jan.it was very cold and difficult to |

' run the refinery.John Buseck was sick and

I hired Abder Udell my old student who had

. come here and married a a young ladyhere.|

but he was a green hand,and I had to watch

- and instruct him at midnight in addition
to my day work. The oll business being du-

- 11They decided to shait down the refinery
for the months of Feb. and March.I got =wome
some lumber add rigged up & bench in the
kitehen,and built a combined book and wr-

' iting desk.Thenl went down to Lawyer Camp-

' hausen,s office and read Blackstone the .

' law book of both England and America,and

studied law during the-se two _months. I to-

| ok a couple of trips for Mr Fuess and helpe

1

-ped him to take stock.In April we started
the refineryagain and continue t&}ljﬁﬂg end
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When we had to shut down to repair thebo-
ilers.During this fime I helped Fuess.l
had a hint thatthere night be a vacncyln
a school in the city.l had a talk with the
superintendent of schools ,and to prepare
myself in case there should be a vacancy
went to a teacher,s examination and had
no difficulty in getting a certificate .
9nthe first of July John Buseck wanted to
gee his uncle A.V.Buseck nmy brother-inlaw
in Canada. My wife and children with my-g
~8elf went with him. We visited our friends
and relatives ,and I also spent a few days
with my father,in Toronto,and we got back
before the end of the month..John Buseck
went hefore for he had got a telegramthat
his sister was sick. When I got home Miss
g8ggln daughter of the oil inspector told
me that I has been appointed principal of
"the south Erie school to cormmence on Sept
1st .Afew days after_ thw agreement wag si-
gned . during tmchool would
start & took a trip for Mr Fuess. As the
school repairs were not completed + did
not commence teaching tillSept Tth.

There were two teachers in the lower gt-
ory and Miss Gaggin was ny assistant up
stairs I had a very pleasant school to
teach.I soon got it well organised and
continued till the end of the year.Il engem:
aged for the next yesar.l rented my house
for $10 amon¥hand rented a room for our-
selves over Althoff,s store to be nearer
to the schoolDuring all ny spare time I
was studying 'law under Mr Camphousen. Also
1 was studying Germanso to be more conver-
sant with the ﬁeman pupils.. '

CURRENTIPHEMS
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CURRENT ITEMS
U.S.Pregident Johnson was 1lmpeaclied
The suez canal was opened.
Canada bought the Hudson Bay territery
for $1.200,000 they retaining their trad-
ing posts and 1/20th offi the landi 'uj

- 1869
- All this year I was teachinas Frincipal
of. the South Erie school and studyinglaw

CURRENT ITEMS

Ulysses Grant was elected President of U.S5.
‘The Canadian Pacific 4ailway was conpleted

1870

At the first of the yearMr buseck one of
the the firm of Buseck and Kennedy went
into partnership with David Kennedy son
of one of the partners to start a whole-
sale and retail Oil and Paint business.
They wanted me to mansge the nuslness,do
the buyingand take charge of the offlce
department. I accepted the offer and gave
up teaching,as I liked business better
than teaching. My father and step mother
came over and stopped a couple of nmonths.
Also My brother *in law Henry Hand canme
over .He had a misfortune in his business
in Canada and came to see if I cpuld gilve
him a job.I engaged as a traveller on the
to sellour oils and pailnts.We dealtlargly
in Linseed o1l .We boiled our linseed oll
we also dealt in lubricating oils.We sold
all kinds of paints and had a paint fac-
tory established making all kinds of col=-.
org.. There were comfortable rooms over
the store and we lived there free of rent,

- Mr Buse was a gulet pleasant old gentle-
nanput ﬁ% david ﬁenned? was a young&stylish
¥ am



manand in splte of ny advice would ordeys
largé quanti%ies of goods more than nece-

gsarywhich made it hard to meet the bills
He had no experience 1in business,was op-
to,mistic and domineering,However we were
getting along falrly.My Hand did not like
him and later 1rft us,and engaged with an-
other oil man who had a refihery .Hand
travelled for him on the same territory
that he had travelled for us,and was rea-
1ly taking our customers from us. I was
afraid that My Kennedy by his rechless-
ness would get us into trouble.Il had a
talk with Mr Buseck,but he being a quiet
did not like to interfere with the son of
his partner.. This was the position at

~ the end of the year.

CURRENT ITEMS

The Franco Yrussian war was raging.Napol-
eon III sygrrendered.
The German Empire was formed. _
Brotish troops were withdrawn from Canada

1871

I continued with the Paint and o1l Copill
the middle of the year.l saw trouble ahead
and decided to resign my position. #lthow-
ugh I was engaged as Manager, Young Kennedy
absorbed that position. I at once went #o..
the hardware firm,and Mr Fuess gave me a
good posltion and good wages.I was half

of my time on the road.Before the end of
the year the Buseck and Kennedy®failed.
Thgir creditors came and sold them out.
I was glad I left them when I did.

During this fall we got word that El1i Wis-
ner my wife,s brother was very 111.His
Wife was Mr Camphousen,s sister. So we
too% Eraén with My Camphousen and went di-
rec 0 Stouffsville and a '
Berore H11 o1an d arrived the day
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e wag caused | lood sonlng

%gmug%ghmgﬁglﬁguge%o%gebégilagoéndnge%t—
ing a prick with an awl in the thumb

The Franco Pyuss ﬁﬁ Tar ended by Prussia

getting the French provinces of Alsace
and Lorraine and paying a Billion dollars
Sir Henry Stanley was sent by the New Yo-

rk times to find Livingston,and he found
nim. The great Chicago fire occurred.

1872
During the early part of this year while
I was working for Mr Fuess ,Mr Tracy who
was the purchasing agent for the Erie RY
and to whom I had soldmany barrells of
lubrating oilsaid to me"You are a Canad-
ian whynot come and help,us to bulld the
Canada Bouthern RYA "I told him I would
think about 1it..Next day he told me he
was going to Fort Erie where the head
quarters were and asked me to go with him
and he would put me in the way of a con-
tract that wpuld make me some money.l
got vermission from My Fuess for a week,s
absence. When we got get thereMr Tracey
introduced me to Mr Cavanagh who had the
contract to build the fencing for the wh-
ole roadand told him to glve me a good
contract. Gavanaghpresented to me a con-
tract to bulld the' fences on the road
between Welland andCayuga 30 miles wilth
post and board fence.Cedar posts,Henlock
lumber 6 boards high. {e steted phe price
he would give.I started up to Seaforth
where I knew there were Lumber mills and
found what I could get the posts and lu-
mber for.I figured the freight and cost<}
delivery on the road and the wages to bu-
11d the fence.l then went back tokrie, and
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met Cavanagh for he was an Erie man,I
got him to increase the price so that
I would have a decent profit in the 60O
miles of fencing.l made a contract sti-

ulating that the money would be pald mo-
nthly according to estimates less 10%
1111 the completion of the job,and to be
paid direcyly“Ahe Canada southern RY.
When I got hor® I told mr Fuess what I
had done and that I would have to leave
hém,He was sorry and hoped I would be
successful. I decided that 1 would leave
my family in Erie ti11 I got things in
working order.l went over and made nmy i -
head quarters at “Yanfield where the (rand
trunk fy crodsed the new road.t went to
Peaforth and closed a contractfor all
theé lumber and posts for the Job tobe
delivered as fat as possible,so that
could deliver on the road bed in the win
~ter,and to be paid for monthly.Z¥tmeant
neant a lot of money.There would be
- BOW.VW rt of lumberand about 4000 ‘posts
I gave the mill manthe C.8.RY as referdé e
ence. I had only abouto$500 in cash.Il went
to Mr Taydpor the treasurer of the road
and got him to advance the payments for
the lumber each month as delivered less
the 10%. and in this way I thought I cou-
ld finance it through.On Nov 14t I went
to Canfield and began to hire teams to do -
deliver the lumberand posts as soon as .
the snow fell.I pushed my work along ma-
king my first deliveryon the long haul.
When Christmas came Iwent home to Erie
for a week.I had succeeded on the first
snow to dellver a lot ofimy material.
CURRENT ITEMS
vas sottied. Aomme mneeh U:S-and Britatn
+ horace Greely died aged 61
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James G. Bennetfounder of the New York

herald died. King William I made emper-
of Germany.

1873
After I came hack from Erie,I secured a : .-
room owned by an old lady in the rear part
of her house.The contractor whohad occupi:
pled the room had finlished his contract
I bought all hisbelongings in the room
stove,bed, table,chairs,and kitchen utensi’
sils for $5.00 I then went back to Erie
and sold all ny furnitureexcept bedding
dlshes and sundry other things and bro-
ught ny family to Canfield.We were very
comfortable in a small way.My wife and
3 small children in one room. I finished
ny fence contract early in the spring and
nade & good profit. Then I made a contr-
actto put on the side of the road6000
cords of cord~wood.In the meantime not
knowingof this contract I had given not-
~-lcethat I would not need the room we were
living in,and it was rented at once,There
wgs no other place to be got. There was
beside the tract a big grain wharehouse,
I got some lumber and made some partiti-
ons,and put the stove pipe through the
window.This was all right in the summer
but when fall cgmeand it was cold we
could not keep warm. We got into a nelg-
hbour, s house and boarded for a tine.
soon a house wag vacated and we secured
it,I was busy during the summer securing
contracts for wood along the line. My
father from Toronto made us a visit. I
finished ny wood contract in about two
nmonths. Mr 0.C. Smith the purchaseing
agent of the road offered me a large
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contract,to cut all the timber on each.ofl
the roadfor 10 miles in the county of .-
Essex.He' offered me a big price $2.00 a
cordpiled on the road side,with the pr-
ivelege of selling any of the more val-
uable timber I wisghed,but the condltlon
was that Iwould take in his brother~in-
law Mr Peckhamas a partner. ily Peckham
and Iwent up to Essex and walked through
the woods.It was a big Jjob,not less than
50.000 cords of wood. I closed the con-
tract t-aking Mr Peckham as a partner.

I then made contracts with “r Crumband
Mr Greenboth of whom did some subcontra-
cting with me before,.they each agreed to
cut 5000 codds of*ifor §1.00 per cord.
at this time I bought a horse and buggy
- from a #r gwitzer a stgepe-keeper in Can-
field . and decided beore 4 went wesit
ny wife and I would have a holiday. We
drove to Toronto,Markham and Oshawa and
visited friends and relatlves,and for 2
weeks had a good time. We had left our
children at Canfield. In august I deove
my horse and buggy up,to Essexabout 200
milesand reached there atabout 5 P.M.on
the third day. The place was on the Tal-
bot road where the Canada southerncrossed
that road.There were only two log houses
but there was a hotel being built.l put
my horse in the barm and towards the eve-
ninghelped to carry in a big load of
furniture just come down from Windsor.I
took my Weals in the log house across
the roadtill the hotel was fixed to take
my family in.I then went down to Canfield
to bring my family up.l charted a car
- and had Mr Crumd and Green get their
tools ,sleighs,waggons,horsges and oxen



and what furniture they needed for hou-
sekeepingtogether and their men for cut-
ing wood,In all there were about 20 of
us on this trip to Essex.We reached there
the second day.l had ordered a number
of shanties to be built about 8 miles west
of Zgsexfor my men and contractors I br-
ought a Fremchman by name Bordeau,and
started him with a gang of mento cut the
red oak into Pipe staves,which I shipp-
ed to Buffalo and got a good price.
I alsohad the large Balmof Gileadjrees
cut downand hewed square "the whole len-
gth. many of them would square 14 inches
at the top from 4P to 5p feet long,I
shipped these on double cars to Quebec
to a timber dealer for the British mar-
ketl madewell out of all these extras.
Mr GordonWiglebuilt a hquse in the vil-
lage and I ren'ted it frombefore he fin-
ished plastering it and aFterwards bought
it from him'uwpayping part down,and gave
a mortgage for the balance.l arranbed to
let Mr Peckham have half by putting a
partition through the kitchen forhinmself
and wife..This fall there was a regular
influxof settlers move into the village
and bullt houses.Mr Rush moved his store
from Maidstone tothe corner of the Mald-
stone townline where Mrs Hall now lives,
Dr Brien established an offlce,and a nah
from Buffalobuilt a mill on the main atr
street.By the end of the year I had in
addition to nmy extra shipments TOOQ
cordsof wood piled up.and things were
hustling along.
CURRENT ITEMS
ULYsses Grant re~elected President of U.S.
Edward Bulwer Lytten the novellst dled.
D Livingst the African missionary died.
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1874
During this winter I was pushing my work
in getting as nuch wood cutanddelivered
at the treck.Early in the spping I went
down to Pt Shomas as usual to draw my
noneyto pay my men.When I saw Mr Taylor
the?aeasurea he told nme that he could not
pay me,That there wus .a financial panic
in Jfew york and they could not get any
mondy.;his was a shock to me as I had all
ny money in the work and the men would
want their pay. I thld M4r taylor thatl
really must have some momey to pay the
men.He answered me ™ Mr Milne I am sorry
for you,but we have no funds and you cannot
get money oul of a stone"™I cammot gilve
yow a dollar. I went home feeling very
blue.My partner Mr Peckham had no money
and did not have any when + took him in.
which 1 did to secure a good comtract
I was paying him*100 a monthforreally
nothing.I decided that Ihat I would throw
the responsibility on him. When I got home
I told him the difficulty we were in and
what “r Taylor told me. which staggard ;
him.I told him he mighthave some influence |
with his brother-in law Mr Smith to help |
us out.and suggested him taken the train |
tomarrow to St Thomas and see what he
could do.He started next morning.I saw |
ny -contractors and told them that Mr Peckhan
had gone down to get the money and would ‘
be back in the evening.I did not let on
a.bout the trouble When He came back he
told me he could do nothing. I knew the
men would be downand I thought I would
let him tell about the situation. So when |
they came I sent them in to to see hin i

I could 8itting in my kitchen hear the
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the conversation on the other side of i
the wall.I knew by the angry volces that Je
Peckhan was having a hard time..I slipped
out and went up the village to meet the men
when they came out .They were not in good I
humouruand I could see that trouble wase |
brewing.l got them together and qhéetly
told them not to get excited.that they
could see that it was not our fault.That

I would go down toSt Thomas homorrow and s»
gee what I could do.I got them quieted doin
down. they saw the reasonableness of what

I told them That I had all ny money in
this job.In the morning I went down and
had a good talk with Mr Taylor. e made

the remark "Mr Milne you have a good con-
tract and if the Canada southern could |
live up to their part of the contract you
would have a falr prospect of making all
$50.000 You havelived up to your part of
the contract far better than many of the
other contractors have and I would like to
help you"He went away and consulted with
some other of the officials and when he
came backhe said. The onlyhlrﬁﬁn help you
i1s to give you notes at three monthsfor

the amount and you might discount them

at the bank of Commerce where we have been
dealing.I saw I could do no better sol took
two notes of $2000 eachwhich ¢was about
what they owed me.after deducting the 10%
Instead of going directly home I went down
Canfieldand saw MrHaney an old friend.Il
had often borrowed from a few hundreds of
dollsars till my returns would come in.I
told him exactly the position 1 was in He
asked me how nmuch I would need to help nme

I told hinlf he could let me have §800 for
8 months it would help me very much.
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He without any hesitation drove me to DUN-
ville where_he did his banking and gave nme
- the miney. yere is another incident of a
a friend in need.When I went home Icalled
the men together ,and gave each of a share
of what I owed them.which satisfied then.
Then I told Mr Peckham that as he could
not furnish any money to carry on the work
I could not pay him any more wages nor con-
tinue him as a partner.l offered him a snmall
sum to assign all his interest in the con-
tract.Next day he agreed ,and I drew up a
documentfor him to sign which he did and
laft for'St Thomas,I now had the whole job
on ny hands.¥r Rush the store keeper had
heard of the trouble and mwas much excited.
I went to see him. Ry contractors had not
8 very good name for a number of them had
left suddenly leaving debts.l explained to
him the whole circumstance ,and showed him
the notes I had taken,and asked him to go
with me to Windsor and try to discount the
notes in the bank.l told him that he would
hot be any worse off than he was now.for I
believed the whole trouble would be intene
all right. He consented and we went up to
windsor and saw the manager of the bank of
Commerce.After a little he discounted our
notes by our.endorsing them.I owed Mr Rush
$2000 for orders orders I had given the men
for goods such as provisions as we had be-
fore arranged for.The Ry paid the first mote
and renewed the other.After that % took notes
from' Fegularly,and they generally fook then
up or ienewed them for a part. My work was
now going on regularly. The man from Buff-
alo who had built the saw mily EOt'into]in_

ancil dfficult
| : les and was ohliged to sell »_
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ir James 4rwinwho owned a farm nearhere|
came to me and asked if 1 would join

him in buying tle mill,and sald it could

be bought for a bargain. After some negl:
atiations we bought the mill.*his wasin
the fall..I considered Mr Irwin good for
his part.The mill had been shut flown.
butthere were quite a lot of logs in the
yard.As soon as the deal was completed,
after dinner swe started up the mill Mr !
irwingetting the men together. A very
unfortunate circumstance occurred that
afternoon.l was setting up logsand rid- |
ing on the carriage,James Oliverwasat
the edging saw and unfortunately lost
his left hand.Pe and his wife lived in

a shanty near the mill.I had thw men

carry hinm up to the hotel.We did not a-

larm his wife for a time.I wired to Am-

herst r a Br.we shut down the mill |
for tile rest of the day.l went up to his
roon at the hotel,and found 1t was dir-
ectly over the barand the rallway men
were very noisy.Il had him carried down
to my house and put in a room up stalrs

We put his wife in a room directly ac-

ross the hallso that she could attend

to his wants.The Dr came in the even-

ing and amputated the stump. He rema-

ined t1ill he was all right.Mr Oliver

remained in that room till his wound ,

was healed.Then I placed him in my off-

ice as ny clerk where hw remainedfor
many years.During the fall we put men |
in the wooda to cut timber to suply the
running of the mill next summer.Wehad
bought the Fimber in the woods &n diff-
ent farms,sometimes for a lump sum and
others by the thousand ftof lumber 1in
the 1ongt aprice per thousand feet.
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in the logs as measured. .

During the winf@¥ and spring I was getting
the millyard stocked with logsfor the
gumner work. This summer the Ry was not
able to pay meon my contract.l managed to
gay my extra men but Messrs Crumb and
reen were financing on thelr account so
that I was a considerable’in their debt.
I went to S5tThomas and had a talk with
nr Taylor. He told me to,bring Wr Crun
and Mr Green down and he would try tofix
things for them so as to relieve gou -of
any claim from them.In a few days I took
them down and sent them in to see Mr Taylor
He fixed with them to_take a 2nd Mortgage
bonds for the amount + owed them.This freed
ne of that debt.l took first mortgage bond
for what they owed me about 6000 dollars
igaw that I would have to abandon the con-
tract which was a heavy loss to me.l tried
to get them to allow me some damages for
the loss but could not ,and I thought it
would be no use to go to law,So concluded
to take what I could get and close up the
transaction.l held those bonds for 5 years
and sold yhem for 85 cents on the dollar.
This summer I did well in the mill,and
bought out my partner,s interestfrom Wr
trwin. So I now had full controlof the mill
business..l was now taking an active in-
teredt Inthe public affairs of the village
Finding that the division court for the
settlement of all small debts was held in
Harrow 20 mlles away,which meant very nuch
expense to the litigants.Il took the matter
up and got a division*®Ftablished in Essex
centre.."r Billings a prominedt farmer and
& maglstrate living at North ridge was made



6c1erk of the court.After two slttings
he got sick of it andoffered to retire

in my favour if I would take it. I took
it asdwas appointed by the Judge as clerk
of the'division court.There were no law- |
yers nearer than Windsor.And as I was well
acquainted with conveyancelng and had a
general knowledge of law business . I did
an office business in that line in hours
after mnill working this year of about
$1000 .My summers work in the millcleared
ne about $6000.1 also bought land and di-
vided some into village lots ,and built
on them small houses for working men and ©
80ld them on the monthly instalment plan

of from $8 to $10 per month

CURRENT ITEM

The Housac tunnel in Massachusetts was

completed costing $10.000.000

1876
I was elected the only councillor in the
northern part of Calchester fownship.

I kept my mill running steadily.l also
built a number of houses for rent or sa-
le . My father made me a visit,le was
not feeling well,and thought he had
Erysipilis in his toe.! called Dr Drake

Wrand he thought it was Gangrengfe was
not bedfast . One morning as I was golng
to council meeting at harrow,I called in
his room to tell him that I would see
Dr Grake at kingsville and send him up
I ran over to the mill to leave sone
instructions to my watchman .I_was not
gone over 10 minutes,and when I was on
the way coming back I saw ny wife wav-
wng gerhand for ne to hurry,I hurried and
when +went up to see my father he was
dead.The troubhle had gone to the heart.
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I had hin burlied at North Ridge cemetypy.
after his wifeand son came in answer to
my telegram.This year I added a planer
to my machiner¥ in the mlll.and kept a
good stock of Fine lumber ,shingkes and
lath, My business netted me this year
about $8000 . The Wismer Golden Wedding
day took place.l took my family down and
read an address to the old couple.

CURRENT ITEMS .

The Centennial exhibition was held in
Philadelphia at which Alex.G.Bell exhib-
eted his telophone.
The Custer Massacre took place.
The international Rallway was opened.

1877
This spring I decided thatl should have a
complete planning mill outfit,so that we
could make doors,sash and everything necc-
egsary for bullding purposes.Il met in with
Alexander and William Laing who were expert
planing mill men.They were living and doing
business in Leamington.I suggested their
coming to Essex and joining me in a partners
-nip.After some negotiations they agreed and
sold out their interests in leanmington.
We ordered a completeputfit from Messrs
Goldie and McCullochin galt. Mr Goldie
hinself came up and took the order,Il added
quite a large addibion to the mill to
accomnodate the new m-chinery.
In the fore part of the year ] was re-elected
councillorin Colchester  townshipfor the
north part.I had a very successfulyear

clearing about §$8000.
CURRENT ITEMS
The Russian Turkish war settled by the
treaty of Berlin.
The fall of the Turkish power in Europe,
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1878

Having associated the Laing Brothers

with me.I declded to form the bysiness
into a Joint stock Co and got & charter
for " The Essex Centre Manufacturing Co"
® buill’an office in the corner of my lot
where I did my office work,and also my
Divislon court work.I had James Oliver
as ny clerk.Il made the builddng 2 stoties
high,and got a party to start a news Fa-
per and gave him the upstalilrs to start
with.and thus began ¥¥ihe Essex Chrons.! 34
icle’ e put in a wasPington prese. After
he had run 1t for about 6 months I bought
hinm out and became the owner of the paper.
I was urged to run as ‘‘eeve of the Town-
ship of Colchesteragainst Mr John Iler.
He had heen reeve for many years ,and he
was a good friend of mine and I refused
and was again elected as counciller,

In the mill we had done a good yébs work

1879
My office business was lncreasing very
rapidly,so that ny clerk and nyself were
Busy.I was running the manufacturing to
full capacity.then my division court .
and ny newspaper kept me up at night.
I also was lnterested in politics,The
south riding of Essex had been conser=-
ative for many years. first in the leg--
aslature ,and then in the, commons by
Lewis Wigle.The wiglebhad 'about 500
wigle votes ,and the large portion of
them were conservatives .I was a refor-
nerand was chosen as president of the
reform assoclation.
There was an agitation to divide the to-
wnship of Colchester into two townships
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North and South.The southern had the larger
population,and the northern did not think
that they got their falr proportion of the
monies spent for roads and improvenents.

A strong petition was sent to phe council
which was discussed and the petition was
granted.I was appointed arbitrator for the
north,Alanson Elliot for the south.and Mr
Geo . Morris of Leamington was chosen as
thirdd arbitrator.We met and appointed a
clerk to make a full report of all the
receiptds and expenditures of the townshi
-p for 20 years back. That took him several
nonthe,after which we metand fully consid-
ered every thingand made our award. We sent

- a copyto each of the portions of the Town-
ship.This award was ratified by both sect-
-lons and a proclamation was nade declaring

- the north part of the Township of Colcheste
ag a geperate municipality. .

. 1880
In January of this year the municipal elec
-tlons took place as usual.,and Colchester
north elected their ferst Reeve and coun-
clllorsas a seperate municipality.l tookpo |
part in this.In the later part of last year
I wrote toa Mr Kerr a shoemaker with whom
my father kept up correspondence witha
view offinding any informationhe night have
about the death of my mother ahd where she
was burled.Now in this year I got a reply
from him that after my father had left For
Canada,ny sister whon ny mother kept died.
Then my mother had gone to Edihburg where
she had a sister and was for several years
a house keeper for a wealthygrain merchant.

who had a very fine home. Then when ghe was



“Inable to rill the position.fe placed
her in an old ladies homeand liberally
provided*Withall her needs and otherways
during hér life time.and a friend of his

llawrttten him that she had died,which info-
rmation he had sent to me. and which my :
had showed me when he visited me in Sto-
uffville.ily “err also peferred me to a Mp
Alleninfdinburg who might be able tom
give Bohe forther information. In the
spring of this year I wrote to Mr Alleh
His answesr came stating that my mother
was alive and well,and in the old ladieg
hore.That in that home there was another
lady by the name of Milnehad died,which
was no doubtthe cause of the infornation
ghlch nmy father received. This informat-
ion was a shock to me.gere 1 was 40 years
old,and had belleved that my mother was
dead.had never known what it was to have
a mother.and here was my father had mar-
ried again.I am sure that he was firmly
of the opinion that my mother was dead.
ge was aman of unpeachable character.

They haff evidently dropped all corresp-

ondence with each otherfor many years.
nynstep mother and her sonwere largely
dependent upoh me for their support.
I had an intence desdre to see my mother
znd take care of her during the balance
of her days. My business was such thatl
could"Very well gzo to see her.l wrote ‘to
her in care of Mr Allen,asking her if she
would come to Canadaif I sent her the
funds,necessary to bring her heee. I got
an answer 1in a very nice letter that she
would like to see her boy.l at once sent
forwardeg the fundsin care of Mr Allen.
and belng Informed of the steamer she sie
wag to take.lMy wife and I went to New Yor
and met herand brought her to Essex ’
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In the meantime I had written to my step-
nother of the pecullar situation,andinf-
ormed her of ny desire to see ny mother
and takeé eare.of hér which was.natural.
but that I would also take care od her and
her ‘boy during her life.Although she fully
believed that my father had been honest 1n
doing what he did,She was completely brokeq
dom.This year my millyard was too small
for the stock of logs that we required ,and
we declded to to build a mill about a nile
west on the corner of a 50 acres ¥® owned.
which would be nearer the timber lands.I
had bought.l made arrangements with the
C.S.Ry to put in a siding into the mlll
which they did We furnishing the ralls and
making the grade.befor the season was out
we had a larger millbuilt with a good yard
and a siding in so that we could ship our
Jumber out ,and ready for the next seasons
work Our business for the year was good.

CURRENT ITEMS

Hon. George Brown head of the Globe was sth
by a discharged employee in the Globe office
The Canadian Pacific was incorporated ge- °
curing from the government$25.000.000 cash
and 25 million acres of land.
The Grand trunk Ry took over the &reat
Westren &y .

1881
This year I had a large stock of logsinthe
vard.and with the many other businesses I
wag getting run down,abd the Dr told me that
I should take a holiday and get away fron
business or I would be a sick man.l decided
I would take a trip to Europe. My wife would
not go She was afrald of the water. I did
not want to go alone.so I suggested it to




my daughger Fporence thenabout 18 ¢rs.
old .She gladly accepted .My Mother had
been with me a year,but she did not :
like this country,and wished to be batk
amongst her old companionsin Scotland
so + decided to take her along,l arra
nged all my businesswith a good man aj
the head of each department s#& I thour
-ght they would get along while I was gone
We salled from Yew York on May Tih an
landed at Yreenocabout the 14th and tpok
train for Edinburg.l left my mother there
tpere where she hadfasster lrs Crawford
Florence and I visited all ‘the prlnci%
pal places in Edinburg Then we took
train for Aberdeen and Balmoral castle
where we stald several days and saw the
Queen several times.%hen we went to Jiv-
erpooland bondon,and saw all the leading
places’.Then took train for the Continent
under Sook,s tickets. We visited Holl-
and .®elgiumand the bagttle of Waterloo,
THrough @ermany to qiogne én the Rhine,
up the Bhine to Strasburgup Mt Riga ;
over lake lLucerne there took a diligence
over the Alps to Milan,VYenice,Florence,
Rome, Naples,up MY Vesiuviys ,Piza,Turin,
Genoa, through Mt Qennes tunnel,Geneva,
Paris and back to Edinburg. A full de-
eription of this route will be found in
a diary of the trip now in my llbrary.
When in Bdinburg I secured a comfort-
able room of her own chosing for my
mother where she would be near her old
acquaintances, and arranged for renit-
tancesfor the rent and her confobt . |
We then took the eteamer for homewhere
we-arrived in August. !
This fall there was a contest for the
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Jegislature.Balfour of Amherstburg and Pei-

er Wrightof Colchester. i was president of |

the reforn association and took an active

interest,Balfour was elected as the reform

member,l was very busy the balance of the

year with ny various matters.The year was

a successfilone financially

CURRENT ITEMS

James Garfield was elected fresident of thel

U.S. and was assasinated the same year.
. Alexander II of Russia was assasinated.

1882
This year I built my new house in Essexca-
1led Maple Villa.l attended to the dethils
in addition to the business of the factory
the millPivision court work and the pub-
cation of the Chronicle. L had a verysucc-

essful year
CURRENT ITEM
‘The celebrated Foet Longfellow died

| 1603

LI was running mysaw mill and stave works

' day and night.Il had a very large stock pf

' logs,And had good contracts for both staves
L and lumber.I had an independent telephone

. constructed between my house and the mill

' 80 as to be in direct communicatuonwith the
'mill. In April I got a message from my

| foreman Reamer Wigle that the mlill was on
fire.l ran down and bt seemed that all the
| people of the town was runnihg down with

| with buckets and pailss as it was sunday

| but the fire had got go good a atart that

. there was no chance to save the nill.
'Ramer had some difficulty in getting the

. horses out of the barn.I had a large dry
kiln to dry my staves before they were ship
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-ped They were dried by speam pipes and tiv
there were abou¥ 10 carloadsof dry staves r

[
{

.

{

to ship next day,but a fire brand fell on o
o €nd and 1t ignited at once and the staves b

dry and hot the fire went to the far ebd ol

The buildeng and the staves were all con
sumed.The piles of lumber were saved by the
peoplethrowing water on any brands they
saw falling on any piles ,The foreman,s
house was saved.The mill and thedry
barn were all wwrecks.l figured my loss
at $15.000 I had mo insurance for 1 was
keeping a watchman continually and the
insurance Cos asked 7% .That night quite
a number of the business mencame to the
house to sympathise with me on my loss.

Of course they would feel the loss be?
cause my pay roll every week was a heavy
one and the merchants got the most of 1%

+ think they felt it more seriousky than

* did.I never allowed myself to worry

over losses 1 slept Just as sound that
night as at any other night.it simply
meant that I must put a little more ener-
rgy into the budiness to make 1t up.

On monday morning I phoned my banker in
windsor that my mill was burned.®e asked
me how much insurance did yow carry.l said
none that I hd kept watchmen.Then he sa-
id what about your account.l answered that
I would take it up as soon as I can as I
will build a new mill at once. Well he said
very sharply I will expect you to take care
of your notes as they fall due.Il said no
nore. 1 then had Mr #lex baing one of my
partners make a draft of the mill ,%e had
a list of the timbers of the old mill.

I sent my foreman with gangs of men in the

#u bullding as fast as you could walk.the® bull
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woodsto get out and hew the timbers that
bhr Gaing would give him a list of.l then
went to Toronto to see yHe firm that made
mill machinery and“?roﬁ had bought before
I presented to them my case and explained
i my eircumstances and the stock of logs
had ready to cut. They told me to give an
i order for Jjust what wanted and they wuuld
carry me till |could sell my lumber, So 1 gav
them a list of what ~ required and they woul
' ship it at once.On my way home I called to |
| the manager of the Imperial bank in St Thonma
I knew him.I ststed my case exactly and my
standingand what the bank at windsor told
me + then asked 4f he thought that his bank
| woulc take my account and let me hinve the
rortJ to take up the notes at thewindsor bank
as they fell due.!¥ e sald he would write_to
his head officeand let me know In a week I
received a letter from the ¥mperial bhank
gaylng they would take up ny account on the
conditions we had talked on.I went down to
5t Thomas and s 1@d the neccpssary E,
got a draft for; YUV to take up a ndte soon
falli.n% due also some noney to keep me golng |
When + went to Windsor to take up my note |
I went into the manager,s office and lald
downthe draft for $2000 .he sald My milne
what is this for I said You have a note of
nine which Y think falls today,and you told
me that I must take care to meet my notes as
they fell due.he said*o I did not mean that’
we would of carried you'Well I said you did »
not say so. Me fely very cheap for they had
nmade in Ainteredt and exchange from me quite
B sum. *his year I had a better millbuilt in |
less than three weeks and we had a very @ucc(
esgful year . '
I received a cable fromlﬂ&*A;lenin Scotland |
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that ny mother had suddenly died.I cabled
him to secure a place and and see to all
was necegsary for her funeral ,and draw g
on me for the amount.In the fall of this ;o
year Mr WMLaing and I took a trip to loak f|
for timber lands as they were getting sh-
ort here Henry Richinson of Detroit his
brother -in law went with us We visitee
lands in Alabama .Missiesippli and Louslana
but I did not think I had nmoney enough
to handle the offers. Mr Richardson was
a wealthy man but I wyoould notlike himas
ag a partner so we came home
lirg #ilne,s Mother Mrs Wismer died and ws &

de all went down to the funeral

CURRENT ITEMS

Moody and Sankey evarngellists went to Edg-
land. ~

1884 !
This year I tore down my old Saw mill ,at
one end of which was my planing nill, ;
and builtz large brick two story bullding
about 200 ft long.@n onw end of the first
two stories I made the planing and sash |
and door business..In the other end of the
first floorl established aregular machine
shop.I had bought a full machine shop
from the MacMasters who moved thelr machi.:
~inery from idgetown and took stock in
the conmpany for its value.They were prac=i:.
tical machinists and they took charge of
that department..Back of this building I
put up a wooden building for a foundry and
and noulding shop. Ye made boilers engines
and some tractors,and did all kinds of
repairs in that line..The second half of
the second story I converted into a
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Handle factory to make all kinds of wooden
- handles such as #xe,Pick,hanmer ,and fork
handles madee out ofhlckory and ashplrber !
that had heen scrapd which was quite succ- j
essful.Thee combimed industries were known |
as "Essex centre industrial works" and emplc
yed a good force of men..This year the villag
of Essex centre seperated from the Township |
'of Golchester..l was appointed arbitrator ;
 for Essex ,and #lanson Etbkiot for Colc pester
' north and George Morris of Leanmington was ci
' chogen as third arbitrator. We audited all
| the accounts since the division of the Tow-
| -nship,and made our award which was ratified
| - by both parties,and a proclamation issued
| declaring Essex a seperate nmunicipality.
and could thus spendher taxes on her own
improvements. Enos Wismer my Brother=in law
married his second wifeRpbena Mc Conachie.
CURRENT ITEM
The Imperial bank opened an office in Essé
they rented my office and I moved over to
my office in my new building.

1885 -
This year I added to our works the nacgi gg
to make ploughs.l got & man who was an 5?;:
in selling plows who sald he knew just what
the farmer needs.I hired him first to Sup-
i erintend the making of the first batch,and
then he took the road to sell them.They be-
came very popular and sold readily.

A handle maker came up from St Thomasand
stated that he had to buy his timber in thi.
part of the countryand pay freight on the
lods which was expensive,and thought he
would bullt a factory nearer the timber.

examined ny nachinery for this purpose,

and then said he would like to buy out oup

S U ——




6%

handle machinery ,and pay usﬁ?;nt and po-
wer rather than built another factory.

We thought the offer and declded we woul
sell rather than have an opposltion fac-
factory started.fte gave us full price

for all our handle machinery ,and all ogr
stéck on hand,and we agreesd upon a price|
for the room and power.Thls was the firs%
sale of any part of our buslness . .
This year My wife and I méde a trip to
the Cotton centennialat New Orleans ,and
went from there to Daytona Florida to se
her sister Mrs Handliving there.Mr Hand |
and I were old schobl teachers in Mark -
ham. We stald there a week.and I bought
from himl0® acres of—him for a grove and
also 2 lots in Ormond on which to build
a house. This summer I received a letter |
from & friend in Scotlandthat there was |
quite a sum of money left to the Milne |
estate. This was left to my Grand-father
and heirs after my grand father had died,
and ny father was advertised for in Next |
of kin Gazette.l therefore decided togo |
over there and investigate. This time ny|
wife went with me. We went direct to my |
birth place Ellon inAberdeenshire.l found
there was a considerdble sum in the court
of chancery of unclaimed monies of diffesw:
-rent estates of which the Milne estate was
oneof them.I then tried to trace up my |
grandfather,s estate record .I believe I
really8the records of all the brothers
and sisters leaving only myself and ny
cousin Mrs Mc Guire in Toronto,but the
difficulty was to prove that what I foun
was all there were. There were no one 1li
ing now that could prove that.l went to
London and had a talk with the official o

1



69

unclained monies. and he informed methat
there was belonging to the liilne estate in |
money and property which with interest would
amount to aboutPwo million Founds sterling,
but ydMust give positive proof that what you
have found is all the children that your
Grandfather had.l suggested thata portiongf
the estate might be distributed holding the

larger portion in case any others should
turn up.,but he said the court would not do
‘that.l spent considerable in getting certif-
icatesof births and deaths,bulBo far they

were not. proofs of all.l therfore came hone
" with all my memose ,intending some time to

try again.We had a very fine Jjourney hone
and found the business had been doingwell.lin
| ny absence.There was nothing special tonote
during the balance of the year.

CURRENT ITEMS

The first electric street RY wasin EssexX.
The Canadian Yacific RY was completed.
Gen Grant died .
Grover Cleveland elected President of U.S.
Gen. Gordon murdered at seige of Kartoon.
Water works established in Kssex
A High school established in Essex.

1886
This was the year of the M natoba Boom,and
| all the young men flocked there to obtain
property cheap.During the past few years in
additionto my regular business I had made
sone money by buying and selling Real estate
Through my conveyancing I had become acquai-
-nted with every farm and piece of property
in the southern part of this county,and knev
thelr values.When any of the loan companies
h-d-a mortgage sale they would come to me
to come to the sale and give them a start
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which * did,but if there was a50 or 100 |
acres to be sold and that * thought # 8o-
uld hsndle 1t I would get thelr upset pr4
lce and I would bid uprto that or perhaps
a 1ittle over it would be knocked down to
me.l could use my money better in ny busi»
~iness ,so I would pay them downa resonaak.
-ble sum and give a mortgage for the balasw
\ncegxpecting to soom sell and get a sun o
doenthey assuming the mortgage.In thisway
I soon accumulated a lot of different la-
nds on my hand,but when the boom came on
I could not sell.there was no one to buy.
the farmers had all the land they needed,
and thelr sons had gone to Manitoba. The
value of landwent downto about 60% of its
former value.’Although I had bought the
lands cheapl could not sell even at alosg
I was paying interest on the mortgages |
‘and taxes on the lands.lt was eating inta
my savings and ny capltal.l saw that I
would get into trouble.and decided B wou-
Id have to get rid of some of my enterpp
«rises.A brother of the Laings sold hi's
farm in Tilbury and they wished to take
him into the Planing departmentwith then.
They proposed to me that they would buy !
tde planing plantand pay for the rent and
power.We talked the matter over and fhey
paid the cash for all the machinsry and
the stock of material on hand,and paild a
sum agreed upon for rent and power. This
relieved me some.. +his year nmy daughter
Ariadne married Mr 0.C.Barrie.l took then !
for their wedding trip to Florida where
I cleaned up ny grove and bought the young
orange trees from BEED KNOX AND BEED.

»
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1887

A ar De Cew- whose father I knewwell.when in

Canfield.fte had sold out his interestin lunm-
businessin Tilbury.He asked me if I had ever
thought of selling my saw mill.I said I wou-
14 think about it.He sald he would be here |
& couple of days examining the timber lands |
and will call again.l consulted with my pa-

-rteners and we thought if we sold the mill |

1

now we nmight get the full price for it,but
1f we keep 1t till the tinmber is all cut
our mill would not be worth much.So when he |
called again,l put my price on the mill,and
1ts machinery ,and the sidingtogether with !
the stock of lumber and logs on hand. He
thought for a2 while and said I will takeit.
he paid a good sum down,and I took notes
falling due at different dates for the bal-
ance.l used the notes at the bank and he
met them as they fell due. This helped me.
I wanted to pay my debts,but I could not
sell the lands % had. I owned about 350
acres of land adjoining the village of Esse
The interest on the mortgages fell due.I
went to Torontoto see the lawyersfor ZOWSKI
and MACPHERSONfrom whom I had bought the |
lands _for $30 per acre.I told themthe posi-|
tion I was inand asked them to forclose and
gell the land at as little cost for selling
as possibleand try to get something over
their claim for me. They sold the whole b

% block for 12 an acre to John Curryof Win-

 dsor. §e inside of 3 months sold them for

#25 an"acre. This shows how much I lost.
These lands are worth now $150 an acre.
I sacrificed on all of ny lands simémarily
I mortgaged my big house which costme over

- §12.000  to help me out. Now since I' had di%

Posed ofmost of ny business

_ Interests
all my energy into the Plow works and ihgut
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demand for our plows were more than we
could meetI met a few of the princial bus-
iness men Of the village and tried to get
then to form a Joint stock Co to manufac-
ture the plows on a larger scale,but they
did not seem to be interested inthe idea.
We were shipping Plows to Vancouver and the
maritime ‘rovinces infairly sized lota.The
other Flow manufacturéng were feelbng our |
opposltionand were beginning to cut pricea
This fall The manager of the Iron works of
St Thomasgame up to see me.They manufactuqe
ed all kinds of agricultural implements but
they did not make plows,and what they sol@
to their customers thay had to buy.He said
he knew the reputationof my plows andwanted
then.He offered to pay the full price for}
my plow machinery and patterns with all ny
stock on hand,and give me a reasonable su@
for the good will of the business. I had a
talk with ny old partners and next day 1 |
closed a bargain with the Erie Iron Works;
hée staid till I had every thing shipped,he
gave me a cheque for the whole thing togei
~ther with a fair price for the good will of
the business. All that I now owned was theg
the bullding bringing in a falr rental and
the machine shop.Il was practically out of |
business. The machine shop was busy with |
repalr work. ‘ |
My son Arthur married Celinda Robinson a
neice of Dr Brilen
CURRENT ITEMS f
Before the close of last year Dr James Br-
ien was elected a mamber of the Conmmons
against Lewis Wigle 1t was a close Election
The famous singer Jenny Lind dled.
Rev fenry Ward Beecher died i
QUemn Victoria Jubilee was celebrated.
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As the busind8B8B8of th e Essex Indusrial
works were all sold except the Machine shop
foundry and the bullding,and as I held 90%
Qf the stock.Il decided it was best to dis-
pose of 1t all by making under the act a
voluntary liguidation which we did by appp-
ointing Mr Russel of the town of Essex the
liquidator .There were no outstanding debts
to pay.So by giving due notice,fte sold the
Machine shop,foundry and book atcounts..
I through a friend bought the building ,mac
hine shop and foundrywith all the nmachinery
I also took some of the book accounts. This
ended .the company.Shortly after I sold the
machine and foundry with all the Machinery
to Mr (loldle of 8alt He continued the busi-
ness 1A Bssex for some time payind™% rental
for room and power.l now simdply hold the
bullding under rentals from the different
renters. I carried’d local banking business
I got a liberal 1line of credit from the in-
perial bank.Through all these I made a com-
fortable living and attended to the sale of
the rest of my lands,and my division -work.
I st111,0owad the $4000 on my house
Ina Wismer daughter of Levi Wismer died.
CURRENT ITEMS
Gen Sheriden of the U.S died.
William I of Germany died .
His sonFrederick III of Germany died after a
few months reign. )
Willian II made Emperor of Germany
Commercial with U.S was discussed
The High school was finished in Essex.

1889
I attended the meeting of the Grand lodge
of the A.0.U.W.and was re~elected Grand
Foreman. On aacount of the heavy expense of
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delegates coming from the western and |
eastern +<rovinces 1t was decided to form|
each of these into Grand Lodges,and a |
comnittee was Appointed to look into the
matter and report at the next meeting.
I was busy attending to my division work
which was now bringing inabout §$1200 a
year. I was also doing some private ban-|
king,l made a trade with some Detroit men
I conveyed to themtwo houses I had got
- upon which there were mortgages,and they
conveyed to me 10.000 acres of timbered:
lands inWest Virginia. I valued the lands
at 5P cents an acre.l expected to exchange
them for something else in the shape of
property. -
CURRENT ITEMS ]
Ben jamin Harrison elected Prssident OfU.S.
John Bright the English statesman dled.
Jefferson Davis ex-Pressidentof the con-
federate states died. ‘

1890 |
Tnis year I was attending to my division
court workand banking business ,and get-
ting my affailrs in better shape. We got
word of my wife,s father belng very 1ill.
We went down to see him.after a few days
I left Mrs Milne there as I had to attend
the Yeneral Conference of the Method chuwwc!
~urch in Montreal.When there I got word
of his death. In February I attended the n
meeting of the Grand lodge of the A.0.U.W.
I was elected Yrand Master.During the year
1 visited a great number of the lodges
and delivered to them addresses on Insp-
rance. When in Montrealthe lodges of thet
city and adjoiningterritery made ablg |
gathering in my homor,and I dellvered an
address to them, ‘ | '



CURRENT ITEMS of 1890

Two nephews of my wife,sEdward and Charles
wismer were married .Edward to Miss Nellie
Beaty,and Charles tokiss Clara Robinson.
Myy Grand daughter Millie Barrie was born
Lucinda my wif,s sister died in hospital.
Bismami the iron chancellorof Yermany was
deposed.The U.3.adopted the Mckinley tarril

1891
In Feb I attended the Grand lodge of A.0.U.W
and officlated as Grand master and wasm re-
elected for thid yearas (Jrand master.The
natter of making the Western and Eastern
Provinces as seperate Grand “odges was
i agaln discussed.and after consulting with
he executive committee We sentmout Mr
ﬁizonto Manitobato try and organise a nun-
ber of lodges so'as to make a grand lodge.
for the west. ﬁe was a fineman,and a good
plat form speaker,but he could not nake a
go of 1t.He could not organiset e came home.
My grap d son ffeland Barrie was born.
ﬁrthur i’wife 8 nephewnarried Miss Agnes
Wallacé.l was attending to ny snall aff-
alrd during the balance of the year,, ...
Sir John A Macdonald very prominent died

1892 |
This Feb .+ again attedded th Yrand lodge
of the A.0.U.W.and at first officiated as
rand Master but according to customretired
after serving two years. At this meeting
the delegates from the west asked the ex-
ecutive cpmmittee to send me to the west
to organise a Grand lodge When the Comm-
ittee interviewed me I was doubtful as we

Agwrone m d he falled L 1
woul an%n unger% xE 1%0 Bﬁg;esbg?gtgua-
anteea salary of §75 a month and all expen?q
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or I woulf take the charter fee of & L
100

each Lodge I put in _which would be §1
for each new lodge * and I wofilld pay m.
my own expenses,But I would decidemfﬁi
which of the two propositions* have made
I would takeZf¥il the work was completed
They thought I shouwld decide now Yhey
did not hire me then.My family had alas ..
ready gone to Florida.and I followed.
When I reached Ormond Florida I had Mr |
sanford hire a number ofcolored men and
we would clear the timber off the 10
acresl had bought for a grove.In about |
3 weeks we had 1t all cleared and ready
for planting the 1000 two year old or-
ange stocks which I had already engaged
from Beed Knox and Beed. About this tim
I got a letter from the executive Comm-
ittee of the lodge stating that they i
wrnuldaccept my proposition to organise the |
western Provinces. I left with Mr Sanford
the planting of the orange trees,and |
started for home to get ready to go weat
I left my famlly in Florida to follow i
when they desired.. I went from direct
to Winnipegand put in a new lodge there
Then %o Calgaryand organised a new lodg
there.I then leftCalgary to attend the
Supreme lodge of the order as 1 was a
delegate from Canada.rthe supreme lodge
was to be held at helena. montana,l went
by the way of vancouver where ¥ met ot-|
her defegates and also delegates from
the pacifle coastin the states .After <@
days Jjourney we were stalled at ¥issoulli
on account of a washout on the road, We |
weredelayed about two days and finally rc
reachedllelena.l was at that meeting efe-
-cted an officer of the Supreme lodge

W
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The meetings lasted about a week.l then
started for Canada to continue ny work. |
On account of the washouts on the road I
had totravel over the mountains by buss
t11l 4+'could reach some place where I could
get a railway that would take me into “an-
ada ‘I reached a “ailwayand got to Great
Falls whergafter waiJing for twodays I got,
a train for Lethbridge in soythern Alberta
I put in a lodge there.lIn eagﬁﬁf placed I
had a delegate appointed to go to the meeting
that would be later made to form the Grand
lodge.l worked hard and Put in 16 new lodg
innthe western Provinces.I got a despensati
-lon from the Supreme lodge to organise a
grand lodge for the western ‘rovinces,I
called the delegates of each lodge to nmeet
neet at Winnipeg,and with the help ofour
Recorder Mr Carder from Toronto we Organise
the grand lodge.I then decided that I wpuld
take the charter fee of $100 for each new
lodge which would be $1600 and with the
$150 allowed by the Supreme lodgemade
#1750 and ny expenses were about $500 which
left me for myﬂgmonths work $1250 00 but
1t was hard work
When I arrived at Winnipeg I received a lot
of letters,One of them informed nme that my
daughter Florence had married Frank Leute.
An inpression came to me forcibly that it
was a nistake which ultimately proved to be
true.Il felt very blue over it. My son Arthur
was attending to my office work in Essex.
CURRENT ITEMS
Hon. Alexander MacKenzile died.
The first trolley line started in Toronto
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1893
At the meeting of the Grand Lodge of thL
A.0.U.W.,I was pequested to organise the
Provinres of QUEBECQN&W BRUNSWICK And ;
NOVA SCOTIA 1nto a grand lodge like I |
did the western Provinces,Il agreed to dp
so on the same terms as the other.
I first went down to Florida to build my
house in Ormond..William laing,James Lar
ong ,and William Robinson wished to see
that country.Il told themif they pald ;
their fares I would §ive them wages to |
help build ny house.+ had prevlously bv
correspondence ordered all the lumber j
delivered from the mill at Daytonatomy
1ot in Ormond.and we found 1t there wh-a
en we got down.l also hired two other 2
carpenters ,and we rusied the building .
up and in a "short time we had it ready
for plastering.l engaged this to be done
after we had gone.l had bought all the
furniture for the house at Jacksonville
on our way down.in April we all started
for home.and very soonafter I started
for the lower Provinces. ;
During the next three months I had put
new J-‘c:>dga,e.¢3 in all the principal citles
in MNew Brunswick and Nova Scotia and as
before called the delegates to a meeting
at Montrealto form the Grand Lodge. {
With the help as before we organisedthe
Grand Lodge of Quebec and the Maritinme |
provinces. I nade nearly as much as I did
in the west.After I got homeMrs Milne
and I visited the Golumbia echibition at
Chicagowhere nmy daughter Mrs Barrie and
her husband were 1libing |
GURRENT ITEMS '
Grover Cleveland elected President of U. S
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1894
I as a 8upreme officer of the A.Q.U.W.to-

gether with Mr Inwood of Toronto,Mr M.D
Dawsonof Londonas representatives from
Ontario,AlsoMr Archibald of Truro N.S.
as representative from the New grand lodge
started for the Supreme Lodge meeting to
be held at SanFrancisco.The special train
forall canadians and the eastern delagates
was nade up at Chicago.Il took Mrs Milne
with me to chicago and left her with her
daughter.Our trainstopped off at a number
of places,especially at Denver,Salt Lake.
and Sapramenta.We were shown around to see
the sightsand Banuetted .We were about
10 days in'seesion at SanFrancisco and had
a good time.We had several excursions out
of the city.When we took train for home
every blrth in the traln had a basket of
fruit in 1it.There wasgabout 160 of on the
special train.We visited Portland direct-
ly after the flood.There they gave us a
trip up the Columbia river,where we saw
farm hoxses with only the roofs seen,and
in many villagesthe water was up to the

second floor.Fromthere westopped at Seatle |
Where they took us out to an Island foran
-Qystepyroadt Weilstabted east fromTaconma.

I stopped off at Duluthwhere my daughter
Florence was living. He was a train dispat-
cher. There I met Mrs Milne.She had gone
there from Chécago.We stopped there a few

days till after July 4th.I then took boat
for Port Arthur in Canada to continue my
work as Yrand Organiser to which I had been
appointed by the Grand Lodge of Ontario.
When at Fort Arthur I received a telegran
that my Grand Son Karl was born. I Insthtu-

ted a lodge in Fort Arthur
Fort Will?am. ‘ S Bl ne 2




I continued my work,instituting lodges
in nearly all the villages and Towns
along thr C.P.R.ry,and throughout the

eastern towns of Ontario.This year I

~ personallywrote 997 applicatlons for
2000 of insurance eachfor the orderin
organising new lodges 4ndadding members

§

to the old lodges.Il had splendid Buccez
"

and was styled in the officlal organ
of the order as the "King of organiser
ily son Arthur attended to my divisioncourh
courtfﬁﬁﬁ Banking business very satiafﬁc
torily ;
CURRENT ITEMS ‘
President Carnot of France assassinate#,
China and Japan were at war. |

|
dm, 1895 l
On the first of January my wife and I ]
attended the Golden Qedding of her sis-|
ter ffancy Von 5useckink§épuffville. I i
in the pape?‘ that thére_been a heavy fr-
ost in Florida the week before.l had pew .
-rsonally received a letter a little beie.?¢
forefron my men there thatl had been of-
fered $2500for the crop of oranges on th
trees,But he advised me not to sell til
after the holidays and I would get nore
Ag I was engsged for another year as Gran~
nd organiser for the A.0.U.W.I could not
go down.So 1 told my wife to go home an
pack her trunk and go downto see the re-
sult of the frost. When she got there she
reported that the grove was coWered with |
frozen oranges on the ground,and the trﬁ
ees badly damaged,and many of thenm ruin-
" ed. Thls was another heavy loss for ne.|
I worked all the year energetically in |
visitingthe lodges and with the help of/
the disfrict deputies had added largely
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to the membership.l also organiscd new lod-
fes whereever 1 could.y brother~inlaw pfugh

Barrieat AnnArbor Mich.died.tte had been a

commercial traveller ,and one night about 2

ye .arsbefore was sand baggedand robbed.This

affected his brain sothat we had to place

‘him in an assylum where he died.

: CURRENT ITEMS

. Mr W.D.Balfour M.P.P.for Essex was made

. speaker of the legislature.

' Mrs #i}ne,s sister Mrs von ﬁuseck died from
pneunonia takendirectly after golden wedding

! 1896
This year I moved fromEssex to Toronto to be
nearer my organising work.To do this I res-
. igned my division court position in favour
of William Laing. and he got 1t.I also
| ¢closed up my banking business.l arranged
- with William Laing to collect my rentals
from the industrial building. Every year
I was being convinced that the Fraternal
- .Insurance was not sound because they did
not collect tsuffieient to provide for the
future calls,and though I was engaged at a
salary of $2000 ayearl could not consci- |
ensly urge young men 'to Jjoin so I resigned.
I at once was offered a position for the
mitual reserve Insurance Company of New Yor
for the state of Ohlo.I took it and moved
~ to Daytom Ohio.I worked diligently for 2
 months and durind“time I visitedthe head
. officeand found there was considerablesy%f
. anongst the officials of the companyand
- made up my nind that this institutionwyas
' also unsound.l was beginning to learn some-
. thing about Insurance and I resigned ny
% bosition. I had for the last few years heen
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working very hard, and under much anxie-
tyabout ny affairs and at the request of
ny family was induced to move to Chicago
where I could for a time have a restThere
was my daughter Mrs Barrie and herhusband
and fanily who were boarding in an apa- |
rtment. . I rented a house on Marshfield |
avenue and and boarded the family and in
the meantime was on.the outlook .for son-
thing that I could take holfl ofto make |
a fair 1living.l remained the balance of |
the year,but nothing turned up that I |
thought i could engage in profitably.
During tfis time I received a telegranm |

that mg grand daughter Barbara Leute |

was born 1nSt Augustine FloridaWhere

Wp Leute was working as telegraph dis-
patcher . He later took charge of the |
Ormond station on the Florida East coast
RY and they lived in my house in Prmond.
In the summer I attended thy Supreme lo-
dge in Buffalo.At this time there was a
discussion about the Grand lodge of Ont-
ario withdrawing from the Supreme body
and have only their own death claims to
pay for which we thought would be much
lower than we have been paying. 5o at

the next session of the Supreme body we -
withdrew from the Supreme body.

BURRENT ITiMS

W.D.Balfour M.P.FP died.
Li HUNGShang visited Canada.. |
William J Bryanran ahainst Mec Kinley for

President of U.S.om the dilver question

but waes defeated |
Gols in large quantities found in Klondike
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- In January this year still in Chicago. Went
to Toronto tp attend a committee of the A.O.
U. W. to adjust the rates .After the meeting
I called to sece Mr %#.C.Irving an old frien@?
In our convesation I made the remark that |
from my knowledge of Insurancel believed I ;
could manage a new Insurance Fo if one wereJ

about to be started..He at once statedthat
he had just taken some stockin a new conmpan
Just starting in London.The Hon David Mills |
is forming the Co.fle advised me on my way ho-
me Lo sjopoff at london& and see lessrs
Park and Phrdomsolicitors and have a talk wi
-th them. I called on these parties and had
long talk with Messrs Park and Purdom.Il gavq
them the names of parties as referenses to
whonm they could write to.l ﬁave them cashier
of the Imperial Bank,Judge Horn and A.H.Cl-
-arka sollcitoryin. windsor. I then went honme |
to Bhecago. Durihg! I had several offers of
asslstancefrom parties who knew of ny cir-
cumstances’. They were willing to give me
any financial help ! needed to again go
into the lumber business in Mighigan,and
another togo into real estate in Winnipeg
which was ‘very acgive at present.He would ,
furnish all the money needed and I was to d
the work.These were very nice pff-ers ,but’
- I was always diffident in being under any
obligationsto any one to assist me with mon-
ey for fear of them losing.I never during my'
z-?skedfanydone to even back a note ror me..
In & few days after I got back + gol & let-
ter from My Purdomz‘--akkiagume".;moc'.ogmez’dom
Lo meet thelr executive committeeat london.
I wenb down and net thenm consistiﬁg of
Uessrs Park and furdom Dr Balfour,domn Fer.
guson Major Levs Hop L o
‘ ¥& and fon David Mills.

i
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At this meetingl was engaged as manager
of the NORTHERN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY.
This was ondan.10 and I was to take chawes
~rge onFeb . ¢et.I went to chicago ,packed
~-ed our things and moved to London. I at
first storéd our things and boarded with
George Laing for a time..and on Feb. ist
I took charge of thr Company,No:thing had
been done buta list of the nalfes of the
gubscribers and the amounts of cash pald
on the stock.l got a desk in Mr Purdom,s
office and put in my own desk. I at once
began t6“@ll the different forms for app-
licatéens ,medical forms and others .I
also preparedraa temporary rate book.
#iss Carpenter was appointed my assistant
and stenographer .Ina short time we got
an office on the griund floor,and about ¢
April began to write business..After
boarding a while I sent for nmy fanily
and rented two rooms and later rented
a house on Queen,s avenue. Seing well
known in Canada for my connection with
the United workmen I travelled each week
writing and appointing agents, I would
leave Tuesday nmorningand back Friday ni-;
Zht .During saturday and Monday I would
attend to all correspondence held over
by #iss Calander.puring this year I per-:
sonally wrote most of the applications.
I figured thatthe commlssions allowed
to the agent s would more than pay ny
salary which to begin with was %2000_..
In June of this year I attended the Ur-
-and Kodge of the A.0.U.W.,and met nmany
of my old friends and among thenm got
sone agents. The resolution to seperate
from the Supreme Lodge was carried.

I got a letter from
g ny son Arthur who was
working 1In the Toledo Pycicle Wworks.



Bhis letter showed me that he was 85

anxious to go to the Gold feelds in the
kloomdikeregion. My wife and L ran down and

gook Christmas with them.He and two others

with hin had long -talks about the prospects

there.t saw that theyhad the gold fever ,an

although ¥ did not like the idea,yet I saw

that it wpuld be unmuse to strongly oppose

it ,I decided to let him go.

CURRENT ITEMS

Wn McKinley elected President of thg U.S.

There was a mar between Turkey and Ypeece.

The Spanish American war was started.

The Behering sea award was nmade.

The African war broke out. waole.

The preflerence tariff with great Britailn ,

1898
Thia year I spent as much time &m posible
in writing business and engaging new agents
I gee by myg memos that during the year I
personally wrote applicationg for 35.000 of
life insurance. My son Arthur .on his way to
the Klondike .I gave hinm what dloney I could
and saw hin off.l felt very bhiue.
At the FProvincial electionone of my direc-
tors Col Leys was elected for London.
I establidhed an office in Yttawa and put
a fir Yall in as agent.As was ny custom with
other Hgents I staid with hin for a few days
to show him how to write Insupance.
lly daughter Florence and her 2 children
came from Daytona Florifa in may.We had a
My Colwell selling stock,and one day he
cenme 1n and asked me to advance $1200 on
account.I said I will look up your account.
I did so and found that we just owed hin
$300 ,and I paid him that amount,but refuse

to advance him In august th :
” : the C
Findly fromMontrealagasuperintegdgg%a%%d “r
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agents. Thls was a good move as 1t allowese
-ed ne to%ive more attention to the off-
ice work.: sent him out at once to go to
Vitawa and the surrounding towns to get
gore agents to work.¥ told him 1t is
business that we want.In Bec. 1 was very
busy.Miss Carpender fell and broke her
wrist,and “eanard Smith the other help
wae sick.So that thework caused me to be
up late at nights.Towards the last pari
of the month Mr Findley came home and
helped me out

CURRENT ITEMS
On Jan 3rd After the election there was
alarge ﬁathering in the city hall up sta-
irs in kondon.The flooring gave waypre-
cipitatingthe mass of peopledown killing
21 persons .Our city agent was one o¢gr then
The battlesship Maine was destroyed at
Hovana-- War declared beween U.S.and Spain
The Spanish armada surrended at Santiago
Manilla surrended and the Phillipines
wag ceded to the United states.
Bianark the Ex¥German chanceller died
5i® Wm Mulock establisged 2 cent postage

1899
I had soms trouble with the loan 6o about
the mortgage on my house ,butil got it
ad justed .
Findlly keptiravelling amongst the far &=
away agents,and I frequently visiting
the rhr by ones.At the office we bought
anArithmometerwhich was a great help.
on Nov, 13th Mr' Bark fresident of the Co
diedand was buried .In handling the body
iy Fergusonthe undertaker and one of our
directors got blood poisoning ,but he
was enabled to check it.
The Boer war began.
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In Janlr Purdonand I went to dNew Xork to
consilt Mr Fackler( the nost prominent ac- |
ary) in “meric?)about some l1nsurance patters|
~In Feb. when I was i'n Toronto my son John |
wired me that the *emple building in which
was ny office was burned.l went back next :
morning and got a n office in the Hiacox bui-
lding. We lost all our furniture,but the ;
things inthe vault were safe.My desk with all
.my private papers,and ny memos about Jhe %
ilne estatewere burned.In April my grandson
Karl Leute Had scarlet fever and had to be |
taken to the hospital.fe was very 111l and his
Mother Florence had to go and stay with hinm
till he got well.I sold my safe in Essex to
Messrs Bret and Auld who published the Essex
paper.Col Leys r-.esigned as dérector of our

Co.In “une I visited all the western agencig
wrote business and collected s lot of old
balances of accounts apainst Agents.

In July I attended the meeting of the life |
officers assoclation.l took a trip east east
as far as Halifaxand added some more agents
When I got back ahd had caught up with ny
work .1 took a week end and went up to Chica-
g0 to bring my wife home .She had gone up

there when 1 was east.When there I visited

the Bang s isters and Mrs Jackman great spi-
ritualists,Qur Co were negotiating to take |
over the Farmer,s Insurance Co and bid them |
110 for theirSBGt The Gontinental Life Co

bid them 115 and got them.but their manager |
engaged with usas superintendent of agencies.
We had a very siccessful year |
’ CURRENT ITEMS
galveston wag destroyed by a hurricane
King Humbert of Italy was assasinated i
The Boxer,s rising in China '
Lord Robertraised the seige of Ladysmith E
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Aenette Buseck a Aggée of my wife,s was
visiting us and had Yr Balfour periorn
an operation for cancer.Im march we got ue
settled 1 n our new office 1in the temple
pbuilding after the fire, The annual meet-
ind of the Co went off fine.
I, July I got a letter from Yeorge McHuire
of Toronto stating that Hid mother-had <. -d
died in England where She and his father
were on a trip.my wife went _downto sympa-
thise with Mille and later 1 went down to
attend to the funeral.Iw Aug. My wife and
I with little ®arlmade & trip to the Pan
American Exhibition at “uffalo.We stopped
at Mrs Holcombe ,s ( Lillian Crandle)and
then spent a few days at Lilly dale canp
Mr Findly our superintendent of agencles
had to resign to take care of his father,s
business in HMontreal..
John ‘Johnson and Mary Coleman made us a
visit on their Yoneypoon. |
A company of Essex folks went with Mrs Mi-
lne and I to the Toronto fair .They were
James,Jogseph and William Robinsonand their
wivesWe all had a good tine.
In Nov I made my regular trip amongst ny
agents.l had a fanmily gathering at Christ-
nas .Lennie and children were with ker w4
Arthur was in the yukon

CURRENT ITEMS
Mrs J.W.Whitney of Essex died.
Queen Victoria died June 22
Me Kinley re-elected President off U.S.but
the same year was assasinated at the Pan.
Theodore Rosevelt elected fresident of U.S.
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In Janlennie and her children,also Adne and
ner children made us a cisit.the day was a
regular blizzard.In Feb I Went to Stouff-

a few hours after she had dled.

|
ville to see Armette Buseck but arrived jus|

i
i

In Apriliir Mc Williamswas engaged as secre-

tary in Mr Findly place who resigned.

' Our annual nmeeting wae held in March .In may!

' I took my regular trip amongst my eastern
agents and came back by New York where by
agreement I met Mr Purdom and we saw Mr Fack-
“ler .In July +"made myWestern trip among
the agents. When in Vancouver went out to
Whatcobm to see Albert Jones and wife
In Sept Yr and Mrs Logle made us a visit
also Mrg Vanzant of leamington Mrs Milne
was very poorly and I ecalled Dr Salfour
In Oct. We had a directors meeting after
which I went to Toronto with Mr Long one of
our Bireactors .I had in Toronto a case
- agalnst gur agent Hunt for stealing funds
' of the Co'I got a verdict against hin
Mrs Milne,s Brother and wife spent Christ-
mas with us
| CURRENT ITENMS
. The Coronation of King Edward took place
‘The earl of duffern'died .Cecil “4hodes died
Mrs Milne,s Brother-inlaw A.V. Buseck died

. 1503
' The attending to my Insurance business in

. office work and visiting nmy agencles was ny
eavs work. When at Vancouver I wenout to

'}

|

|
l

est minister and saWw the Welch fanily, .ther

| to-Billihan to see the Jones family and &
nifber #p Essex people.l got home about the

i
|
{
I

}Arthur €0t home from the Klondike

4
end of “4ugust. When 4 was on this tripmy soﬂ
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The foregoing clause under the hwad of
1903 should be read at the first of1905
Now I will proceed with 1903
On my trip to ottawa I called at Pellvidle
4lle to se ny agent there 1 saw in the
paper that our fresident The Hon. David
mills had suddenly died.Il at once took
train for-£d make arrangements for our
directors to attend the funeral which we
did on May 14.
Mr T.H.Purdon was elected president to
take the place of thec late David Mills.
In Aug. Adne’ahécthe’ ¢hitdrencane hone
fromChicago.Then a little later ,I with
Adne ,Lennie and Mrs Brien took a trip
to the [illy dale campwhere we saw some
spiritualistic manifestatlions.
In Nov. I made a deal with some partles
in Petrolt by which I conveyed two houses
i had inEssex to them and the% conveyed
to me 10.008 acres of land inWest Virginia
thls was agreed upon some years ago.
Theough this I got my release from the
nortgages on the industrialbulilding and
my residence .I now went to Sandwich and
registered these releases which cleared
me of all my debts.At one time my friends
advised me to make an assignment and get
a new start,but *+ wanted to pay ny debts
and thus maintain my good name and credlt
This I then told my friends
My company had a good business year
CURRENT ITEMS
The Alaska boundry was settled by “4rbltratl
ation.TheGrdnd Trunk PBHclfle RY chartered
Herbvert 2penser a noted Philosopher died
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The usual routine of business 1in connection |
the insurance was gone through.

My son John who was travellingfor a Trunk Co’
in New ¥ork state made us a call. !
In Yapch the Thames river in London overflo-
ed so that they had to”%Takenout of thair
homes in the second fldéor by boats. Inaug,
we had visits from Dr Brien from Essex who
came for his first Auto to take it home, i
From lips Oliverfrom Windsor,and from Mr Don-!
ald Douglas and his wife from Guelph. :
During the later part of this year My daught
~er Florence was statistical clerk in the
office .I also was very busy on actuarial
work on the mortality tables.Our business foi
the year waa very satisfactory.

’ CURRENT ITEMS

Mr Graham one of our auditors committed sui#
-clde by throwing himself before a train .

Russia and Japan at war ,Russia defeated. |
Sir fenly stanley died. '

The great fore in Toronto on front stwas bad

1905
The firt clause written in 1903 can now be
read for this year. f
I bought a house on Adelaid st and Arthur |
helped to move .In April our manager in )
Winnipeg Mr Lewis diedand was buried in To- |
ro to I went down to his funeral..®t our ;
' neeting of Directors the proposition was
made to place a premium on our stock of25%
- and a comnlttee was apointed to thoroughly
,cggf%d%r éﬁaﬁThﬂt connittee met in Beph. ;
| 1 o ham tp talk over the matter
f:;g M; gilson.and lir Stephens .Before the
{ 0 he year at another neeting the byla
| Was passed nmaking a preni . J14
| 25%. Early in Dec. un on the s¥ockof
£ J in Dee. My son Jaxk
1 .

i

N _E——

and hisgirl



quriend with her mother made ws a visit
and stald a couple of days.
Cur company had a good year.
CURRENT ITEMs

Anmunsdun a norweglan discovered the 8 pole

Joe Jerfersonwho played Rip,von winkle -
died..H.P,Hand my bro-=inlaw died in Florim
Mr T.H,sPurdom,s mother died .

1906
The business of Insurance went on as usu-
al. The directors engsged James E. Macdou-
galto visit all the stockholders and exp-
lain to them all about the 25% on the st-
ock and codlect as much premium as possi-
ble.'*e was a good man for that purpose.
Mr Findly came back and acted as Secretary
in place of Mr McWilliams who led}.
The Royal commission who are exanmining all
life insurance Co,sThkey arrived in London
" and farst exan*ned the London Life and
then ours. I appointed Ralph Miller to
20 to Winnipeg and tak.e charge of the Off
<lce there.hHe was one of the clerks in
the head office. We had a suite against
GCopit Agent, 8) Bondsnen for shortage of his
accounts . s8 Iwent to winnlpeg to attwnd
the court.l took with me Lennie ans Ethel
wives of Arthur and Jack my sonsg as far
as Winnipeg and saw them on the proper
train for Mundame in Alberta.We won the
Gardner suite and got in cash 31200 and
2350 for expences.
On Feb. 2nd of this year My daughter Flo-
. rence died at 2.30 A.M..I burled her in
the cemetry at North Ridge and after the
funeral Mrs and I went up ta Windsor and
staid all night with ¥ps Oliver.Next day
we took the morning train for London to
be in time for the meeting of the board
Directors.We arrived in good tinme.



SL ¥

I had MrRichards put an upper story over ou
kitchento make room for Florence,s childreni
In june my son John married Ethel Mc Nell |
in Syracuse.We went down to the wedding,and,
there met Nellie my wife,s sister.We went |
home the next day.Jack and his wife made us
a.visit from Detrold where they went for #
their Honey moon ' |
In July when I started on ny. regular westrer

tripily son John and William:wcé?itgwith me all
“the Way to %o Ednundton where I met my son|
Arthur.William Laing from here went home. |
Arthur Jphn and I took down the line of the!
¢.N.RY which was just bullt looking for a
place to start a hardwarestore,which they |
were anxious to do.I bought a lot in Mundare¢
where there was only a shack.Then we went |
back to Edmundton where I made a llst of all
the materials necessary to bulld a store a
two story building so that they could live
over the store.And told them to order this
material from the saw mill here have it
shippedcéomni terdundare .Then take a tent
and a carpenter with you and sleep in the |
tent t111 you build your store.Then I went |
with them to to the wholesale firm of ROSS |
Bros.and orderes a small assortment of suck
goods and would do to stargwith in the set-
tle of Mundareto the amount of about $1200 |
I then left them to complete ny trip.

- In Dec Bertha McNell who had been with us &
. since she was a little girl.Was married to
Wm Glen in our own home in i®ndon. He had
come from southern Alberta for that purpose

CURRENT ITEM
SanFrancisco destroyed by an earthquake.
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? 1907 !
The business of the Co was about the same|
as former years,office work and agency vit
siting .In may I had a meetingof the agents
My Purdom and Dr Balfour went down. At that
meeting the agents presented Mr Furdom and
myself with large oll paintings of oursel=-
veswhich we both appreciated very nmuch. |
In drder to get rid of the impairment of

capitalwhich is always the case of a new
company.because we have not sufficient re-
newal premiums to coWer the overhead exp-
ehses . Mr Fackler advised us to sell a
certain percentage of the renewal premiunms
to some one who could buy it.He would pay
his purchase money in monthly’ payments and
and would get credit for his renewal pre-
niums as they fell due.and he assured us
that the sum received from the purchaser
would not be consideredn as a liablillty.
Acting on this advice we sold to Mr Fergusen
-gonrenewal premiums to the amount ofﬁeo.ooq
He' paid this in monthly payments ofg500.
But after the Royal commisslion when the
agreenments became known.¥r Fitzgerald the
supertendent of insurance sald he would ca+l
-1t the Ferguson account a liabilaty.We submlt ==
<tedthe matter to the department of Justice
and they afterwards declared it not a liab-
ility any more than the renewal premiums
paild regularly to the agents,but dr Fitz- |
gerald insisted on making it a liability in
the insurance reports.and this would prev-
ent us from declaring a devidend.I got the
directors to buy a bloeck of spock and pay |
down the premium on the stock sufficlent to
pay back to Mr fergusop what he hd advanced
for renewals .Xt our jume we®declared our
first devidendr at the rate of 61/2 per anun
annun or 31/4 for the half year. :
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I omnitted to state that whenl got back .from
the agent.s meeting in may I found Mrd™ |
il1land under a nurses,s care.lhe Dr said he
could pull her through if her Heart would

“hold out,but on the 88th of may she passed

awayat about 10 P.M.It was a sudden shock.
and here I was, 1rft with Florence,s ®.chil- !
dren.l burried"also at HNorth ridge cemetry

‘near Essex.Shebﬁasfvery highly respected and

all the stdres closed during the services.
there were presentfrom chlcago 0.C.Barrie

~and wifleand her sister Mrs Logie from farvey

I11:5he was a widow having lost her husband

some time ago.she came home with me for atime

to help keep house. I very shortly started

| on my regular trip west She went as far as |

chicago with me and went to harvey where she
lives with her daughter..When on-this trip
I ran down to Mundare to see the,boys. They

had only been 1n business aboutt®monthew |

After I came home I went up to Essex to att-

end the gB%g;gl of my old friend Dr J.W.Brien
| Jthe

whodied ’terrible Dynamite Explosion at
the stationlt caused terrible destruction
I took My Purdom Up to Orrillia to exanmine
Mr Curran about a debt his sons owed ny !
son Arthur in the klondike.lI finally got a
settlementby collecting about $600 .My gran
sonfarl went back to the college after bein,
home on account of Small pox anong the pu-
pilsin the later part of the year and had |
the two children to take ofre of I decided
to marryagain.So by mutual agreement I |
quletly Married Mrs Logie my wif,s sister |
This year my grand son Wilber Jack,s son |
was born. !
i GGERRENT ITEMS
I on.G.".Ross was made a senator ,
fon G.P.Graham made leader of liberal pargj
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1908 140
OUT gide of the usaal routine of insur-
ance The Government was submitting a new
Insurance bill ans Mr Purdom and 1 went
Ottawa to hear the discussions. On my way
home I called at Oshawa to see Frank Co-
leman and his wife.l called Ralph Miller
from Winnipegto come to head office to
take the place of Miss Carpenter who was
going to gat married.In the early partof
the year 4 had written the boys to take
stock so that { would know how the busis
ness ®as doing.In June the Directore de-
clared a devidend for the half year,I had
a general neeting of the agents in London.
When I went west and called at nundare 1
found the boys had very poor business.
They owed as nuch as thelr stock invent-
ried .I decided that the business would
not keep two .Itold them that one of them
will have to look for another job.I left
it with themselves to declide which. Jack
chose to step out.and I gave him a cheque
for $200 to keep him till he got a job
I took hin up to Edmondton and drew papers
dissolving the partnership leaving Arthur
to assunme all obligations.l took a deed
from the boys as I had paid for all the
materials up to date.l also paid up the
mortgage the wholesale men had agaonst
the property and thus discharged the moris
gage and thus started Arthur with a clean
sheet.When I got home Mrs bBrien Dr Brien,s
widow had some trouble wit Dr Doyle who was
a partner with Dr Brien ahout her share of’
the business estatel went up and finally
made a settlement by which Dr-Doyle paid
Mrs “rien $2000 in notes of $500each pay¥
able every inree months apart -
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1909 |
There was the usual routine of work in the
insurance business. We had Mr Macdougal oul|
gelling stock and collecteling Premiuns. ;
fg was all right if he would keep fromdr-
inking.Barly in the year I got a letter |
that ne was in Ogdensburg. in trouble and |
out if funde.So I had to go down and setble
his affairs and bring him honpe |
In July I started on mynwestern brip and td
I took Mrs milne with me .On the tralnwe
met Mr kewisand his daughter going to Winn«'
prg.l left Mrd Milne there with her friends
and went on She caught up with me at Reglna
We called at Mundare and saw Arthur and
Lennie We also called at Nanton and saw
Berhha and Wn Glen and John McNeil.We stoppe|
at Banffand Glacier for a day eachThen on tc
Vancouver,and fromtherewent to Seatle where
the exhibition wase.Spent -a couple of days
then on the -way home we stopped at the Yell-
owstone +ark.Where I got a cut in my head
by the upset of a buss going 1into the Park.
We stayed there two days and got doctored
up We saw the mamoth Hot springs .We reached
@hicago where we stopped over sunday with
ny daughter Adne and family and finally
reached home. This year the Traction elec-
tric '8 was sold under the hannmer. McDougal
bought 1t in for our syndicafie or the sunm
(of #53.500.,00 -
‘on Dec 29 my son John had another son born
| he called him John
‘Edward Wismer a nephew of mrs nllne,s was
|made Judge at Barrie.

i
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1910 |
In addition to the usual routine of th
insuepance I may mention..Mr Purdonm Mr
Wilson and nyself went to Ottawa to at
end the oenate committee onthe InSurance
bill.We all spoke and gave our- opinions
of the bill.W also had an interview |
th Hon G.P.Erahan.
We engaged Mr Cralg who had been withL
the Excelsior Co to take charge of the
Ppovince of Quebbe. In April we had a?
neeuin& and incorporated thexlondon and
Lake Lrie RY and transportation Co./ |
We ssetiled up with Macdougal for his |
comnissions.and he opened a broker,s |
office in the buiding we are lin. - !
I was elected a director in the Fidel~
aty trust Co. We went to Toronto and
saw the Ry bonds signed by Mr Weorge
as President.
now of ny personal affairs.
The yesar openedwith a regular ﬁllzzard‘
In March I arranged my affairs and oasir
nesg so that grs “Milne and I could take
a trip south. We went by Detroit,Cincinna
~attl Chattanpo*a and reached DaJtona Fl-
orida . We had a nice visit with Mrs Hand
Mrs Milne,s sister.She was, failing hav-
ing los her husband and her two sons..I
bot home the first of April.I had a hot(*
water system put inmy house.also a new ¢h
chimney and a fire place. I had a long |
talk with Mr macdougaland found that he!
wag completely bankript and had used his
clients money for himself and lost 1f. |
I gave hin w£5 and told him to get out
of the country¥fou are not safe “here .
he started for New York
We zot word that Mes Hand in Florida was
very 111.I sent Mrs Milne and her bro.
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Enos Wismer right downand tolfl them to
keep me. posted.Mrs Burk Mrs Milne,s sis-
ter came up from Broughamto keep house
when the others were away.In a few days

I got word that Mrs Aand was falling fast
and thought I ought to come down.l took

the night train and landed in Daytona the
third day.l transacted some business for
Mrs Hand that she wanted attended toyIn les|
than a week she passed awayNov,25Mrs daught,
mrs Rundle came a few days before.l attende

to the funeral matters..l was made execu- |

tor of her will.I squared up all her acc- |
ounts in the Townfrom the money she had in |
the bank.and had_ it all transferred to ne |
as executor.Enos and I drove to Deland the |
county townand had the will probated. We =
got back on Dec 4

- CURRENT ITENS

King Edward VII of England died.

Peary discovered the North pole.

1211 .

Francis Love one of ny directors dieddan$
In Feb we had our reghlar annual ,eeting
‘but there were¢som absent on account of the
Blizzard.The usual routine of office work
and visiting agents took place.¥e engaged
Mr Fitzgerald son of thethe superintendent
of insurance as #ctuary.‘revious to this I
have done all the actuary work.Wyr Manager
at Winnipeg Mr Lewls died and was buried in
Toronto.®r Govenlock and I went to the fun
eral.It was decided that M'r JFovenlock would
take Mr Lewis,s place in Winnipeg.l got word
that the ®and property needed some improve -
nents before it can be gold.l went down to

Daytona Alp Ferguson aand Mr Coles went with
me to see the country.I was glad of their Q¢
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I saw my agen.tin daytona and gave ordeA
for the necessaly inprovements and we gqt
back inside of 19 daysabsence. .
In making ny eastren I took Xarl with n
_e went by Hew *ork,Boston, Yarmouth and
"ot John,s Yew Brunswick.then hone by
Montreal and @ttawaand Loronto. |
In July I nmade my usual westren trip E
In #ug the old boys had thelr week and
Wary butchart and her son bogle was with
her when h@khvisited us. ;
In oct dr'g‘and i went to brougham to th
wedding of Emma “urk In the s: g art€ Enos j
Wisner and wife made us a visit 1
In Nov I took a weeks trip to Florida i
about the ‘l*&nd egtate. ]

1gia '

The usual routine of office work and field
work.In Feb our annual neeting went off |
well.Yar railway board went to Aykmer to
discuss an extension .In July I made my |
wegtern trip stirring up the different !
agensies .1 met ny sondohn and fanily |
and also Arthur and family. |
In oct I tolmk my eastern trip |
Went with br Purdom to attend the meet-
ing of the Life insurance Presidents L
This year My Grand son Karl went to DEEI
troit to 1ook for a job as he did not any
chance of promotion in the office. ||
In Feb. Addle and Lennie came .Lennie
went to the hospital for an operation.
The operatlon was performed in March and
we brought her home #pril 6 By corresponas
dence I sold my lot at Ormondbeach.
0.C.Barrie and fanily moved into a house
on Adelaide st in “ondon

CURRENT ITEMS Londdn
The duke & duchess of Vornwell visited ,
W.od.ow Wilsonnade ‘recident of U.S.




101 |
1913 ¢
The regular business of the Insurance w:.s
going on nicely. Ralph Ferguson son of John
Ferguson committed suicide .His father with
Mr Yallard was_ in Florida.On the niddle of !
Feb. Mpg Mi1ndTstarted for our usual holli-
day south. We went this time via FPhiladel-
phia,and when we reached®Wd et Mr Ferguson,
and Mr Callard. Mr Yerguson was feeling ver|
bad ahout his son committing suiclide. We on
1y stald a few daye in Daytona but went to |
Palm beach ,Miami, and over the rallway
that Flagler built over the kays to Key web,
then took boat to Havana Cuba we staid ther
for a few days and saw all the principal
plaxes.Them started back the same route and
arrived at Daytona. I consultedwith Mr Oats
a lawyer about the title to the Hand estate,
foning home we stapped at Charleston N.C.
and at washington for a few days,then at g
Mauch Cgunk a day then by train directhome
I began to realise that I was in the way |
of the Purdom Interests, and he was naking |
things unpleasant for me. e wanted me to |
retire.I agreed to do so if I had a guar-
antee that I wpuld be granted for life the|
the sum of $3000 per annum. “e agreed to do |
80 and & special meeting was called to re-|
celve my resignation.® resolution was passei
granting me $200 per monthfor life.It was nol
as nuch as Mr Purdompromised but I thoughtl |
1t better not to objeect . They then appointel
nr Me Murtry of Toronto as my successor J
I was to get three months salary to be in
the office and give Mr Murtry any advice he
night need abhout the business. He was to |
33§2‘g%$ﬁ§3r§flthe business on the@st of |
& would not be manager I

be a member of the board rfopr sorie time

woulq
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|
Although I was & couple of hours each|
forenoon and afternoon in the office fol
glving hin any information about the bus-
iness of the company.ffe did not ask for
any advice but went oh making changes Wiy
hout consulting me ahout any thing:[le was
not a success as a manager ,and did'not |
know as ruch about insurance as any one
of my newest agents. ' |
In sept My agente mnade me a surprise .
About 2f of them presented me with a fine
grand father,s clock,and an upholstered
chair .Mp purdom took us all to the ?e—'
cumndeh hotel an gave us a dinner and we
had speeches there till &40 clock.
shortly after this the office stalf pee-
sented me with a nice reading Lamp and s
stand..I» Oct,Mrs Milne and 1 made visits
to Toronto,Markham,Stouffville ,Broughan
and oshawa and had a pleasant time with
old friends.
in Soviheriwere a number of flerce storms
on the lakes.many vessels were wrecked
and hundreds of lived lost
in Dec .We went to Essex to see ny Grand-
daughter Addie Milne Married to DR Arch.
Naylor of Detroit. At Christmas we had
Enos Wismer and wife with us
0.6. Barrie left the northern and went
with the Advertiser as Financial secre-

tary.

' CURRENT ITEMS
The fair builldings in London were burned
Dr Ross of St Andrew,s church killed in
New York by an automobile. '
H. MFlagler who really made the &ast coa-
st of Fiorida.died May 20th
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K am now a free-man and under no business
although I will for a time be on both thw
Insurance and Railway boards..
We had the Parrie family and Lennie for
New year,s dinner.This monthe was very
cold the thermometer goling down as low as
15 below Zero.On the 123k 1t was a blixxaré
In Feb we went south to Daytona and on the
14th took a room at the Pines hotel.I had
& good deal of trouble getting the Hand ti-
«tle adjusted .It cost me about $600 before
I got an order from the court making the
tetle good. I made a trade with Wr Rowladei|
for his Bungalow.I gave hom & deed of the
beach portion of $he Hand propertyand
#250 cash for his Bungslow and all its fur
nislgings. and we took possession at once.
I got my discharge as executor of thr Hand
estate, .During March we met a number of
canadian friends who had come south . In
April we started for home.staying over one
one night in Jacksonville ,one in €incinn-
ittiand one at Toledo and arrived in Detroil
-on the l4th.We went direct to Dr Naylors
where we met Lennie,and went home to London
the next day..fhe week after this the Dom-
inion Savings building was burned .This of
course lncluded the Northern Life,but they
got quarters on the third floor of the Lone
don 1ife.l helped them to move.My successor
did not appear.l got a Ietter from my son
John that he had another son born in his
Family In July I did some bowling and won
sone prizes..Mr Carpenter one of ny old
agents was killed by falling from the upp-
er story of a buliding.dy wife and nyself
E}&de g trip by boat %o 31eve1and,anc1 then tef
anp Brady for a few days,Mr Bi
built my hous yo3 © ehards who
] €.and now living in Toronso
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made us & visit and told us of his trip
in Europe.Mrs Oliver came and staid a w-
eek in Yov..In Dec .1t was Zero weather
We had our Christmas all alone, The Ba-
rrie famlily were down in the evening.
On the 1lsat day of the month we had our
trunks packed for the south.
CURRENT ITEMS

Dr. Balfour medical of N.Life died

June 28 The ass-.sination of Archduke Fr-
ancls and wife brought on the great war,
July 2v Austria decla-.res war on Serbia.
Aug @ Germany declares war on Russia.

,» < Gernmany declarcs war onfrance,

4 upreat Britain declarcs war on Gernany
Belgiun overcun by Germanyand many clties
-occupled till the 26th
Aug.21 The battle of Mona. :

26 British naval victory in Heliogo-
and Bight.
. Germany destroys Louvania
St Petersburg changed to Petrograd.
Sept OBattle of Marnelasting till theGer-
manswere driven back %o the river Alsne.
Oct 9 Germans occupy Antwerp.
16 Battle of Yser begins and lasting
several days.
17 Battle of Ypres
yec.10 Austria takes Belgrade,but Serbians
recover it in 4 days.
German erousler Emsden destroyed.
24 The first Yerman air raid onkngland.

1915
Arrived in Daytona Jarfthand found the
houge all right.drick planted 3 orange
brees .Had a nan grubbing a few days

I planted ny Yotayoes.In Feb had ny ch-
imney lengthened to prevent smoking.
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I began painting the fence around nmy lot.
Mrs “utchart my wife,s sister with her sow
Logle came from Minnedosa in Manitoba
to stay with us all winter.After a few daj
I took her over to the Clarendon Hotellso/
she could see the sea.l excavated ny base-
nent by the help of two colored men,sir
Lyons did the cement work.lr Hillard fronmi
waterloo and Mr Blackadar from Ottawa '
came and I located thenm at Hotels, I
I had Mr Meachun a carpenter bHuild a por-
ch ovel the cellarway.fWe all spent a very
pleasant winter in Daytona.In the later |
part of April we all went up to Ormond I
and had dinner there .Then to 5% Augusting
to see t-he city.Then to Jacksonville and|
and saw the Alligator and Ostrich farn. ﬂ
From there we started for home.We stopped|
over night at Chattenooga and went up f
Lookout nountain.Then for Cinecinnatti .
Here where Mrs butchart took her train |
for Chicago. We staid all night and took |
train for Detroit.and stald all night witl
irs 0liver in windsor.We arrived home in
“ondon April 29.and soon got settled. {
In May I went to Toronto to see my half -
brother Thomas who wagvery sick f
Julyl I started for a trip west.At Winni-|
prg saw the Ovas fanily.At Minnidosa saw |
Lhr Butvhart family 44 Springside saw i
Dr Wismer and stald a dayAt Saskatoon T |
stopped with iy son Joln.Here having a |
bath I fell on the edge of the bath-tub |
and broke a rib.fad the Dr fix it up next
day ,The rid had sprung back in place but’
he Dbound ny body Snu&gly.:{ went to Mund- |
dare and stopped a week and nursed my side
anomr deotded o go with me to Nanignsy |
T o algary we stopped “dfr.
wawyer Clark an old ksgex lawyerfpwe Fp'l

i
!
|
1

i

i

b
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found the Glen,s and John Mc Neil all .
wellnad a nice visit over sunday.®fter 1.
leaving there Arthur left me at Calgary
for home and I went on my &ay homeward

I stopped atfmpress where I had bought
gone lots.l arrived again at <innipeg |
and was net by Ypr Ovas.The next day took
train for homeand arrived at Hondonand
found Mrg Milne all right In Sep.l had a
long talk with 0.C.Barrie and Adne.thelr
life was not harmonlous and -they decided
to Part .Adne thought she would go back

to Chicago -and keep boarders .

It was too bad.l got a telegram thelTy
nalfbrother Thonas Milne died.l went to
Toronto and attended to the funeral

On the last day of the month I attende

to the shipment of Adne,s goods for Chi-
cago.and next day saw the two Adne and
millie on the train for “hicago.lt was a
sad circunstance to me. Next mopthe drs
iiine and I went to see the play The bi-
rth of a nation” In Nov. I rented my house
to ¥y and Mrs Yerex for the winter for
$2¢.50 per month.They -took possession on
the 17th but we we reserved our bedroon
1111 we went south. We starred for the
south on the 20th and stoppedall night af
Wrs Oliver,s at "indsorand arrived ay Day-
tona on the 28th and found nmr and Mds
Hough cleaning up.We had our Christimas
dinner at My and Mrs Jarecki,s

CURRENTS WAR ITEMS

Jan 24 British Naval victory in north sea
Yeb4 Germany proclaimed war zone around
Britain.

liarch 17 Russians Yapture Fzyenycl

April 17 ©Second battle of Ypres.

26 #llied troops land on Gallipola

jay T Lusitania sunk by gernman subl!154liyes
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WAR ITEMS CONTINUED JH

June 3 Pzysmelretaken by germans.
Aug.4Germans capture warsaw. |
Uct 4 England declares war against Bulgarig
Dec @ Austria ,Germany and Bulgaria -

- _conquer Serbia.

Sir Douglas succeeds ®ir Jomn French in the
connnand of the army Al

_ I
e T 1y16 , |
i New years day we had our dinner in Yaytona
ans(éadhﬁr gnd réﬁyifh us.e went over tg
beach to Bee the high wavesafter the storm. |
Tpe 8apacene:band play every evenibg in—the
and in the morning fo r the beneflt of the |
| public free. wr Willis from Toronto,%r Go%
-les from Hondonl and Wr Scot from Mistowell |
all canadians that * knew well.¥ got them al
located at the *ines hoteld aceb6ss the stree
I this winterlﬁecided to have m{ up stairs
floored and diyided*into roons “ hired a
carpenter anf + helped hin.%e made two bed i
rooms & bath room and with a hall down the
centre with a den in the frontWe %ade a ;
'stairway down to the lower floor for Conven-
dence.t made the walls of Flaster board and
papered the walls and ceilingfll this took |
t111 about the later part of march .
I took The Coles and Scott families for a
trip up the Somoka river to see the Riigatos
I put a board walk doun the lot. and put up
8 wire clothes line. I rented my Bungalow
dor the summer to Mr and “rs Hough and in
fipril started for home.®taid all night at
acksonville over night and took train for

bhic%ﬁg,ggt stopped on. the wag for a day to
reached Ha.g °1 nills at Biringham .We

rvey 413, qa
r and 4pg “gﬁdli.and stald € days witn
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Then went up to Chicago to see my daut
ghter #rs Parriee also met 4rs Folard
and old ssex friendand Yr and Mrs Bel-
fry. Theawe took train for Detroit and
saw the Naylov family.thengver to Win -
dsor to see dpg Uliver. Yent down to
Egsex and saw a lot of old friends.
We arrived home in LondonMay 15thand
found every thing all right. ~ '
In june + was busy making some repairs
to the house and doing some painting.
In Yuly the ¥owell family came and
stald a few days befor they started for
Los Angeles where they were to live.
There was a general meeting of the Norw
thern 1life agents and L gaw a lot of
them i had 4r Fraser stay with us
Mr and Mrs Wiamer from #arkham and fr
and Mrs Ponald douglas all nephews Bf
Mrs milne,s calledd to see us.l went to
Toronto to visit my cousin The McGuires
and to Oshawatogee Kate Coleman.Thewto
stouffville t6 see old friends there..
In Oct Barbara came home on a week end
from Glencoe whwere she was teaching. |
Then I went to Goderich to see John |
Mc Neil and the Glens.l renrented my |
house again for the winter to Mr and |
dpg erex on Nov 1bwe started for the's
soutH ."e went by~Suracuseand saw Nellle
Barrie.Then to New York and boughtall
the furniture for my upper flat in Yay-
tona.We, reached Daytona on the 20thand
foudd“In good shape.The balance of the
year 1 was helping Yr Meavhanm to build
the rear porch. - '
’ CURRENT ITEMS *
The VU nadian farliament bulldings were
burned down..Mr Burgoyne the Millionaire
who did so much io. “.ytona died suddenly
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Feb The battle of Verdon.All the ground 1ostt
was recovered by the French.

| Bgpoh 26 Bteamer sussex torpedoed.
April U.8., delivers ultomatun to @Germany
June Lord Kitchener-drowned.

©  The naval battle of Yutland.

Jduly The battle of the somme raging. .
Aug.Romania enters the war with the #llies |

- Bep. The allies have not yetbrokenthe Germal

Line

- aqut

In Daytona we had~gith us for our NewYear,s !
dinner Mrénd Mrs Yerecke .I rented the up

- stairs to Dr fomaine for the winter for

" #l7b | ¥or a number of daye I was busy,in |
the garden and painting.Fred Rundle,s Auto 1
came in a car from “hicago.l got a man*to 1
" help,me get 1t out of the car and placed in
a garage.in about a week his wife and dau-
ghter came ,and on the last day of the nmon-|
-th they drove it up to Jacksonville and got
' back late at night nearly frozen. On Febd _
there was a heavy frostwhich destroyed a lo
of vines and Crange trees.¥atthew Wilson
one of my old directors from Yhatham®;&nhd I
got him into the Seville Hotel.on the 22nd
camne the heaviest frost since the great |
frost 22yers ago.When Fred Rundle came ile
and his daughter started for Havana Cuba.
“red Coles and I took a trip to kake ‘%elen

| canpwhere we met Mprs v?reight from ¥Yetroit,:
We with Mr and Mrs Smith took a trip by
#uto and Chauffier to Deland,Mt Dora,Orange
City,Sanford,Vrlandoand Home 161 miles.

On May 7 we started for home.stopped a ni-
ght in Cineinnittiand then to Petroit. We
visited the Naylors in Yetrolt, and the 01-
ivers in Windgor and got honme

i on the 10th

-
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1y June Yames Hicks a delegate to the |
@onference came and staid with us.
near the end of the month I went toTo-

.ronto and saw ny son Jdonn ,the Mc Yuires

‘Florence Milne,.M, Fraser and others.

Myg Glencame down to see her usband be-

fore he left for the war. * took her to

the depotto see her fusband gyt on the
train with the soldiers for the war,*hen
she took train for home. Barbara went by
boat to Puluth to meet her brother Karl.

In ayug.l rented my house for the winter

to dprsPelland and daughter at ¥+Y per

month. The balance of the month 1 was
ﬁaintin the house and had 1t all papered
r and Mrs Butchart came for a visit
They were in much sorrow for the death
of their son who was killed in the war.
gﬁ was their only child.after a few days
hey went to Toronto to see some relat-
ives and when they came back ¥ took then
to Yetroit and had a fine sceance where
ne had a nice visit with his son.*hey
took tieir train for Winnidosa in Mani-
toba. In Oct, lMrs Bell and daughper took
possession of the house and we started
for the south.We arrived at DaytonaNov.
{Tthand Tound thatdrs Perkins had left
the house and we were minus 2 spreads

" and € quilts.l rented my upper flat to

weeks for $200 for the winter.l got

My Weachum to build a dormer and Palcony

on the front of the house.l helped him!

every day. Rarl cane for a vislt,and
bought a setond hand ford.and he and

Barbara had a good time.heavy drost last

night.

1
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War notes -

Feb.3 U.S5. severs diplomatic relations

with Germany.

24th Kut~el 2~ Amara captured by British
Zar Nicholis of Russua abdicated. |

Ap.6 U.S.declareswar againstiGermany,
June 26 First americen troopd reach France
Ureece dealares war against Yermany. '
Sep Yermany captures Riga. 1
Oct.Brazil declares war against Germany |

i918

Had New Yearsg-at Jerecke,s .The carpenter !
‘finished the balcony in the front of the |
housge.Barbara left for home..In Feb I pai-|
nted my fence The Coles familycame and at
the pines hotelMr and Mrs Barbaer from Essf
called also Mr and “rg Bousins from detroi
I built a gate in the rear of my lot.On
April I rented ny bungalow for the summer
to Mrs Beid On the end of the nmonth of |
April we started for the noérth. When we i
‘had passed Atlanta our train was wrecked ;
The engine ,tender and baggage cars werein |
the ditch.No one was injured but there was |
a delay of 7 hours.We reached Cincinnititi
in the morning stopped at Toledo.Arrived in
Londonat 4 P.M. and found everthing all rigl
I had a bad cold and was in bed for a few |
days I did some painting about the house ;
In July made a trip to see the children.

In Toronto we met Addie and her brother .Cay
~lyleand Mr and Mrs Charles Wismer.At Winn- |
beg net the Ovas family.At Minnedosa met

the Butcharts.At Saskatoon met Jack ang
fanilyAt Raddisonmet Wm Logle and family.
Then came back to' Saslatéon and took Jaeks
chlldren to the falr.At Mundare ana visitedl

Arthur and Lennie.Also Carlyle and fanmily




112This day July L4t there was a wonder
ful crop of wheat but a heavy frost cane
and ruined it all. Prom %there went°'to |
Olds and saw Donald douglas and family.
Thenback to Winnipeg and again met the
Ovas fanily.Then by St Paul to Chicago %o
to see Py daughter /Mrs Barrié.Then to
Harvey and saw the Rundles.Then to De-
tiroit and Windsor. ®rrived homeaat nlion-
don Aug .9 and there saw Barbara On the
19th Adne and Millie came to stay .She an
and her husband had made up. I went up o
to Goderich to see John Me Neil and the
Glens.Jdohn was in bed..On the 8fh Oct.
I had nmy dinner at the Barries I rented
ny house for the winter to Mr Cap Juff
e was a Dr at the Carling,s haight..
At the end of the month there was an e~
hpidemic of influency raging in the cou-
ntry.started for the south and landed
in Daytonaon Nov. 11 the day of the
arnistice.beling signed. Mrs Ovas and
her son 4Allencame to stay all Rint-er.
During the past week I painted theFlo-
ors of the down stairs while we lived
up stairs.Then painted the up stairs.
On Dea 20th we went tp hear the Scotech
Hoghlanders concert. William Logle cane
to settle in Florida.He had sold his |
farm in Saslatchewan. On Christnas day’
we had the Logle family with us :
WARNOTES '
Pres. Wilson pregents his 14 articles
The Lusitanla torpedoed 317 Anm soldiers
Gernans drive allles backfor a nonth
Ap. Foch made corimander of Allied forces
May German U. boats sink 19vessels.
The Allies driving Germans back.
Americans take Chateau Therry.
The @ermansare now on the run
The Czar of Russlia reported executed
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WAR NOTBS Continued ”

All july the allies are drlving the Gerpans
Sept. the Belglans are driving the Germans
Ludendorf German commmander resigns

Nov. The Kaiser and Crown Prince abdicates

and flee to Holland. -

Nov .115k Armistice signed .Mons captured-

Thus ends the great war,

1819 :

NewYears day We had for dinner Mrs Ovas and
son,Wm Logie wife and 2 sons,#nd Mr Jerecke
W Logle and I took a trip to Wauchula ab-
out 150 Miles 5.W.to see some properties
Was there for 3days but he ddd not buy.
When we got backwe found Mprs Ovas had a tel.
egram that her sonColon had died.She was
prostrated and was golng to go home but we
-told her that it would not be wise. dary
Mrs Milne was qulte sick and had every other
to go to the hospliltal to be treated.

I had the roof of ny house palnted.

In April I rented nmymy bungalow for the

sunmmer for $100 .All this month I w as
makling repalrs about the house..
May 3rd I started for the north.On the way
stald a night at Clncinnittiand reached home
on the 8th.We found the house very dirtyand
it took a few days to get it in shape. I
Advertised ny house in London for sale,and
finally sold it to Mr Crocker for $4300
cash.Then I was busy selling off my furni-
ture by private sale .What I could not sell
I sent to the auctlon room for sale. I pa-
cked other thinga I wished to take south

and had them shipped to Daytona Florida.
-In the meantime I was staying at my daug-
-hters Mrs Barrie.Before I started for the

south I made a trip to Toronto and other



1i4

places to see old friendsOn the 24th
of Aug . westarted for the south and on
arriving atiYaytona founsl that Mr Fuller
had left the house hul neglected to pay
the balance of the rent. On the later |
part of september we made a trip to Man—!
itee to see Wn Logleand familyand had a
good time.When we got back I decided to
put cement blocks under the walla of ny
house.l got a man to help me to tear off
The shingled aprons . In doing so a Sca-
ntling struck my leg heavily.l had to go
a doctor to get it treated.A Mr Vandewood
put in the blocks which. improved the ho-
useln the later part of Oct, My goods
cameand I was busy for some days getting
them unpacked and assorted.l decided to
build a Garage on the rear of the lotto
acconmodate visitors who came 1o see ne.
I got my Carpenter Mr Meachum to build 1t
I nelped him every day. Then he put on
the.siding on the lower part of the house
above the cemant blocks I rented my upper
f1at to Messrs Winchell and Taylor for
the winter.After the carpenter had finl-
shed hig other work He made me a bookcase
My Sullivanput in a cement floor ln the
Garage.On dec .!1Tthlly daughter Adne and |
nillie camefrom London.The day after
Christmas I was suddenljtyery 111 with
influency of the bowls.

CURRENT ITEMs

Jan. Theodore Rosevelt Ex -president

died.Sir Wm Crooks chemist died 87
Aug . Andrew Carnegle steel man died
Sept Adelina Pattl singer died T4 .'
The canadian Government bought the G.T.hy
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. When the rday after Cgristmas i was very sd
| sick,for 10 days 1 was dilerious and knew 1
| nothirgl was over 8 weeks in bed and under
' the Drs care .in fact the Dr did not think
' I would recover, but idid finally get over
| it,Adne was with me and she wired ny two

' boys #rthur and Jack . They came down,Yack .

! could not staynlong but 4rthur stald about :
| a month.lMany of my friends visited me durin
! that time. In march Ramer and Willian,s

garage was burned downand 22 adatos with 1it.
The balance of the monthe + was busy in the
garden.l rented my up stairs during the sun
mer for $100 In May the Baseball first sexp-

ies was played and I went to see some of #®h
them.I did not go north this summer .In the
month of June I built an sarbor for my ‘

. Bougainvilla vine to run upon,6In aug.l had
; & man to paint the eves and high places

| places about the house..The rest of the

' building Impainted myself working a few ho-
- urs a daylIn Sepy .my wife had a bad attack
© of heart trouble .l called the doctor over
' the Phone but In lass than 15 minutes she

- passed awayl t was a shock .I wired her peo

~ple and they decided to burry her along sid

. of her sister Mrs Hand in “aytona besch
. cemetry.ly daughter arrived to stay with
- me during the winter In Oct , put in a new
~range and did other work about the house

3
1

!

I rented my upper flat for the wintee for
#400 I cayght a bad cold and wasunder the

*ugﬁgagﬁpe for some time,In Dec, I met James

4

his wife They were old friends, 4 kmew '

. in Stouffvillel malled to Arthusr®sg that

.

-1f he got a chance to sell He could do it

without delay.We went to se

e the J
Jones showg Uf-Lian gl Ry
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The German chancehlor" Holloway “who cap
lled the neutrality of Belglum a
" Scrap of paper died

FebLawrence Thompson of Daytona my reah
estate agent died

Admiral ?erry who discovered north Pole
died. s
Mrs Mills widow of the Hon David Hills
died

The U.S. gave the Women the rlght tavo‘be
The first meeting of the League of Nat-
lonswas held 1n Genevaswitzwrland.

1921

Jan 1!st Just heard- that ny Granddaughter
Barbara had married Wm Winterton at the
house of my son John Milne in Edgonton.
Next day we had MrJerecki for dinner. |
Mr and Mrs Urquhart took us for dinner!
at the Ivy Lane hotel.For the next week.
I was canvassing the merchants and other:
ers for funds to build a Bowling court,
The people here did not know anything
about the game.l ralsed $245 ,and startec
-ed men to work on it . Norman Laing who
had Jjust came down from Detroit came and
took Adne Millie and I for a trip to |
St Petersburg 205 miles across the state
On the way we drove thriugh the streets
of Tanpa.®n our way back we stopped at
Orlando and drove to Rundles drove and
got home 4 P.MOn Feb 6th Adne and I wep
up to:see Mr Mbachum who was getting |r
better after his acident. Lennle came
on the T P.M train. Present=-select }

&arding came off his Yacht, gtto K trs
<n for Bt #ug ustine ectorag pring-?
faeld cane e is a brother of James |
I had a nice talk with him.I finished |
building my “owling courtpade of Marl.



‘and shortlg the Bowls came and the people |
‘were deliphted with the game. During the |

|

N —

e et e

|
!
l
|
|

'On April 2nd Fred and Eva came for & Tew

- ped at at the Peacock Inn at Buena Vista.

(RN}

| Tirst week in march & was steadily at the

court teachling thw players how to play the,
game.We allwent up the Tomoka river ,and
when, we ot back me net 0.C.Barrie fron
London.On the 13th The Wills family toek
and dp Nusbam took us all for a drive to
the grave of John Ormond in the woods.
In a cenent box.0n the top of a slab was
the inscription" Died Dec., 30 1829 an hon-|
est man"®n Dec..25thThe Hill family and

Mr Nusbam took us all on a trip to Mianmi.
We reached Fort Port Pierce the first day.
Then to Palm Seach stonped a few houre and
reached Miami the second evening.We g8top- |

L
2

visited Miami the next day and in the af- |
ternoon started for home.We stopped. one

night at West Palm Peach and next nignht at |

elbourn, and reaghed home on the 29th.
day,s visit.Mr and Mrs James Urquhart 1eft1
for their home St Louls Mo.0.C.Barrie went
back to London.I started a man to build

| cenent steps up to the poreh in front of

to Adne,s place on the 19

e at London.During the balance of the
month wag busy working about the house,
During the first week in May was busy pack-
ing to get ready for tug north.Started on
12th ,landed in Detroit on the 14th.stalad

|
the house.I shipped a Brl, of dishes to i
}

at the Naylors a few days asg I had a cold. .

Lgnnie stald for seversal weeks .Adne and
Elllie went on to London.I went down to
w3sex and visited the friends there .Got

-~id the T2
re the balance of Lae month,

th in Londonand stal
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In June Adne and I went to Toronto |
and visited the le Guires.Il called and |
saw a nunber of my old friends.Then to |
Markham and saw Mr and Mrs Elljah Wisner
and up to stouffville and met old friends
Then +o Oshawa and made a visit with Ca-
thern Coleman ang the Lick family.Then |
t ook a trip to Holmesville to see Berths
and Wm Ylenand John e Nell. In July the
weather was jery hot and I stald in the
house a good reading,and made some calls
on sorme friends. On the 25th Lennie cane
from Detroit.I met her at the traln in |
Londorand went with her to her western |
home . AL Winnipeg we had an houssvisit at
the depot with her son Carlyle and fami-
1y.Had 20 ninutes at Saskatoon and saw |
Barbara and her hushand.frrived at Mun-.
dare on the early trainWhere Artihur net
us.Bennie was pretty tired .The last day
of the nonth My son John ran downfron
Hdmonton Lo see us..l staild two weeks
with Artiur helping him to make up his |
reports as returning offlcer after the !
electlon Just passed in which the farners
carried the day in the legislature,
During this time Carlyle and fanily cane
up for his holidays.Aug 15th- Arthur Len-
nie and I drove up to Edmondton and nexh
day he took BGennie to Panff hot springs
On the 19th With Jack and family we vis-
ited Donald Douglas and family. Then we
met Arthur when he zot back from Banff
We went to the Photographers and got a
plcture of the four generationstaken
They were Myself,Arthur ,Carlyle and
hie son Arthur. John and his partner Mr
J.G.Waggateorganosed " The shoe finding
co"I went down to Banff and stald a few
days with “ennie.Then we both started
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for Edmondton in a snow storm.Then the |
next dayl with Arthur and lennie went

to Mundare.On Sept,14ih I took train for

gaskatoon and stopped a eouple of days

 with Billy and Barbara.Then to Minneapolls:
to seé ny Grand son Karlfor two days. ..w
On the 20th took train for Chicago where {_
Rarl: Bayrie and fanmily.Then to Detrolt. |
I called on the Naylors and went down to !
Toledo and had a sceance with Mrs Chalons,
Went to Essex and sawyny old friends and
reached Adne,s Place in Londonand was th- r
ere for the balance of the nontih-

On Qet st Went up to Holmsville and saw
Glens-and John Mc Niel On the 8th my bir-|
th day took dinner with the Barrie family

On thelith Leland Millle and Itook train £

for Daytonaand arrived there on thel4th {
and found everything O0.K. In about a-week |

Leland started back fornhome ,In Nov, for a,
~ week ! was very busyabout the place I re-

| nted my up stalrs to Mrs Kirby and Urs

‘Newton. On Thanksgiving dayMillie and I

' took dinner at the Ivy #ane hoteli:The

next day I nlanted my potatoes .the balance

of the month was busy in my garden
-CURRENT ITEMs

At the Dominion Election last monththe ~ib-

erals won the day,

_Jan-24 Urs Belfry an old #ssex friend Died,

{pe q%ézgh Mr an Mrs Elijah Wismer celebrated

dding day in their home in Markhan.

| Nov. 27th§lex . Campbell 8ssex‘friend Died
| aged B4,

1922
Jan. In Daytona . I put a coat of Tarvia on
the bowling court to make it ready for pla-
Ying on. Heland came down and went to Miami
‘to try and get a jobMillie kept house.
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Mr C.E.daylor from Essex came with h%s
bridecame down and I located him atthe |
Bsburne house, On Feb I heard that my _4
Grand daughté%ﬁ ad a son born to her.. |~
0.C. Barrie and Adne came down.de went |
down to Miamito see Leland.They bought »@
“lots in Hialeah a suburb of Miami. In the
Bowling club I gave a tournament of 4.
silver cupsas prizes to the winning teamn,
0.C.Came up and was one of the winning
t ean.My C.E.Naylor, and his bride went
hone .l and MrPWere daily callers at
my house.April 0.C.Barrie started for |
L.ondon.Adne took charge of the house and
Millie went down to keep house for beland
On the 14th I superintendentd thn erection
of a monunent for my wife,s grave in the
cemetry.Il rented the lower part of the
houge for the sumner tollr Hutson.On May
1st Adne took train for Miamlto be with |
ner children.and in an hour after I took
train for Essex and arrived there on the
3rd. I rented two rooms from Yrs Fallis.
and boarded with her.l found it very dle-
asant.Mr Fallis is failling in health.He
geams to be loosing hls nind.I met a great
many of the old friends.Il occasionally

ren ap to Windsorto see the Ulivers and
over to Detroit to see the Haylors, |
June 12th I took boatat Betroit and went
to Goderichto see the Glens and Old John
Ve Neil. Mr'Glen met me at Goderich and |
took mp down to his farm where ! spent
several days.Then to London to see MNp
Barrie,Dr Wismer and others.Then to .Tor-
onto and visited the Mc Guires and Mr

and 4rs Horris.Fernly and Fraser.Then to
Markham to see KElijah and SusieWismer.and
then home.In July Karl and his ladycame.



came down to see me.l had a sick spell 'dF
for a week or nore with nmy bowels,l called
Dr Brien.On the 27th Mr Coles and I went to
Chesterfield Camp near Anderson Ind.We sp-
ent three days there and had many fine ta-

{ 1ks with our drparted friends.In Essex ther
was held the chaut-augua for 4 days andl
attended the meetings every day and wag nuc

pleased with thr Programm.During the next fg

nonths I was busy Re-writing my Christ Bible
with the intention of having 1t Published.
I wrote to several “ublishing houses to
find what 1% would cost. In sept, The Laing |
family took me for a ride,and at Harrow I
net Mr Russ who had his first charge in |
Essex and boardedwith Mrs Milne and I, I |

"~ went to London and saw a number friendsand |
0.C BarrieThen went to Windsor and visited !

the Olivers and,and oveer to Detroit to see

the Naylors.Mr C,E.Naylor of Essex went to

Detrolt to have an operation for rupture.

On Oct. 8th Mrs Fallis gave me a birth day

dinner with a number of friends. Ohn theSth
I started for Daytona in Floridaand arrived
theremon the 13thand boarded with Mr and Mrl
Hutton till Adne came from Miami on the
22nd,The balance of the month was busy aboul

the place.l sold my Beach lot at Ormond

for £225 .Adne took the Dangue fever ,but |

soon gob over 1t.I was busy builing another!
bowling court. " !

b
|

1923 | I
Jan. Still in Daytona and busy supe ‘
perinten- -
( ding the compieting of the new Bowling coug:
About the end of the month Bella Notman
Tormerly Bella Mc Guire came downto spend

the winter with us Fe}
7 «Feb 18th Dr Myve st )
ny house and paid me down $100 toy§§§dbg;§ﬂ{
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bargainThe price was $8500.00 cash and

no comnisslion, The balance to be paid
on’or before the first of may When I agmeo
reed to gilve him possession.The furnish-
ings except what I reserved waa included
on March he pald me $4400 more on the
deal.O.c.barrie came in the afternoon
He with Adne Bella Notman and myselftook
train for Wiami.lLeland met us there at |
11P,Htook Bella to a hotel and drove us|
o their home In Hialeah.We staid there |
for a weekgndunday Leland drove us all |
over to Miaml beach.next day we all went

up the Mianil river.On the 15th Millie and
and I took train for Daytona.Adne and '
0.C remained,and Bella staid a littde
longer in Miami.In less than a week Bella
arrived in Raytona.Mr and Mrs HarrySmith
had a vislt froam thelir son and his wife
and ehildren. Thay staild a nonth, He 1s .
one of the viece Presidents of the Stan- |
dard Uil Co..I took Bella and Willgcup |
the Tomoka for atrip. April I was busy
packing my books and other things that |
reserved.Bella took train for Atlantic
clty to meet her alster. Adne dnd Leland
drove up in the Auto and staid over Sun-
day.Then Leland went back snd took 4i11te
witn hiz.Adne remlaned with me.I Lookny |
blg chalr,wretdng deslk,and cheffeniap’ f
over to 3immons furniture store,t o have!
then erated .I carefully packed ny big
clock in its box,put ny feather bed on top
top and sarewed the 11d down.T left my |
bookecase at Simmonds store for sale I fins
ally gob $25 for what cost me 4§75 . |
I shipped ny goods to Egsexpaid the frei$
sht 699" 1 also shipped Adne a box of!
thlngsto Miami Dr Myers pald the balance |
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due me on the house , On nmay 5th we all
went to the depot.Adne took train for
K iami,and agbout an hour affer 0.C.Barrle

took trainfor Essex Ont.,Reached Cincinne
attl very late,and was held over all nigh
Took the train for Detroit. The engine
broke down and we reached Detroit too lat
for the train to Essex.Went over to Wind-
sor and saw the Olivers,Had a lunch and
Fook the electric carat 9 0 clock for Esse]
Mr and Mes Fallis were both in bed,but, %
got up. Next day 0.C took train for Lon- i
dornI had written Mrs Fallis thatl would |
neQd a larger gitting »nonm on accouht of
my “ibrary and writing desk So she gave
the big front room up stairsI had Mr Hicks
put a plecture moulding round the room
1 also boupht from Ja% Hicks 9 sectional |
book case ngr whaich I piid $95 .I pers- |
vaded Mrst o put a partition through ny
B¥ for-mer sitting room so as to make 1t |
o Private room with a hall throuzh to Hhe |
ath room.I got Mr Imri 4o help ne and we:
had 1t done.in a few days..On the last dayl
of the month my goods eame fron Daytona,
I got a drayman and with Wn fobinson and |

Jom Imri we got everything unpacled and '

moved into the nouse, My nahogany lanp st-

~add_was hissing anfl the Ry could not fing ‘!
1t I put in ny claim,but i only got 10
During the next two weeks I wag busy read-!
ing proofs on Wy Chriat Biplecon the 15+h |
-Blarted on my summer tprip Lo ondon .~ .

l T and
saw 0.C.Barrie”  Dr Wianerang a nunber of

0ld friends.Then to Holmesyville to see the

] B
From there to Ogh- |
an and the Lickg.T
.J“,FL J? Ee cCi8 e
5 P&BE%}Toronto and spent a few davs ;ithn
the McGuires,and from Jiere nome 1o Lagex
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~My Grand father. clock had heen badly
shaken on the Journey fron “aytona an
had, some trouble in gebtting it in sha-

pe againThe first two weeks inSept I - . =
was busy writing a history of the Bible
Sep, 13th Dr WMaylor had to take his boy
to Philadelphia to an expert to have
peahut crumbe removed from hisBronchid |
tubes .+ went to Windsor and ordered a
suit of clothes,*he new Highway fron
Windsor to Lssex was opened.Yarlyle nad
us a vigit for a few hours.He -1s now Sup-
erintendentof the National RY telegraph
lines.In Nov i7Tth started for the south
and landed in-Daytona on the 16th stal
there 2 days to see all ny old- friends.
Then went down to Hialeah and rented a
a flat from Adne at 59 a month and ins:
lsted on paylng ¢5 a week for my board.|
I bought a Corona typewriter and for & |
weeks was busytypinfg a number of my Man-
userips. #eland drove us all through
Coral Gables, I was learning to play the
chinese gane of Mah Jobgg.

CURRENT ITEMS of 1922 onmmitted
Pope Benedict XV dled ] . _
Knlcker -broker hotel roof £ellinlCQ lives
Wn “aing an old Essez friend died73 |
Dr Peebles noted spiritualist diled 100 |
Marech A 10.000.000 fere in chicago - §
Alex Bell inventor of telephone died75 |
Enos Wigmer ny brother =inlaw died 72 |
Elijah His brother died in Markham Tt |
Karl Leute ny Grandson married-Mayme Smith
CURRENT ITEMS 491

lir Woolworth of 10 cent stores dled 57
Sarah Bernhart actress died 78 :
Tremendous earthquake in JapaniQ00s killed
The Allles owe Britaing10.,000.000,000
Lord SBchanhusy great C.P.R Mandled T7Q

(]

=]
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1924 e
| Now living in one of Adne,s apartments. in
| Hialeah.About the middle of the Month 0¢C
| Barrie came. I bought 6 Bougainvilla trees
i and had _henm plen*ed on the front &awn.
On Bunday Leland took us for a drive to the
 beach and back..Feb | st I saw that if some
‘thing was not done they might lose their
. property.There was a mortgage of $4000 at !
8% interest,and over a years interest in
arrears,and they owed qult a sum on the fur
| 1shings. So I negotlated with the firm that
 held the mortgage,and sent to Canada for |
| the Money to bo take up the Mortgage,and
© both 0.C,and “eland agreed that the éropeu
| rty would be deeded to Adne.and I would ta-
ke a mortgage from her on easy terms.This
Was agreed to and the tranxactionwas comp-
leted .I met My N,H. Ruthven one of ny old
. agentadown in the cityand had a long talk
' :éﬁ? him..OntEhe'Qer of magch Adne and I
| up see the sugar Mi11. ;
- talks with 0,C .He*seemeélto gigigomz?;iiis
 very anxious to see him get a position,and !
“would suggest several plans to him.Me con-
 8trued these as finding fault with Him.and |
~although he agreed ,he was annoyed at th
- Property belng put in Adne,s nane and ble |
- ©d me for playing a triék on him to d ?m-’
hinm of having any authority osver oy vei
ty. I realised thay from What 0.C.sa%d 1 me.
not a welcome guest.Sg : e - Wl
city and secur;d ny rgsérgzngndgwn . Sk
train.I got a draj"ﬂl&l’l to take nv
and although I had payed my Appis
Vancel lieft Hialean for = Pril rent inad-
on the 8th and put e oaahed. Daytc)
Baw all ny ola friendsang F-"

for Essex .firri
Pn the 194hm ved at Mrg

{
]
I
A
i

eft
alll E?,ns tr];fl‘_eaq]errth
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I bought an Overcoat and a table for ny
typewriter and was soon settled.l now ma-
de Mprg ¥allis place my home and hope I
will not have to move again.l w was busy
redding and and typing.My @randson Karl
and his wife occasionally visited ne.
June 1'2thtook Boat from YJetroit for God-
erich where Mr Glen met me and I vislted
with them and John _cleiltill Monday and
then went to Torontd to Carlyle,s place
end mad a& visit for a few days.@hen went
down to Oshawa to see Kate and the Licks.
When I went back to Toronto Carlyle drove
me up to Barrieto see Judge Wismer and
wifeand got back the same day.ThenCarlyle
drove over to The Me Guiresyhere I stald
a few days.I got a telegram from lrs Fa-
11is that Mr Fallis had dled.next day.I
took the morning train and got to Kssex
at 4 P.MMr Fallis was buried the next
day at Kingsville .He was in his 80th
year died June 23rd,In July Mrs Snider
(a widow)the daughter of Mr and Mrs Whit-
ney calledd to see me.Mrs Fallls and I
visited the Bolton,s at Ruthven.On Aug .
15th Mr and Mrs Pickles of London called
on their way to Windsor.The Chataugua
was held here goe 4days and we went to
gee it everyday.Il got an awful letter
f ron 0.C Barriecalling me anything but a
criminal .An old Esgsex friendMr J.B. Belfx
-r'y cane 'to see ne.Addie Naylor and childw
dren were down and when they went home
Mrg Fallls went with them.I went up on
thursday and Dr Naylor drove us home on
bunday.We all went down to Hames Hicks
for tea.On Sept 15thDr Naylor brought
Barbara downbecause Little Arthur had
searlet fever.I and Wm flolroyd made a
stalrway down to the cellar.



‘ fresn- hay
At the Essex falr this there was a Pageant
played representing the history of the cou-
pty of Essex..Yn Oct 8th my birth day Mrs
Fallls gaye me a dinner with some friends.
In Hov, Holroyd toh¥ suddenly 111 and hax
to be taken to the hospital and operated
for appendecitus.. We took our Christnas
dinner at the Naybors in Detroit.+t was ver)
cold 8 below Zero.The ferry boat was frozwn.
| tight in the river with 250 passengers on
‘the boat. They were 4 hours in getting over
it111 3Q¥lock in the morning. :
’ : rent ltens :
. Feb Woodrow ,.Ex President died 57
Mar. My cousn Pella Notman died 60
Harold Jarvia noted singestiéd B®toit |
Ap. Hugo Stipes Germany,s richest nandiedbs4 |
June Tremendous tornado. in Ynio* 100 lives
July-The Chursh union bill passed the senate |
vep. Great, earthquake in Armenia. ‘
‘oct Toronto bought the city RY $13,000.000.F
Nov. Calin Coolegge made President WS... :

i iv25 '

‘I decided not-to go south this winter.for

| an account of O,E.Barrie,a action § could

| not go to Adne,s .This was a cold winter

- gome tines as low as 1§ below zero.ly son
dohn on his way fronm-Chicago called to see
me, We arranged to try coal in the furnace
but ¥rg Fallis thousht 1t was mope expens—

1ve than gas.On Jan 20th she put a new ce-

iling on the hall.In Feb tok Wa to the Fat-

her and son.banquet.On the 12th we went up

(Detroit and with Xarl and Mayme had dinner

(at the Yaylors.Yext day had Lunch at farls

‘and then came hone.On the @0th I went up to

%W;pdsor and settled the guilt against Wii?im

% Holroyd.Went to Walkerville to see

|
|
!

an ola
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gcliolar of mine bulfound he had passed
away.l had a loud speaker put in my Rad-
lo.Feb mas a cold month.The old inhabit-
ltants sald 1t was the coldest Feb they
could remember.In March Tth I took Wm t9
the movies"Jakle Crogan"The Rev George
FPallls made us a call.Was tyging Scott-
1sh character.On April 13th ®enry Ford
started his Airship from Dearborn to
Chicago .going 1n the forenoon and bac
in the afternoon.Vn the 18th tok train
to Oshawa to see Kate Coleman who:was
very 11l.Got there Sunday morning . She
was alive and knew me nut could not talF
The next day I visited the Me Guires.
Kate dled on the 29th.. I was busy for |
some days adjusting Mrs Fallis,s title |
to her properjy. i i
May 1et I was not feeling well Dr Brien
ordered me to bed and for a week I had
My meals brought up to me.On the 26th
My son Jack and his familyhaving driven
fron Seatle in hls 1little Ford car in |
3 weeks.They staid all night and next |
dayleft for SyracuseN.,Y .I was very sick
all the month,the Dr.attending me dﬁil%

The great Union of the churches was con-
pleted. "y son Arthur bught Mrs Falliss
grocery store and dischlrged the Mort-'
gage.l got Mp Lairq the surveyer to-put
in boundary stakes at “rs Fallis,s store
and Wn anglput up a short funce so as|
to take possezaslonof .her part of the i
alley and prevent disputes. i
In July I took myeastern trigto Eondon|
and other places .At “ondon { stdpped
at Dr Wisnrr,s and visited all my old
friendsMand “rs Pickles called in th
evening+Then I went to #olmesville and
nad a few days visit with Yohn me Neil

o
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and the Glems.On this trip ny rupture
trusses went wrongand I was forced to come

right home.flad a talk with the Dr and

1t seemed tnit I would WHave' sy ‘Operation,
1 made adJourney to Marshall Wich.to- & tr-
ugs factory and got a new truss which at
first appeared all right,but on my way to
Detroit 1t went wrong.Karl Leute met me at
the statonand drove me' to his place.Mextday
I came home and managed to %o f£ix my truss
to-do falriy-well.On the 29th had tea with
Mirg Alex Laing In August I visitednmy friends
in Torontoand Oshawa.and took trainfor

Syracuse to see my son Jack and family and

° 2%% iriiggg?gg%h?%%g ﬁ%T%’or some men
0

e walr tank outror Jhe Bath

I went up to Addle,s in Yetroit and ti
Tuesday.¥ morningand got my truss fixes,

On Oct 10th Karl and Mayme came dowh for

Afinner.Mrs Fallis had Mr Fully the carpen-

ter repalring the Verandah.I was binding

& number of books whose covers were off.

On the 29th was the Federal election. The
liber,ls were defeated.

The church Ehdar madea supper to raise some
noney for surplicesMrs Fallis offered her
Jouse.It was a great success. 185 tooksup-
perThey raised f;e.5o. Dec .was a cold mon-

. thMrs*Z6t an Electrio Washing machine.
Mrs Fallis and I had our Christmas at
Addles in Netroit The next day Karl and
Mayme came over there to see us On the 31st
The London street cars stopped at midnight
The busses were robbing their income 80
they stopped.
CURRENT ITEMS

James Johnsonan old Essex friend Yied
Norman baing and Karl gave me a fadio,
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: CURRENT ITEMS continued |
FebJ.Fleishman the great yeast mandied |

Mar. Madame Tousands wax works in Londo
were burned

May Lawyer Geddes of Essex died suddenly

M.H.Hall an old Essex died 82 g
Flamarion the great astronomer died 80
July WMJ.Bryan prominent man died .

Aug Sir Adam Beck Htdro Knéght dled65

. Disastrious fire imfMontreal '
Sept J.M.Ferny my Torongo mananger died

O6ct Bank of England sent U.S. $4.000.000

Nov . Rev John Gray an old svhool mate

died 82. Her Majesty Dowag-er Queen Alex=
xaddra died 87 !
Dec John Booth Lumber man died 9t

1526

Jan. This month was very cold,but with
my gas stove I can keep my room very |
cogpffortable.l was busy typing on some
manuscripts.In Feb I went to hear a Re-
citel on the ¥iabo by lMrs Green.in Bar-
-chl attended the High school commence-
ment.In April I heard over the Radlo |
Prsesident Cooledge,s address » da-
ughyers of the revolution.. Mrsihad her
butterfly supper for the Ladies aid.lt
wag qulte a sumcess.May entered ‘with a
heavy storm lightning and rain.Karl amd
Mayme also the Naylor family wére down.
When going backpr Na.ylor could not get |
over the river so they came back and |
stald all night. On the 10th I by requ-
£st went up to the High School and gave
to a class a talk on en Florida.

In June I started on my summer trip.Went
to Goderich by boat and visited the Glens
a?d Joh? gc Neil.ThanTto London and vis-
a riends there.Then to Toronto and
) V}ET¥ed all my friends there. From there

|
I
b
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'I went to Syracuse to seemy son Jack and -
family apso the Badgerofamily. and then
home.When in London I got the Northern |
&ulife to give methe oil palnting which had i
¢iveb me by the agents.lt had hung 1ln the
|“poard room for many years.In July Mgs Fall-
. is went down to the beach for a week.
- M3yjlie and the 2 girls made me a vislt. |
. I went to Windsor to be_examined as a wit-
. ness in .the suit of the Furdl law flrmagal-
|_st the Northern 1life.Ramer my old fprehan |
" 4n the lumber business came to see ne. :
 In august 12 Mr and Mrs Pickles with Mr and
Mrs Readhead drove up from Londonfor a vis-|
-1t and staid all night.On the 22nd Karl and
| Mayme with their car came down and took & d
drlve:ia Seppol.réadathe adwhigtihedornado |
in Florida. 1 wired Adne and got the answer
~ that the apartment was damaged bot no one
was hurt.l was very anxious about thenm, ;
On the 23rd I took quite sick with the Biah-
rea and was in bed nearly a week.Gordon
wigle made me a wisit.&fter I got up I was
| busy typing "An old man,s thoughts on rel-
- 1igion ' On Oct.1stI got a letter from Millie
| telling all abeut the hurricane.They sure
- had an experilience,Karl and Mayme brought
. her father down to see me.l had a nice vis-
. it with the old man.Later in the month Ihad
. another attack of Diahreaand was bedfast fc
4 days.On the 3tst I fell coming down Mr |
. Beamans steps and injured my knee.
| Nov.The first half of this month I was laid
| up nursing my knee.Mrs Fallis put a new |
{ Turpmace in her basement.The United church
18 belng decorated and anew Organ put in.
. On the 25th we took our thanksgiving at
karla.Dee. On the 17Tth I gave as a chrigtmas
present a sllvevtea set.l thought she “dege |

1t for her many actsof -kAndness towards mo?*'

i
i
i
1
|



3% CURRENT ITEMS |
Jan. F.S.Muney of magizine fame dled T4
he began with $40 and ended with
#‘h‘o L] 000 '0000
Adam Brownold Hamilton man died 100!
Feb Elmer lick off oshawa died 6 & "
Mar.Mr Phipp wife and 3 childrenin anfu-
- 4to coming frem Pelee Island broke thrl-
-ough the lce and all lost.bodies found.
Ap. Luther Burbank fruit wizard died T7 |
May Nelson wigle killed by trainon crossii.
- ing in town67. ' '
Hector Urquhart an old scholar of nine
Junkilled by taxl in springfield Chlo |
June ¥red Coles old london friend died T
July Twp men flew round the worldin281/2
days. Harry Smith daytona frienddied
sept Germany mad & membevofleagueof nations
J.EB.Stone of essex died73 - f
. Hon C.S.Hymanof London died 72
Dec 25YASHITOEmperor of Japandied 47

1927
Jan The whole of-this month I was busy |
typing a manuscript on Hubbard little |
Journeys.On the 16th Mrs Fallis had a nunber
ber of congratulations on the anniversary
of her birth day T!. In Feb.l went up to,
windsor to interview Mr Gordon Wicket of
W.E.&L.5.RY.about Mrs Fallis,s clainm ;
Mar25 #rg’had a butterfly supper for la-i
dies ald There were nearly 10V present. |
IR April 'l decided to go_toMundare to be|
Present at Arthur,s operdfion.Wm drove me
to Windsor.I went to Toronto,and met Addle
.at Carlyle,s .On the 19th we took tealn fro
for Winnipeg and thence to Mundare arriv-
ing there on the 23rd.Arthur was operated
on at Lamont Hospitalon the 27th. He men-
ded Up very quick.May 1 Carlyle went home.

|
t
i
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May 13th 4rthur came down from the Hos-

pital,17th #ddie started for home.On the

20th I- took the midnigh® train for Sas-
katoonwhere I stald with Billy and Barbara
for two days.Then took traln for Toronto

and arrived there on the 27th at 7.30 A.M
Made some vieits there and then to london
to see old friends.Then to Holmesville to
see the Glens.From there home to Essax on
‘Juhe 3rd. July 1st This was Diamond Jubl-
lee yearof confederation.It was celebrated
all over the Dominion.Mrs Oliver and her
daughter came down and told me all about |
Jahe,s death which occurred when I was up
at Arthur,s.Frank Barrie called and we had
a nice visit..Aug.lst I changed my trusses
but after a month they were no good,and
had to get another set.

Mrs Fallis had an old aunt who came to
visit herfrom Halfway in Mich.Sept .During
this month I wasbusy typing on "Kittoes
Bible,s 111uatrations".8n the 25f% Dr Wis-
mer and wife drove up-from ondon to make :
us a visit. Oct. 8th my birth day I took
dinner at Karls .I recelved about 70 birjyh
day cards which took some time to answer.
I had a call from Thonas Ferris of Colch-
ester .He and I used to slt together in
Council in Harrow.On the 17%% we all went .
to the church annibersary supper..

Ramer my old foreman came to see me .My sc
sonYack came down from Windsor and stald
all nightLNOV. 5rd had a visit from &rch
and Ross “aing .Next day Wm Glen and Bertk
nade me a visit. Later Karl came down and
took us up to Detroit ,there we met Car-
lile and wife and had a drive to the Mus-

;qn..g;ehﬁ‘:’ﬁif"ﬁfal ssex friend diedat 76
ec . union church .were hawi &

3 v ~
al;stic nmeetings in the church g; theag:v
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Dr Benard. The ladies ald of the churchL
had a Bazaarand sold 3100 worth of goods
We had our Christmas at Dr Naylora and l
had a drive to the Rouge plantof “enry |
Ford,s .This month ended with a rEgular
Blizzard. . J
CURRENT ITEMS E
Jan The C.M and st Paul RY was sold to
a syndicste for 140 milliondollars It will
will be ¢ ed the C.M.and Pacific Ry. |
Feb Arthu hndih Essex man dled |
Mar. 2 my old friend JonnMcNiel died 80
heavy earthquake in Japwn5000 deaths ?
Ap. A tornado in Texas 150 deaths. § )
May ,Linberg flew from N.York to Paris |
in 331/2 hours alone. - i
June Lord LansdownGov.Gen died 82
July Great earthquake in Palestine
Mrs Barber widow of C.L Barber dled71
Nov 45 fishermenlost on coast of Ireland
- Tremendous flood in England 100 drowned '
8n China 8 million starving,a revolution
The standard Yil Co bought from Russia
50 midlion gallons of oil." ' J
Dec Charles L4nberg flew from Washington
to Mexico alone 2100 miles nonstop 27 hours
ONtarious out put-of Minerals in g27
was worth §91.000.000 |
In G-#.20.000 killedonR¥y eroasin;s in |

IUyéara
1928

Jan 1 Arthur and bennie landed in Toronho
after he had sold his hardware business : -
stock bulldings and lot.. My sondack

called and staid all night. Wm Holroyd
drowve Dr Brien,s Auto to Windsor to meet
Arthur and Lennie from Toronto and brou-
ght them down to Mrs Falllas,s Houde.that
was on Jan !7Tth. firch Nayﬂor and Addie

drove down to see-Arthur and addie.
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Jan, During this month I was busy typing
“enry Ford,s life. h
 Feb, Mrs Fallishad a ladies ald meeting
there were about 80 present. I took
_Aprthur to the Father and son Banquet.
On the 4¥%th Dr Naypor Addie amd Arthur !
had a bad accident in Detroit .Theie Auto
was run into by anotherauto.Arthur had to
_be taken to the gospitsl.he was badly woun-
. ded in'his head face and left hand..
 March 4th went up to Betroir to the hospi-
' tal to see ®rthur.his head and hand were
| bandaged up .In another week Dr Naylor
. took'Arthur home to his house andand cont-
' inued doctering his wounds.On the 24th he
{waa able to be up in his chalr. |
. April This month was very cold and I caugh
. @ cold and was confined to the house.
| About the 15th Dr ffaylor brought Arthur and
‘Lennie home for a visit,On May st I went 4
. domt"¥6r the first time in two weeks,my col
{18 getting better.During the next week I .
‘canvassed the citizens for signatures to a
ipetition to the council to call a public
imeeting to get en G§Breasion of opinion on
‘buying my old home "“aple Villa" for an Hos.
| pital.Then Arthur an? I drove through all
ithe towmships to secthe Neeves and feputy
(reeves on the question of HHospital.Then
|agaln We attended the councils to get their
'1dea of giving some grant if the yearly
éfinancea might be short .I visited the hospi
rfitals in windsor and got 8ll the informatior
' _possible.I got prices for Hospital farnis-
‘hings,and also wrote to several Hospitals
in small towns.All this took up Fime ti1l <
about the middle of Yune.I took the 4 doctor

dowm to the building to show how easll '
it ¢

y .

GO‘U.l@. be Titted up at little expense for an -



136

The public meeting was zalled for June
20th.When my son Arthur went dewn, to
_the'hallratethé proper i mfﬁEBOﬁ & man

came and opened:tlecdoor,btibetiivee ,were
not more than 12or 15 came tc¢ the meet-
4ng. I was surprised .0f course the doe-
Ttev» were opposed to the scheme ,and told
their clientd that we did nolneed an
figgpital here,l was sonvinced that fea-
+ing that a Bublicihd’after hearing my
presentation of the advantages of 1t
might carry the ifief,a n under current
was circulated among the pwople that to
defeat the scheme it would be wise not,
to attend the meeting and that would
prevent-a public expression off the mail~
~ter. I thought it was discourteous to
ne after all the work I had put 1in,po}
to come and hear what I had to say up-
om the subject:if the hall had been fu-
11 and after hearing me and then voted
againast it I would have been satisfiled.
On the 29thArthur drove up to windsor
and broughg William Winterion,Barbara
land 11ttle Billy down. Theystald for
tea.Then we all drove them down to the
beavh to let them see the countryand
the lake.Thendrove them straight toWin-
dsor,where we met Karl who took charge
of them.We got home about 9.45 P.M
During the first week of YJuly I spent
some days at the beach with Dr Naylor
and family.On July Tthlarlyle and fanm-
ily drove from Toronto to the beach to
put in his hplidaysthere with Arthur
and Lennie.This month our minister Mr

Bedley went on his vacation and the Ba-
““Mﬁ%Tﬁﬁha eed to take our services by
preaching in the morning in our cjpurch
and iIn the evening in hls own church. |
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~and reversing 1t the next sunday.

AuG.21 Mrs #eo Fallls on her way home callec
on Mrs Fallis ,and Arthr drover her upto
Detroit to taXe the boht on her way to
Vancouver,On the 29th we started on our™ |
eastern trip.We took Lennie and Barbara wi-

+th us. We reached London and met Carlyle
who drove up from Toronto.We had dinner at
the Tecumseh “otel. Carlyle took the women |

to Torontoanfl Arthur andiJ staid to make
visits in *ondon.We astopped at Mrs Pickles
the f¢rst neéght,then at Dr Wismer,s I calleé
on 'a number of my old friends.from there We
drove up to the Glenspear Goderich.On the
way we stopped at §ltehner to see a Dr Bro-
wning who stated to Dr Wismer that he had
gone to school to my fatherin Markham. From
the Glen,s we drove to Toeonto.l stopped at

- Millie McGuires.Arthur went to Carlyle,s

as hias wife was there.I visited all day witk

Millie Me Guires .On Monday I went to see

6Yarles Wismer and Susie widow of Elijah Wi-
smer. Yy son Jack came and drove me to see
some olfl friends and Florence Milne my %ia-
ter-in law and landed me at “arlyles.Then

Abthur drove me and Susle to Oshawa to see

‘Mary and John Jonhson and Ella Lick.

Sep 9 Arthur drove Mre Fallis Lennie and My-

self up to Barrie to see Judge Wismer.We had

& nice visit and got back the aame day.I

visited two days.with my son Jack who drove

ne to see Charles Wismer son of Eli Wianmer.

We spent Sunday with Carlyle,s family.

On the 13th at 7.3p in the Morning we starte
for homeand arrived at Essex at 4,20 P.M.

On the 23rd I had a bad attaeck-of Diarhea

:22 EigytoIc:i: Er-uc Donald because Dr Brig

Pleht at month ena. . - Do0.TOF 2 daysbut ay
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During thy first twp weeks in Pept.I
had 2 bad attacks of Diarheaand. was bed-
fastfor days at a tino.Mra; 8 apsovery
gick.On the night of Sept th Nprs \

Fallia,a drug stocre was completely de-

8troyed by fire.Arthur had to put & new
roof on his grocsery sjore .fle accident
-ally fellfrom the roofbut was not serio-
~u8ly injured.ly sister~in law Florence
Miinee of Toronto fell and badly inju-
red her arm.Oct.7th Judge Wisper from
Barrie called to see us.To night Willianm
Holroyd started for England to hunt up
relations.dext day was my birth day 90
years old.Mrs Fallis gave me a dinner
and had Rev Mr Hedleyand lady ,Dr J.W.
Brlen and Lady also drs Wm Laing with us
There were a number of old friends call
ed to see me.On Nov 10th Abhhur and Le-
nnle drove to Toronteo to spend Thanks-
glving day with Carlyle and family.
When he came home he brought a new Ra-
dio called the"Mercury 10 "On the.25th
Dr Naylor and Jay Sisson called to sec
me and had tea..We had the U.85 Thanks -
glving day at KarlsOn the 10th we went
to-church to hear the Cambrian Singers.
Dr Naylor had bought a new house and
Arthur was helping them to pack for mo=y
ving.On the 2¢ Christmas day we had din-
ner at their new hiise.There was quite a
gatheringl9 personsfle s8tald a couple of
days and eame honme. Nothing spezmial the

balance of th@uﬁﬁﬁﬁ?'iTEMS“ \

Jan. E.J. Powell an old friend died in
los Angeles Calf, aged |
The Metropolitan e¢hurch in oronto
burned . (

|
|

1



